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Who we are

Pennon Group Plc 1s an envronmental utility nfrastructure company

at the top end of the FTSE 250 which owns South West Water Limited
and Vindor Umited The Group has assets of around £4 7 billion

and a workforce of over 4,500 people

Group strategy

Our strategy 1s to promote the success of the Group for the benefit of our
shareholders, customers and other stakeholders through our focus on water
and sewerage services, recycling, renewable energy and waste management
We am to be a pre-eminent provider of customer services to high standards
of qualty, efficency and reliability

What we do

We carry out our business through

South West Water Limited - the provider of water and sewerage senices
for Devan, Cormwall and parts of Dorset and Scomerset

Vindor Limited — one of the leading UK recycling, renewable energy
and waste management businesses

As one of the largest environmental and resource management
groups in the UK, Pennon’s business is all about sustanability.
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Dwrectors’ report - Business review - Group overview

Group highlights
Pennon Group Financial highlights
W te value f harehold Revenue Assets

e create value for our shareholders
by continuing to develop our two £1 ’29 1.1m £4.7bn
environmental utility infrastructure -2.6% Dividend
businesses, South West Water ] el;;
and Viridor, and by the efficient Profit before tax* +7.3%
financing and strong management £198.2m
of the Group as a whole. -1.1%

*Before exceptional net charges
Statutory basis £21 8 milion

South West Water Financial highlights
The wat p ) Revenue Profit before tax*

e water and sewerage services
provider in Devon, Cornwall £49866m £1 526 1m
and parts of Dorset and Somerset +5.2% +7.5%

- delivering strong operational
and financial performance.

*Before exceptional net ncome
Statutory basis £164 6 milion

Viridor Financial highlights

One of the leading UK i Revenue Profit before tax*
ne of the leading UK recycling,

renewable energy and waste £70§'8m £36-5‘!'"

management businesses ~ -7.5% -36.6%

achieving further significant progress
in its long-term contract and energy
from waste activities.

*Before exceptional charges
Statutory basis loss £152 4 million
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Highlights of the year

* In a challenging year, delivered profit
before tax (before exceptional tems)
only marginally betow the previous year

* Group capital expenditure up 61%
to £439 million

¢ £300 million hybnd caprtal 1ssue
provides substantial addtional funding
and strengthens balance shest

* Group businesses well posttioned
for the future.

Highlights of the year

* Ongoing outperformance
of efficiency targets

* Strong operational performance
despite extreme weather events

* 88% improvement in Service
Incentive Mechanism (SIM) score
since the opening K& position

¢ £60 milion reinvested to enhance
protection for bathing waters,
pnvate sewers and help customers
in most need.

Highlights of the year

+ Strong progress in long-term
Public Prnivate Partnership (PPP)/
energy from waste (EfW) strategy

¢ Significant current headwinds
in recycling and ongoing trend
decline in landfill - aggressive action
to reduce costs

* Exceptional charges - total £150 million
net of tax

* Four more key long-term PPP/EfW
contract developments

Strategy

Qur strategy 1s o promote the success

of the Group for the benefit of cur
sharsholders, custormers and other
stakeholders through our focus on water
and sewerage senvices, recychng, renewabls
energy and waste management We am

to be a pre-eminent provider of customer
services to high standards of qualtty,
efficiency and rehabikty

Strategy

At the core of South West Water's strategy
1s the company's commitment to delivering
the services tts customers depend onin

{he most cost-effective and sustanable way

Strategy

Vindor's strategy Is to transform
waste, adding value through recycliing
and renewable energy generation

Strategy in action

¢ Commited to an annual dmvdend increass
of 4% above inflabon up to 201415
Continued focus on our two
emvironmental utility Infrastructure
businesses undertaking sustanable
actvibies which make a positive iImpact
on communities and the environment
£439 milion invested n key infrastructure
supporting the development
of the UK economy
» Group wedl funded with efficient
long-term financing

Strategy in action

s Pure Water - providing safe
and reliable water supplies

¢ Pura Service — increasing levels
of customer satisfachion and mantaining
reliabiity of assets to protect the senice
improvernents made over the last 20 years

¢ Pure Environment — protecting
and enhancing the environment

¢ Financial Management - outperforming
the regulatory contract, ngorously controling
costs underpinned by efficient funding

Strategy in action

« Substantial further progress dunng
2012/13 n the develcpment and rofl-out
of Vindor's PPP/EfW pipeline

* Capital expendiiure of £292 million
on Vindor growth projects, mainty EwW

» Recyciate traded increased by 5 6%
to 1 9 milion tonnes
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Dwectors’ report - Business revew - Group overview

Key performance indicators*

Pennon Group
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Duectors’ report - Business review - Group overview

Chairman’s statement

In a challenging year

for both South West Water
and Viridor, the Group

has achieved a profit before
tax* only marginally below
the previous year

Dear shareholder

Business performance

Group revenue was down by 2 6%

to £1,201 millon and profit before tax®
decreased by 1 1% to £198 milion

Wa continue to mantan substantal

cash resourcas and facilities and we ended
the year with a racord level of £1 15 bilion

Despite the extreme weather evants

of 2012/13 impacting on aspects of its
operations South West Water performed
waell, achieving further agdvances in operating
efficlency and customer service It 1s on
target to outperform tha K5 {2010-2015)
regulatory contract The company has front-
end loaded delvery of the operating cost
efficiencies required by Ofwat and 1s now
shanng the benefit of ts K5 outperformance
to date with customers by renvesting around
£60 mifion In further IMproverments

to services

Vindor expenanced a mixed year

Trading was significantly down on last

year, with declines in recycling and landfill
outweighing the continued growth in joint
ventures The company has responded
aggressively to these near-term challenges
which have necessitated site rationalisations,
headcount reductions and exceptional
charges n relation to asset iImparments

and provisions

* Before exceptional net charges

On the positrve side, Vindor has continued
to make very strong progress on its growing
Public Private Partnership (PPP} and energy
from waste (EfW) pipetine with major new
contracts having been signed and key
planning permissions obtaned These

and similar projects are expected to drnve
Vindor's long-term profit growth

Dmwidend

The Board 1s committed to its policy

to grow dividends for shareholders by 4%
ahove nflaton per annum up to the end
of 2014/15 Thus reflects our continued
confidence that Pennon Group remains
well postioned to delver strong growth

in the medium and long-term

We are recommending a final dvdend

per shara of 19 70p, which represents

a 7 7% increase on last year’s final dndend
This wilf result In a total dwdend for tha year
of 28 46p, an increase of 7 3% (reflecting
nflabon of 3 3%) on the total dvdend for
2011/12 We wil again be offenng a Scnp
Dinadend Atternative to shareholders

In respect of the final dvmdend for which

the timetable i1s given on page 144

Sustamability and governance

The Sustanability Committee of the Board
continues to oversee our performancs

in mantaning & responsible approach

ta environmental, social and governance
(ESG) matters The business review

and the sustanability report set out more
fully our commitmment to ESG and our
notable achieverments dunng the year which
include carbon reduction, enhancements
to water secunty, water catchmeant
management and resource securty

and efficiency

In addrion Vindor was ranked 'Bronze’

in the Business in the Community (BaC}
annual Corporate Responsibilty Index,

a major achievement given that it was

the company’s first year in the Index

It was also the first company In its secior

to achieve IS0 50001 (Energy Management
Systerm) accreditation

Secuth West Water won both an inaugural
Institute of Chartered Accountants

in England and Wales (ICAEW) Finance
for the Future Award (large business
category) and the Evronmantal Award
at the Utiity Industry Achievernent Awards
for its flagship programme of work

to improve raw water qualty and natural
water storage, 'Upstream Thinking’
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The Group's governance amangerments
continue to be reviewed annually to ensure
we davelop and mprove our governance
structures and practices taking account
of market developments and new best
practice guidance The corporate
govermnance report on pages 60-71

sets out the developments in the year
which include continued iImproverment

of processes and controls, Including IT
systems, to meet the increasingly
complex needs of our businessas

Health and safety

We continue to strive towards achieving

our goal of zero accidents across the Group
We are pleased to see a significant reduction
in the number cof reportable accidents

I South West Water, atthough we are
disappointed that 2012 saw an Increase

for Vinder The company I1s redoubling

its efforts to drive down the number

of accidents Health and safety initiatives
dunng the year have included priontising
employee engagement and trainng
alongside the Group’s ongoing focus
onfundamental nsk assessment systems
and safety management procedures

Board succession

As [ mentioned In last year's Annual

Report, after 10 years as a Non-executive
Director of the Company, Dinah Nichols

will be retinng from the Board at the Annual
General Meeting (AGM) 1 thank Dinah for
her considerable contnbution to the Board
over the years including her chatrmanship
of the Sustainability Committee which has
managed very successfully an increasingly
complex ESG agenda Gill Rder joned us
as a Non-executive Director on 1 September
2012 and we plan to appaint a further Non-
executve Director In due course who will
succeed Gerard Connell when he retires

at the 2014 AGM, after some 10 years

as a Non-executive Director

After 20 years as Chief Executive of Vindor,
Colin Drummond has announced his
retirement from both that postion and as an
Executive Director of the Board | am pleased
that he has agreed to take up the postion
of non-exacutve Chairman of Vindor once
his successor has bean apponted This is
expected to be by the end of September
2013 | thank Coln for the tremendous
contribution he has made to the success of
Vindor and Pennon over the last 20 years

Diversity

Following on from introducing last year

a Boardroom Equality & Oversity Policy,
which incorperated the recommendations

of the Davies Review ‘Women on Boards',
the Board has continued to promote eguality
and dversity across the Group We have
had dunng most of the year 25% fernale
representzbion on the Board but we
recogrise that this will not be mantained,

at least for a penod, whilst the Board
transition referred to above takes place

We will stil endeavaur to achieve a minimum
of 256% female representation on the Board
by 2015 and a murumum of 25% fermnale
representation In our senior management

Our customers

Vitally important for both our businesses
I the provision of the highest possible
levels of service to our customers,
which is reflected in our Group strategy

Cunng the year South West Water has
further developed its affordability tootkit
for customers who are struggling to pay
therr water bills and has a new social tanff
for 2013/14 which 1s aimed at its most
hard-pressed customers The company
has also established new partnarships
with Age UK to target support for older
customers and with housing associations
to engage with low income customers

Vindor continues to assist ts custormers

In identifying the most robust and cost-
effective waste treatment options In

a changing market as landfil diversion
increases It also helps customers to identify
the carben saving benefits of recycling,
recovery and good waste and resource
management, with ts carbon reporting

tool which 1s scheduled to be updated
further this summer

Our employees

We know that the skalls, commitment

and hard work of our employees continue
to be key to the success of our Group

We are focused on rewarding, recognising
and developing our employees through

a number of intiatives and strategies, details
of which ars given in the business review

I would like personally to thank every one
of them for ther outstanding contnbution
to the Group

In addition | arm very grateful to my Board
colleagues for therr continuing support
and significant contnbution in what

has been a challenging year

Outlook

The Board's prionty continues 1o ba

the creation of sharehclder value through
its strategic focus on water and sewerage
services, and on transforming waste
through recycling and waste-based
renewable energy generation

South West Water continues to focus

on efficient service delvery, Improvements
In ssrvice to customers and the satisfaction
of its reguiatory and legislative obigations
As a consequence it i1s well on track

to outperform tha K5 regulatory contract
The company Is prepanng for the next
regulatory review {PR14) and Is well
postioned for the Governrment's

legislative changes

Vindor faces near-term headwinds

In recycling and the ongong trend decline

in fandfil The company continues to focus
on qualty in recycling and delivery of its PPP/
EfW pipeline which I1s expected to dnve

the company's long-term profit growth

Notwithstanding the curment challenges,

I remain confident about the future success
of aur husiness The Group has strong
Iquidity and funding and I1s well postioned
for fujure growth In the best interests

of hargholders and cther stakeholders

Ken Harvey
Chamman

Pennon Group Plc
25 June 2013
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Dwectors' repart - Business review - Group overview

Our business model

How we generate and preserve value

Pennon’s business model is driven by 1ts strategy of promoting the success of the Group
for the benefit of shareholders, customers and other stakeholders through its focus on the
business areas of water and sewerage services, recycling, renewable energy generation
and waste management. We am to be a pre-eminent provider of customer services to high
standards of quality, efficiency and reliability, and to provide value for our shareholders.

Shareholder
returns

Pennon Group

|
I

Strong
governance
|
[ I
South West Water Viridor
L | |
N2/
™~ ~ M
Customer Financial Employee

satisfaction performance engagement

How we create value

We create value for our shareholders by developing our two environmental utility
infrastructure businesses, South West Water and Vindor, and by efficient financing
and strong management of the Group as a whole

South West Water Viridor

The water and sewerage services provider for Devon, Cormwall Focused on transforming waste into a resource, having

and parts of Dorset and Somersat, is focused on delvenng developed from being a traditional waste managemnent company
further efﬁc[enc'es' mproving opera“ng standards and p;wd]ng toca [eadlng UK mycllng. renewable energy and waste

a high qualty service to its customers management busness

South West Water's business model is based on delvenng Vindar's business model is based on graowing and adding

its ‘Pure Water, Pure Service and Pure Environment” strategy, value by maximising sale of high quality recyclate, growing its EfW
while ensunng long-term profitability, reslience and sustanabilty and PPP operations and exploiting the huge potential iInherent

In waste-based ranewabls energy generation
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How we manage our businesses to create value

Customer
satisfaction

Both South West
Water and Vindor

ars fully committed
to meeting the needs
of their customers
This Is key to the
success of each
business

How we respond

to our customers’
needs and assess
customer sahsfaction
15 set out on pages
18, 20, 21, 24 and 28
of the business review

Financial
performance

Our Group has set
challenging financal
targets aganst which
performance I1s
measured through
arange of key
performance indicators
(KPls) These KPls
include profit before tax
{before exceptional tems),
earnings per share
{pefore exceptional
items and deferred tax),
dvidend per share

and the interest rate

on average net debt

Our focus In setting
such targets s to
achieve sustanable
performance over the
short and long-term

Qur financial
performance is set
out n more detail
on pages 30-35

Shareholder
returns

We are committed to
delvenng sustanable
shareholder retums
An example of this

1S our policy to grow
the Group dvidend
by 4% above inflation
per annum up to the
end of 2014/15

How we operate and manage risks
Essential to achieving our strategic aims and creating value within our businesses
IS our operating framework which is based on the principles of good governance.

Our operating framework Includes a comprehensive and fully
embedded nsk management process which assists us In managing
our nsks and opportunities to deliver the Group's strategy

and the other essential elements of our business model

Strong
governance

Wa are aware that
our businesses can,
and do, have a
matenal impact

on the environment
and communitias

in which they operate
To address this

we take a responsiblg
and transparant
approach to
environmental, social
and governance
(ESG) matters

QOur sustanable
practices nct only
beneflt cormmunities,
but enable our
businesses to he
more successiul

More information
on our sustanability
actvties are set out
on pages 48-57

Employee
engagement

We know that

the success of our
Group 1s due to the
tadent, commitment
and hard work

of our employess
and we am to

be a responable
employer

We are focused on
ensuring ermployes
well-being, retention,
efficiency and
productivity

More information

on the ntiatves

we have introduced

to improve employse
engagemsnt in each
of our businesses

15 set out on pages 15,
20, 28, 54 and 59

Further information on our controt and nsk management
emaronment 1S descnbed on page 70 and our principal nsks

and uncertainties and how we miigate them are set out
on pages 36-47
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[xeclors' rapor - Business reviewy - Group overview

Strategic Q&A

Delivering on our strategy

2012/13 was a challenging 12 months for Pennon Group Director of Finance David Dupont,
Scuth West Water Chief Executive Chns Loughiin and Vindor Chief Executive Colin Drummond
discuss performance and outline their strategic approach to the main challenges they face

The Group policy Is to grow
the dividend by 4% above RPI

up to the end of 2014/15

Dawid Dupont, Group Director of Finance
Pennon Group

What were the highlights of the year

and how do they reflect Group strategy?
David Dupont

South West Water continued to perform
strongly both operationally and financially
towards achieving its targst for the K5 penod,
which is in ine with its strategy While Vindor's
results were iImpacted by the significant
reduction in recyclate pnces, reflecting world
economic condtions, it has made substantial
progress In pursuing strategic development
of ds energy from waste (EM)/Public Private
Partnership (PPP) pipeling

To support this mvestment, the Group

raised a record amount of new funding dunng
the year - £782 million in total — including

a £300 milion hybnd capital instrument
which strengthens the Group's balance

sheet as well as prowiding addiional funding
The Group ended the year with a record level
of cash and faciities totafing £1 15 bilion

Your dividend continues to be very
strong in the sector How long can

you sustain this performance?

DD

The Group policy Is to grow the dvidend
by 4% above RPI up to the end of 2014/15
This policy refiects the actual and expected
financial performance of both South West

Water and Vindor As usual the Board expects

to review the dmdend policy at the start of
the next South West Water regulatory review
pencd taking account of Ofwat's Price
Determination and projected growth from
Vindor's long-term contracts and EfAWV plants
which are expected to come on stream
around this tme

There 1s very substantial mvestment
going into Vindor. How will you fund it?
DD

At the year-end the Group had cash

and facities of £1 15 bilion (ncluding

£143 milion restncted cash) with £782 mulion
of new/renewed faciities secured dunng

the year The constructron phasa of Vindor's
committed EAV plants 1s now substantially
funded and we are continuing to talk

10 a wide range of finance providers

to source the remaining funding required

on a timely basis

South West Water achieved a strong
operatonal performance last year.
What were the key highlights

and how did you achieve them?
Chns Loughtin

Through our ongoing Invastment

In our assets and networks we continued
tc deliver outstanding drinking water quality,
meet our leakage target and reduce

the average length of water supply
Intarmuptions per customer

On the waste water side of the business
a targeted programme of mvestment

at 96 sites meant we achieved our

best ever compliance rates for waste
water treatment Also, whilst there was
an increase In Category 3 or ‘minor’
Incidents, iIrmprovements n our monstoning
systems and responss times helped

us to successfully avord any Category 1
or ‘senous’ pollution incidents and we
also saw a reduction in the number

of Category 2 or ‘significant’ incidents

Phasad Utiisaton of Remote Operating Systemns

Qur PURQS* project, which uses remote
technologies to manage processes

and operational staff from a central hub,
coniinues to help us Improve our efficiency
Meanwhite our iInvesiment in renewable
enargy Is also beanng frut with the amount
of energy generated through renewable
sources - most notabty our hydro turbines -
reaching ts highest ever lavel

2012 started with environmental drought
condrhions, but for most of the year
the South West experienced extreme
wet weather. How did this impact

on South West Water's operations
and how were they managed?

CL

Thanks to the use of pumped storage
dunng the pnor winter, Investment

in tha supply system in 2011 and careful
resource management, South Weast Water
was able o avoid any water restnctions
for the 16th consecutve year This was
despite the environmenital drought

that was declared in Apnl 2012

by the Environment Agency

In stark contrast Apnl 2012 through

to March 2013 has been classified as

a 'one In one hundred years' wet weather
event This had vanous implications for
our operations Including increased energy
usage due to the need for more waste
water pumping activity and an increase

in the numbser of sewer flooding ncidents
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In the case of the latter South West

Water worked alongside partner agencies,
Including councils and emergency

services, to minimise any disruption caused
In the long term 1t 15 our Intention to nvest

In a hotstic approach to the management

of waste water and floodng This will Include
traditional engingenng-based solutions
alongside cost effective steps to manage
excess surface water or rain water through
innovation in areas such as sustanable urban
drainage and ecosystemn management

The wet weather also highlighted the
importance of Investment N resliencs,

such as flood defences In 2011 we installed
flood protection measures at Pynes Water
Traatment Works which serves Exeter

This proved invaluable dunng the deluge

in the run-up to Chnstmas 2012 which saw
ths closure of the adjacent raway mainine

Why has South West Water

decided to embark on a £60 milhon
reinvestment programme to fund
further improvements to services

for customers? What will it iInvolve
and where will the company get the
money from to fund this investment?
CL

We want to share the benefits of our good
financial performance with our customers
by investing more where 1t 18 most needed
Investing now in our network and treatment
works to protect bathing water gualty,

will help minimise the nsk of these wital
beaches losing therr status, which would
have a senous knock-on effect on one

of the region’s man industnes — tounsm

So the am of our renvestment programme
18 to protect bathing water quality at key
tounst beaches, maintain nearly six
thousand kitometres of former private
sewers and help customers n the most
need This iInvestment inibally will be funded
from the efficiency savings that South West
Water has made in the current regulatory
period, having no impact on the average
household bill, which s reduced in 2013/14
following the implementation m Apnl

of the Govermment's £50 reduction

on household bills

How are you preparnng for the price
review which takes effect from 20157
What do you expect to be the key
investment drivers for the five-year
penod from 2015-20207

CL

Extensive customer and stakeholder
research and a range of on and offline
engagement actmty has been camed out
as part of South West Water's ‘WaterFuture'
campaign in order to find out therr pnonties
for the future This helped inform our
25-year WaterFuture outlook which was
published In December 2012 to outhine

our long-term amms and some of the steps
we plan on takuing dunng the next K penod
(2015-2020)

The man investment drvers for that penod
anse fror further improvements to and
protecton of bathing waters, the revised
Water Framework Diractive legislation,

the adaptaton to and mitigation of extreme
weather and cimate change, the need

to maintain our asset base, and the supply
and demand pressures from the population
growth foracast for our region

Consuttation 15 ongaing and our business
plan 1s being developed further in time for
subrnission to Ofwat in Decembear 2013

We are also targeting a holistic
approach to the prevention of poltution
and sewer flooding

How 1s South West Water responding

to the points raised by Jonson Cox,

the new Chairman of Otwat, In his
lecture ‘Observations on the regulation
of the water sector'?

CL

Mr Cox’s particular focus was on corporata
govemarce and transparency In respect

of companies In the private sector South
West Water 1s one of only a few hsted water
companies and, as such 1s already subject
to disclosurs on corporate govemance
through, and in closa operation with,

the Pannon Group Board To further promote
good govermance and transparency, South
West Water has established tts own audt
committee of the South West Water Board
and Is reviewing In detal the points raised

by Mr Cox In his lecture to ascertain whether
the company needs to undertake any further
achons to address the issues raised

South West Water was able
to avoid any water restnctions
for the 16th consecutive year

Chrnis Loughlin, Chief Executive
South West Water
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Dwectors' report - Business review - Group overview

Strategic Q&A
Continued

You have mdicated that the long-term
growth from Vindor's EfW/PPP
pipelne 1s expected to start to flow

in from 2014/15. What do you expect
for 2013/14 given the ongoing trend
decline in profits from landfill and the
current uncertainties in recycling?
Colin Drummond

Trading conditions for Vindor between
October to December 2012 were particularty
tough and results for the second half

of 2012/13 were down on the first half
Whilst recyclate pnces have recovered
somewhat from the lows of October

to December we remain cautious about
any further substantial increase

We believe we have faced up to the situation
head on and undertaken the necessary
actions to ensure that we are well placed

to manage future challenges to the business
going forward Our 2013/14 results wil
progressively show the benefit of the cost
reductions we have implemented n recycling,
whilst our landfill gas power generation
business will benefit In the second half

from the transfer of more of our histonc

Non Fossil Fuel Obligation (NFFC) contracts
to higher pnced Renewables Obligation

{RO) contracts

Vindor's EfW/PPP pipeline
15 expected to dnive the company’s
long-term profit growth

Colin Drummond, Chief Executive
Vindor

There were significant exceptional
charges in respect of Vindor in 2012/13.
Does this iImply that there is a change
In strategy or that the previous strategy
was wrong?

cb

No The exceptional charges pnmarty

flow from our strategy and also reflect our
speedy response to greater than expected
weakness in UK and world economic
conditons Our strategy recognises that
landfillis a declning business, this 1s the:
basis for our growth in recyciing, where wa
are now the UK leading operator of matenals
recyclng fachties (MRFs), and n EfW
projects, where our pipeline of projects

Is expected to make us a UK market leader
with over 15% market share by 2020

As aresult we have recognised a hon

cash impairment to reflect declining landfil
volumes and the fact that some of our
landfills will not now be filled to the degree
previously envisaged — indeed on three

of them {Ardley, Beddington and Dunbar)
we plan to bulld EAW faciies We have
also increased our landiil provisions

to reflect both the revised final landforms
now projected and the latest Ermronment
Agency gudance In addition, though

we had expected a decline in commodity
pnces, the actual {all was much more severe
than we {and perhaps many others) had
expected This has necesstated closure

of certain uneconomic MRFs, redundancies
and non cash asset Impairnertt in our
recycling business

Viridor has made significant progress
In growing its pipeline of energy from
waste projects. Do you see a danger
of over-capacity in the UK?

cD

We have carefully evaluated projected
demand and competing capacity for
gach of our planned EW facilties and are
confident that we will fill them profitably
With landfill tax set to reach £80 per tonne
In Apnl 201 4, large scale EW facilities

of the type we are bulding will be the low
cost way of disposing of residual waste
They will also be the UK’s lowest cost sourca
of base-load distnbuted renewable energy
which will assist In addressing the UK’s
Increasng energy shortage

In total we estimate that, on the basis

of government policies and trends

i recycling, there will be a need for around
20 milion tonnes of EAW capacity in the UK
by 2020 When we review current competing
projects and take account of planning
bamers, financing difficuliies and the lack

of further large base-load municipal
contracts, we calculate that there will

be a capactty shortfall of up to 25%

Of the 2 5 milion tonnes capacity we

are committed {0 operating by 2020,

more than half (1 3 mihon tonnes) 1s already
backed by long-term municipal contracts
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Do you see nsks in delivering

the large energy from waste pipeline?
CcD

We have an enviable pipeline of EAV/PPP
contracts The main challengs is delvery
Our policy 1s to have well protected

and carefully constructed, fixed-prce
contracts with established contractors
providing proven technology We recognise
that as our pipeline increases so does

the absoiute level of nsk and we have grown
our crganisation accordingly, Including

the appointment tn 2012/13 of a Capital
Projects and Engineenng Drector
{previously a director in the nuclear industry)
The main nsk we see ts delay on the part

of our contractors, agamst which we have
contractual protection which we will call
upon i we have to

Are you sorry to be retinng

as Chief Executive and why now?

CcD

| am somy to be retinng but now is the nght
time for me and for the company Over

the past few years Vinder has won the
major EfV/PPP contracts and achieved
the associated planning pemmissions which
ars expected to grow its EBITDA by £100
miliion over the nest four years At the
same time we have bsen mplementing

a management succession plan to manage
the retrement of a number of highty skilled
and long serving directors, Vinder now

has a new team of five expenenced
executive directors in addition to myself,
alongside three non-executive directors
with significant relevant skils | am two
years beyond my nomal retirerment date
and therefore my retirement 1s now
appropnate However, | am dehghted

and prvieged 10 be able to continue

to contribute to Vinder in the different

role of charman of the Vindor Board

What have been the major changes

in Vindor over the past 20 years?

CcD

Vindor has been transforrned from a local
South West waste collection and landfil
company {¢ one of the UK's lsading
recycling, renewable energy and waste
management companies Dunng the first
tert years we established and capitalised
on our position as a leading player in

the landfill market in key regions of the UK
From 2002, whilst landfill remaned a very
profitable business, we were able to achieve
significant further profit growth from the sale
of renewable energy generated from

the gas produced by our landfills, growing
our associated generation capactty from
28MW to a cumrent 107MW In 2005,

with projected steep nses in landfil tax,

we recognised the commercial opportunity
represented by the UK’s move towards
greater recycling and gradually established
ourselves as the UK's leading operator

of MRFs

More recently we have focused on providing
an alternative to landfill for final disposal

of residual waste which cannot be

recycled, thes I1s the basis of our Investment
programme which will see Vindor become
one of the {argest operators of EfW facilities
in the UK and a major supplter of renewable
energy with a total capacity of over 300MW

Wa have become a more sustainable
bustiness In emvironmantal, sooal

and economic terms, embedding

the care and enhancement of the
environment and community benefit
Into our business

This 1s iustrated by our obtaining

ISO 8001, ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001
accredrtations and in 2012/13 achieving
1SO 50001 energy managerment
accreditaticn and being ranked ‘Bronze'
in the Business in the Commurity (BaC})
annual Corporate Responsibity Index

We have created jobs, Increasing

from around 200 employees to over
3,000 (in addrtion to the substantial
numbers smployed by our contractors
and subcontractors inour £1 5 billon
capttal mvestment programme), though
we have had to implement some painfil
redundancies over the past year

QOur health and safety performance has
generally mproved but more 1s stil to be
done to achigve our geal of zero accidents
We have made significant progress

in amployee development with our extensive
apprenticeships, a very successiul graduate
programme and most recently the Vindor
in-house degres (inconcevable In the waste
industry a few years ago) However, together
with the rest of our sector, we lag behind

in gender dversity with few women
employed at sentor levels In the company
and none on the Vindor Board We have
plans in place to address this
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Dwectors' report - Business review

South West Water
Focused on operational excellence

Operational highlights

* 16 consecutive years without water restnctions
* L eakage control on target

» Excellent drinking water quality

* Improved customer service

» Best ever waste water tfreatment performance
» Highest ever renewable energy output

Notable achievements

* £60 millon of renvestment announced

* New Customer Relaticnship Management
System rolled out

» Expansion of services for business customers

e Winner of the ICAEW Finance for the Future
Award (large business category) and the
Envronmental Award at the Utility Industry
Achievements Awards

» Extensive customer and stakeholder
engagement ahead of 2014 Pnce Review
(WaterFuture)

* Pioneered advanced dnnking water
treatrment technology

1.68m

Resident population

29 641

Drinking water Waste water
treatment works treatment works

15,200km 15,600km

Water mains Sewers
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Strategy and performance

South West Water remains committed to its Pure Water, Pure Service and Pure Environment
vision The company stnves to achieve the highest standards possible in every sphere

of ts actmty, delivenng efficiency through innovation, meeting the needs of those it serves and
meeting its responsibilities to the environment, while keeping its costs as low as possible

Pure Water
Praviding a reliable supply
of safe, clean dnnking water

Performance

Top qualty dnnkang water

and leakage control and a 16th
consecutive year without
dnnking water restnctions

* Populabon Equivalent Sanvtary Compliance 2012413 99 88% (2011/12 99 57%)

Pure Service
Delvenng responsive

and cost-effective services
that meet customers’ needs

Performance

Improved customer satisfaction,
expansion of business services
under ‘Source for Business'
and metenng over 75%

of domestic customers
Robustness of asset base
flustrated in the mantenance
of 'stable senviceabity’

Numenc Compliance 2012/13 97 1% (2011/12 92 1%)

Pure Environment
Protecting the world ancund
us through sustanable actions
and intiatives

Performance

Best ever waste water treatment
compliance rates”, renewable
energy gereration at a record
high, zero major poliution
Incidents and a reduction

In sarous pollution incidents

Financial

Making resilient business
decisions while outperforming
the regulatory contract

Performance

Efficiency targets exceeded
Operating profit Increased and
ngorous cost control achieved
Capital programme efficencies
reman on track

To view our onling annual report

Www pennonannualreport.co uk/2013
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Owectors” report - Busness revew - South West Water

Business review

Business performance

Against a backdrop of extreme weather events ranging from environmental drought to floeding,
South West Water continued to deliver solid operational performance and strong financial results
in the year while raising its standards of customer service

Increased revenue and ngorous cost

control were underpinned by the continued
delivery of efficiencies resulting in operating
profit Increasing by £10 5 millon to £215 2
milion Ar overall reduction in demand

of aimost 3% and the effsct of customers
switching to a metered tanff was offset

by tanff Increases and new connections

with reveriue nsing by 5 2% to £498 6 miion
Profit before tax (excluding exceptional net
Income) increased by 7 5% to £152 1 million

The company has front-end loaded delvery
of the required 2 8% per annum average
cost effliciencies with an average 4 1%

per annum delvered in the first three years
of this K penod (2010-2015) The K5
efficiencies to date total £18 6 milion

with £3 5 millon of that total delivered in the
yaar through a combinahicn of the following
» improved operational ways of working
from the integration of customer services
rmanagement and asset improvements
through the PUROS programme

energy procurement and usage —
energy efficiency schemes alongside
addtional powar generation through
renewabla sources

rationaising administration

and support services

nght-sourcing and innovatve

contracting — continued tendenng

to achieve the ‘nght pnce’

Caprtal expendrture for the year was
£116 5 milion compared with £130 8
milionin 2011/12

Major investments were made in the
improvemnent of waste water treatment
works in order to achieve complance,

sewer rehabiitation, and clean water network
Improvements targeting reliability, water
quaty and secunty of supply The pnvate
sewer adoptron in October 2011 - which
increased South West Water's sewer
rietwork by 50% — also necesstated

£6 7 milicn of addibonal expenditure

South West Water's main investment
focus continues to be on the mantenance
of existing assets alongside Improvements
necessary to
+ enhance high standards of water
and sewerage services that mest
customer expectations
Increase the restience of the nfrastructure
debver snvironmental Improvermnents
= mest emerging legislative

and regulatory obligations
= enhance sustanabilty

of water rasources

Phased Utlisation of Remote Operating Systems

In previous K periods South Wast Water
has histoncally shared the bengfits of financial
outperformance with customers through
rernvestment of efficiencies and accelerating
caprtal expendture The company’s strong
operational and financial outperformance
In K5 to date will enable tt to reinvest
around £60 milllon on iImpreving senices to
customers through
* upgrading assets in key bathing waters
by accelerating captal investment
* mantaning and enhancing sewers
that were adopted as part of the private
sewer transfer N October 2011
¢ tackling customer affordability through
debt ntiatives

South West Water continued
its upward trend of custormer
senvice Improvement

as measured by Ofwat's
Service Incentive Mechanism

Chris Loughlin, Chief Executive
South Wast Water
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Operational performance

Pure Water

Drinking water quality

In 2012 South West Water once agan
achieved a near perfect standard

(99 97%) for the qualty of its dnnking
water as measured by the Dnnking Water
Inspectorate's Mean Zonal Compliance
(MZC) measure This success can be
attnbuted to the company’s ongong
investment in the mantenance and
improvement of both dnnking water
treatment processes and the mans network
South West Water 1s also committed to
acddressing any taste, odour or discolouration
Issues —m 2012/13 this iIncluded pioneenng
steps taken to utlise advanced oxidisation
processes at Drft Water Treatment Works

in West Cornwall, a first in the UK

Water resources

Despite some of the dnest condihions in
decades (a state of 'environmental drought'
was declared i md Apnl 2012 by the
Ervronment Agency), South West Water
was able to continue delivenng unrestncted
supples to 1ts customers for the 16th
consecutive year

Reservor levels remained healthy
throughout the dry penod as a resutt

of pumped storage dunng wanter 2011/12,
investment In the suppty system in 2011
and careful resource management

The extreme wet weather that followed
from Apnl 2012 to early 2013 resulted

In reservair storage levels subsequently
reaching near full capactty South West
Water 1s therefore confident that no water
restnctions will need to be put in place
dunng 2013/14

Leakage control

South West Water's performance in
minmising leakagea remaned on target
The company expanded its pressure
management actmty to reduce the nsk

of falures in the network, Increased its use
of remate technologies to improve

the efficiency of its leak detecton teams
and took steps to improve the analysis

of flow data in order that potental problems
could be identified more quickly

Upstream Thinking®
sustamable water management
South West Water's flagship programme
to improve raw water qualty and natural
water storage In the landscape continued
in the year The "‘Upstream Thinking’
nhatwves, which target a reduction in water
treatment costs, iInclude the restoration
of wetland areas on tha regicn’s moors
and schemes to reduce the Impact
of faming and industnal actmty on spegcific
catchment areas The actions delvered
by the programme in K5 to date include
* over 300 hectares of land restored
¢ working with farmers across the
catchments, supporting investment at
161 farns
* 17 studies/investigations
completed on further catchrment areas
to inform future Investments at 2014
Penodic Review

The project has won several awards
since its inception In 2012 these included
an inaugural Insttute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales
(ICAEW) ‘Finance for the Future' Award
(large business category) and the
‘Ervironmental Award' at the Utility
Industry Achievement Awards

Pure Service

Customer satisfaction

South West Weter continued tts upward
trend of customer service Improverment
as measured by Ciwat's Service Incentive
Mechanism (SIM) with a 5% increase

on the previous year (2011/12 66 9,
201243 705 SIM takes into account

a range of customer service aspects
including the number of wntten complaints
recaved and the results of custormer
safisfaction surveys This year's score
represents an 88% improvement since
the start of K&

The number of wntten complaints has halved
dunng KS and the numioer of escalated
complants has been reduced by 84%

The results reflect both mprovements

made at an cperational level and steps

taken to improve customers’ expenence —

In July 2012 South West Water introduced

a new Customer Management System

to enhance customer satisfaction

Metering

Bunng the year South Wast Water

Installed over 12,800 meters, taking

the total parcentage of domestic customers
who are metered to over 75%

As part of ks metenng strategy South Wast
Water began a programme of SMART
metering in 2012/13 These transmit real-
tme information about water usage, thersby
improving the accuracy and efficiency

of the billing system while also gvng
customers a better understanding

of how much water they are using

The £50 Government Payment

First announced n autumn 2011

and implemented for 2013/14 charges,
the £50 Government Payment — an annual
bill recuction of £50 for all eligible househcld
customers —1s a recognition of the historic
‘unfarmess’ to customers associated

with the bill mpact of South West Water's
environmental clean-up over the past

two decades In a region that has one third
of the UK's beaches but only around 3%
of its resident population

The announcement was welcomed

by customers, regional media and MPs,
many of whom had actively campaigned,
alongside South West Water, for Government
achon on this Issus

Business customers

South West Water continued to expand
its relationships with commercial and
cther non-domestic customers {e g local
councts, hospitals and other public bodes)
Against the backdrop of difficuli economic
circurmstances, the acvce and assistance
provided by South West Water avallable
through ts ‘Source for Business' intiative
has been well recaved by the region’s
business community

The Source for Business services include
dedicated contact routes to business
customer specialists, bill validation,

a named account manager for larger
organisations, project management,
laboratory and analytical services, water
and process efficency advice, and advice
on capttal solutions
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Dwectors’ report - Busness revew - South West Water

Business review
Continued

Pure Environment

Waste water treatment

In 2012 South West Water's long-

standing endeavours to raise

the standard of the waste water it

returns to the environment were reflected

In its best ever compliance score of 99 98%
for the percentage of papulation served

by waste water treatment works mesting
the required critena (Population Egqurvalant
Santary Complance)

Another Cfwat measure that looks

at a much wider range of complance
parameters is Numenc Complianca
of wasta water freatment works
{which gives equal waighting to small
and large treatment works)

South West Water performed similarly
well against this compliance measure,
achieving a record high of 97 1%

This impraverment In performance can

be attnbuted to a programme of targeted
investment in waste water treatment
processses at 98 of the company’s
operational stes over the past 18 months

Bathing waters

Desprte the extreme wet weather

and ts assoclated run-off and floodings,
133 out of 146 bathing waters (91%)
acheved the European mandatory

or ‘gocd' standard and 88 bathing waters
(60%) achieved the guidetine or ‘excellent’
standard for the 2012 bathing season
South West Water 1s committed

to delvenng sustainable environrmental
Improvements to the region’s bathing waters
In 2012/13 investments in this area included
storm tanks, fitration Improvements

and cleaning process enhancements

In 2012 South West Water’s
long-standing endeavours

to raise the standard of the waste
water it returns to the environment
were reflected in its best ever
compliance score

Chns Loughlin, Chief Executive
South West Water

Pollution

The mpact of flooding and extreme

wet weather contnbuted to an increase

In the total number of pollution Incdents
comparex] with the previous year However,
while there was a nse in the number of Ofwat
minor (Category 3) ncidents, South West
Water saw a significant reduction in the
number of significant (Category 2} ncidents
compared with the previous calendar year
{2012 4,2011 15)

It 1s South West Water's am to ensure
that no harmful pollution ncidents occur
It therefore continues to mvest in the
mamntenance and iImprovements
necessary to reduce the nsk of poliution

Flooding

In a ysar of abnormally wet weather,

nver flows and grouncwater levels both
reached exceptionally high levels, Increasing
the ikelhood of flooding for many homes
and businessas

The number of nternal sewer flooding
incidents (an incident in which sewage
enters a property) totalled 266 Inevitably

a high proportion of these incidents were
caused by the sewerage system becoming
overwhelmed by the sheer volume

of rain water

Renewable energy

In 2012/13 excellent progress was made
towards iIncreasing renewable energy
generation, with more power from renewable
sources generated than ever before

In total, 19 3GWh was harnessed from

a combination of solar, wind, hydro

and combined heat and power (CHPF)

from waste

The extreme wet weather, while serving

to increass energy demand, was highly
advantageous for South West Water's
hydro power sites The company continuas
to invest In renewable technology

People

Once agan the dedication, professionaksm
and support of all South West Water's
employees has been wial In achieving

a successful outcome in a challenging

year The company expresses fis gratitude
to every employee for ther contnbution

to the business dunng the yaar

South West Water daveloped a new
‘People Strategy’, focused on attracting,
retaning and developing its workforce

The company's am is to be the 'Employer
of Choice' In the South West and it provides
employess with the opportunity to develop
ther careers through a number of schemes
These Include supplementary traning through
its Management Academy, customer
service skils traning, NVQ programmes
and a development prograrmme for

the senior managsement group

Eight new apprentices were recruted
through South West Water's apprenticeship
programme, developed in partnership

with South Devon College

The company also made headway with
Improving ts health and safety record,
achieving its lowest ever RIDDOR ncidence
rate (Reporting of Injunes, Diseasas,

and Dangerous Occurrences) of 568

per 100,000 employees for 2012
compared with 1,628 for 2011~

Key relationships

Regulators and others

South West Water actively engages

with a wide range of ervronmental

and regulatory stakeholders It takes steps
to ensure that communication 1s handled

In the most appropnate way and that

the information the company provides

is high gualty and consistent It uses a range
of commercial channels ncluding tradional
and online platforms to communicate with
ts stakeholders

The company contributes to developing
issues through its membership of Water

UK, the industry trade body, and works

with the Consumer Council for Water to
ensure that customers' 1ssues and concems
are addressed and a full understanding

of the company’s actmties is achiaved

* Changa n RIDDOR reporting criterda
{sea page 53 for detals)
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WaterFuture customer panel

As part of the 2014 Penodic Review
process, following gudance from Ofwat,
South West Water has created an
Independent 'WaterFuture' customer
challenge panel, compnsing a group

of representatves from vanous regulatory,
stakeholder and public bodies Its role

In the coming year wilt be to ensure

the company's busingss plan adequately
reflects an understanding of customers'
pnorities and that its planned actmties
are socially, economically and
environmentally sustainable

Procurement and suppliers

South West Water's procurement

strategy Is focused on partnenng

and strategic allances with 60 key
supplers who account for the large majorty
of expenditure The company includes all
aspects of sustanabilty in ts procurement
processes and this is a central theme

of its procurement strategy for its supply
chans and support of the regional economy
With the start of the K5 regulatory penod
the company intreduced &n innovative
‘rmixed econormy’ mode! to source its capital
programme  This means using a significant
number of smaller local contractors

o prowide speciakised senvices as well

as developing long-term relationships

with larger supply chan partners

No supplier (revenus)} accounts for more
than 5% of the company’s revenue

and South West Water sources all ts
purchases from competitve markets

Looking ahead

South West Water 1s well placed

to continue delvenng Improvements

in operational efficiency and customer
service for the remander of the K5 penod

The company 1s currently prepanng for

the 2014 Pnce Review which wil determine
the nvestrnent programme ard assocrated
charges for 2015-2020

Irn December 2012 the company publishad
its 25-year outlook statement which was
designed to provide context to the steps

it plans to take in 2015-2020 Published
onkne and widely distnbuted to customers
and stakeholder groups, it was published

In two formats — “‘What's in the Pipeline 201 5-
2040' (a consumer-onentated overview)

and ‘WaterFuture Our Vision 2015-2040"
(an extended version for audiences requinng
more specific detal)

An independantly-charred ‘WaterFuture’
Customer Challenge Panel’ ts also being
consulted on South West Water's 25-year
outlook staterment The Panel compnses
consumer representatives and customer
and community stakeholders Its role

15 to ensure that the company’s final business
plan reflects a sound understanding

of customer and stakeholder opinion

and that the proposals for the 2015-2020
period are economically, socialy

and environmentally sustainable

The 25-year outlook statement reflects the
results of the research to date on customer
and stakeholder pnonties It also explores
keay investment dnvers for the 2015-2020
penod Thesa include
+ responding to changes in legislation,
including mproverments to protect key
bathing waters in the region and mesting
the required standards of the Water
Framework Directive
s the mportance of ensunng assets
and networks can cops with extreme
weather and climate change
+ the nead to mantan and replace assets,
where necessary, to prevent fault or falure
» the need for a hohstic approach
to the prevention of poliution
and sewer flooding
* future supply and demand needs

South West Water’s 2015-2020
business plan will be submitted

to Ofwat in December 2013

For further mformation wisit

www southwestwater co ukAwaterfuture
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Dwectors’ report - Business review

Viridor

Investing in renewable energy and resource efficiency

Operational highlights

» Strong progress in long-term Public Private
Partnership (PPP)Yenergy from waste (EfW) strategy
» Significant headwinds in recycling and ongoing
trend decline in landfill affecting 2012/13 results
» Aggressive action to reduce costs
» Exceptional charges of
— £99 millon asset iImparment (onmanly landfill)
and onerous contracts
— £90 millon Increased landfill provisions
These totalled £150 million net of tax

Notable achievements

* Financia close achieved for Glasgow Design,
Buid, Finance & Operate (DBFO) project
and planning permission gained for associated
Recycling and Renewable Energy Centre -
construction commenced
* Financial close achieved for South London
Waste Partnership PPP and planning permission
gained for associated Beddington EfW
* Planning approval and financial close achieved
for Peterborough PPP - construction to start imminently
¢ Dunbar EfW planning enhanced to cover all of Scotland
* Preferred bidder status achieved for South East Wales,
residual waste PPP (Prosiect Gwyrdd) — associated
Thdent Park EfW construction underway

327 7.2
Operating facilities Million tonnes
of material handled
27
Materials recycling 34
facilities Landfill gas power plants

3 operationaI16 under construction
Energy from waste (EfW) plants
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Strategy and performance

Viridor is at the forefront of transforming waste. The company aims to impress
its customers by showing them how it can put waste into action, transforming
it into high quality recyclate, raw materials and energy. it will do this

by empowering all Viridor people to be safe, professional and enterprising
within a business always striving to be environmentally, economically

and socially sustainable.

Viridor’s strategy is focused on transforming waste
The company is bullding its business through a combination of secunng long-term contracts,
drving quality (and hence pnce realisation) In recycing and growing capacity In waste-

denved renewable energy

Long-term profit growth 1s expected to be dnven by its PPP contracts and EfW projects

Performance - contracts and energy from waste Performance - recycling
Mayjor progress in long-term PPP/EfW projects including * Significant current headwinds n recycling pnces
* Glasgow City 25-year Residual Waste Treatment Services » Aggressive action to reduce costs

DBFO, Peterborough and South London PPP contracts » Focus on qualty and adding value

secured and Preferred Bidder for 'Frosiect Gwyrdd'
(South East Wales) PPP

* Runcorn Phases 1 and 2, Ardiey, Exeter, Tndent Park (Cargiff)
and Glasgow EfWs and Walpole Anaerobic Digestion (AD) facility
—all under construction

+ Lakeside EAW performing above expectations

Pennon Group Pic Annual Report 2013
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Dwectors’ report - Business review - Viridor

Business review

Strategy and UK context

European and UK waste and resource management strategies and policies are focused
on the principles of resource efficiency, maximising recychng and recovery, and landfill
diversion. EU member countnes have increasingly tough targets for the diversion

of biodegradable municipal waste from landfill sites. This will be achieved In the UK

by continued Increases in local authonty and commercial and industrial recycling rates

and by energy recovery from residual waste. The latter 1s predominantly a form of biomass

and 1s a significant form of renewable energy. Waste already accounts for approaching
2% of total UK electncity production {through landfill gas power generation and energy

from waste facllities)

The UK Government's man mechanism

for diverting both municipal and commercial
and ndustnal wastes from landfill

and incentivising recycling and energy
recovery, remains Landfilt Tax The Government
has confirmed the contnuation of the Increase
in landifil tax of £8 a year, nsing to a total

of £80 per tonne from 1 Apnl 2014

This increase will further enhance the long-
term economics of recycling and energy
recovery and 1s supported by a range

of other policy and legistative measures

Within the wider sustanability agenda,

many businesses and other organisations are
also locking to Improve their environmental
and business performance through ncreased
recycling and resource efficiency

All of these elements underline the key service
objectves and long-term trends in the UK
resource and waste managernent sector

and the clear customer demand that Vindor
has been anticipating, upon which it has
proactvely strengthened tts business

strategy and services

Vindor's clearly stated strategy within this
context is to add value by transferming
waste through recychng and waste-based
rengwable energy generation Vindor has
substantially increased ts recycling business
over the past five years to a total of around
two milion tonnes per annum The next
phase of its strategy involves substantial
growth in EAWV capactty Vindor 1s targeting
over 15% market share by 2020 with

a network of strategic facilbies in operation,
under construction or planned At present
there 1s abeut six millon tonnes of EAW
capactty In the UK and # i1s estimated that
20 mullton tonnes of capacity will be required
by 2020 to meet the Government's landfill
diversion targets There 1s Ikely to be
significant under capacity In the UK by 2020
compared with projected demand Vindor
believas that up to 6% of UK electnoity
could come from waste sources by 2020

Vindor believes that up to 6%
of UK electneity could come
from waste sources by 2020

Colin Drummond, Chief Executive
Vindor
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Business performance

Revenue was down 7 5% to £704 milkon

Before exceptional charges Vindor's
eamings before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortisation (EBITDA) for the year
decreased by £32 4 million (29 4%) to £77 9
milion PBIT fell £32 @ million 1o £30 8
millon PBIT plus jont ventures decreased
by £29 3 milion {39 0% to £45 9 milion

as the increased contribution from joint
ventures was more than offset by the declina
in landfil and recycling Profit before tax

and exceptional charges decreased £211
milion to £36 5 milkon, ncluding the benefit
of reduced nterest from intra group funding

From 2007/08 until the first hatf of 2011/12,
the fast growth in profits from recycling

had more than offset the decline in annual
landfill profits As noted previously, however,
recyclate pnces have fallen back sharply
from the peak reached in the first half

of 2011/12 refiecting world economic
condtions including weakness In the
Eurozone economies and uncertanty
about the speed of growth In China

Vindor responced swiftly with an aggressve
restructunng programme particularty in ts
recycling business and in 2012/13 closed/
mothballed six of its facilities and made

152 redundancies This and other tems
gsenerated savngs of about £13 milkon
across all recycling operations which were
enough to offset about 35% of the pnce
declne In tandem with the significant
downtum in recycling profits UK landfill
volumes continue to decling, in ine with

the ongoing trend, as a result of Governrment
policy and a weak UK economy Recycling
revenues per tonne have recovered a liitle
from therr lows of October to Decermnber
2012, however they remain significantly
below the first half of 2011/12 levels

On the posttive side Vindor has continued

to make very strong progress on Its strategic
expanston into the energy from waste (EVV}
and Public Private Partnership (PPP) market
EfW will represent the low-cost solution

for disposing of residual waste fwhich

15 currently landfilled) when landfil tax
reaches £80 per tonne in Apnl 2014

It will also be one of the UK’s lowest cost
and most effective sources of base-load,
distnbuted renewable energy at a time
when the UK I1s facing an ncreasing energy
shortage and projected long-term energy
pnce nses Dunng the year major new
contracts were signed for South London,
Glasgow and Psterborough and Vindor
was appointed as prefemed bidder for

the South East Wales PPP Six EfW projects
are currently under construction and a new
Capttal Projects and Engineenng Director
has been appointed to lead the delvery

of tha programme

Capital expendriture for the year, including
construction spend on Sevice concession
arrangaments, was £323 milion (2011412
£143 mitior) of which £292 millon was
for Vindor growth projects (argely Efw)
with the balance being manntenance

of existing assets

PPP and EfW projects already enhance
the bottom line and committed projects
are expected to contnbute more than £100
millon to Vindor's EBITDA within four years

Desprte the continuing challenging UK
and globel economic conditions, Vindor
remains corvinced that embracing the
sustanabiity agenda is an effactiva drver
for long-term growth Tha company

1s confident that rts strategy will continue
1o dnve tong-term growth and produce value
for Vindor and s stakeholders Recycling
will be key to Vindor's profits in the next
couple of years, with long-termn growth
expected to be dnven by a growing PPP
centract and EfW pipeline

Exceptional charges

As a result of the continued weakness
In recyclate pnces and the continuing
reduction in landfill volumes Vindor has
reviewed the camying values of some
of ts assets The company has also
re-assessed the expected costs

of landfill prowisions

In response o landfill trends and its own
EfW development programme {ncluding
EfW plants at its Ardiey, Beddington

and Dunbar landfills), Vindor reviewed

tts long-term site ives Post 2020 t expects
to have a network of three strategically
located landfils Of the current 61 5 miflion
cubic metres (mf} of landfill voud, it 15 expected
that around 32 milion m? including Ardley;
Beddington and Dunbar) will no lenger

be filled

An exceptional charge of £99 miflon

has been recognised to wite-down

tha camying values of property, plant

and equpment, pnmanly in landfil, but
also reflecting the company's expectations
on recyclate pnces and the mpact

of onerous contracts This charge has

o cash impact

The company has also reviewed its landfill
aftercare and restoration provistoning costs
to reflect revised final land forms and has
made a re-assessment of the aftercare
penod (ncreased from 30 to 80 years)
based upon independent external advice
This resufted in an Increase 1N provisions

of £90 miflion, which has no Immediate
cash impact

The exceptional charges above totalled
£150 milion net of tax
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Drectors’ report - Business rewew - Viridor

Business review
Continued

Investment

lnvestments in the future capabiiies

and strength of Vindor's busmess included
capital expanditure of £323 milion, of which
£292 million was for growth projects (largely
EfA) This investment is part of the ongoing
£1 5 bilkon programme committed to
deliverng essential nfrastructure which

will make a substantial contnbution

{o energy and rescurce secunty In the UK

Vindor continued to invest in targeted
acguistions in 2012/13 and purchased
two companies, JWT Holdings bimited
and Pulp Fncbon Limited, for a combined
value of around £15 0 milicn These
acquistions will add value and support the
company's racycling and EfW strategies

Recycling

The recycling market n the UK1s reaching
maturtty and 15 affected by world commadity
prices Difficutt trading conditions are resulting
N a compettive shake-out taking place and
Vindor 1s well positioned to benefit from this

During the year recycling volurmes
traded increased by 5 6% to 1 9 milion
tonnes {71,000 tonnes of the increase
from acquistions) The average recychng
revenue of £99 per tonne from gate fees
and recyclate sales in 2012/13 was
significantly down on last year’s figure

of £118 per tonne which benefited
particularty from last year's strong first half
Recyclate revenues per tonne appear

to have stabilised, having recovered

a litle from therr lows of October to
December 2012, but remain significantly
below first half 2011/12 levels

The outcome of a recent judicial review
confirms DEFRA's mterpratation of EU
recycling regulatory requirements, supporting
commingled collection and centralised
processing at matenals recycling facilities
{MRFs) where most practicable and where
there are the appropnate qualty controls
This 1s In Iine with the predominant Vindor
service mode! Vindor now has the largest
MRF capacity in the UK

Contracts and collection

Profits were stable across the 16

municipal contracts (the more significant
ones inciude Lancashire, Glasgow, Lakeside,
Manchester, Somerset, West Sussex

and Bedfordshire (last full year)) and the
Thames Water contract

Profits in the collection business were

down reflecting reduced volumes and pnce
pressure due o current market conditions
Vindor's commercial and industnal collection
fieet plays an increasing role n feeding

the company’s recyching and EAW plants

Renewable energy

Energy can be viably recoverad from waste
In two ways, either wia gas utitsation (notably
landfil gas and through anaerotxic digestion
(AD)} or controlled combustion (in EIW plants
and similar facities, some of which may be
a part of combined heat and power (CHP)
schemes) Energy recovery from waste
currently accounts for around 20% of total
UK renewable energy {the butk from landfill
gas and the balance from combustion)
equating to approaching 2% of total UK
elactncity production

Vindor's landfill gas power generation output
increased by a further 7% to 618 Gigawatt
hours (GWH) (2011/12 576GWh), reflecting
intensiva management focus and 1s now

at ts peak Average prices fell sightly
reflecting the reduced Renewables Obligation
Buyout Recycle (ROBOR) fund payment
element of Renewables Oblgation Certificate
(ROC) prices Total landfill gas power
generation operational capacity rermaned
unchanged at 107MW, (excluding 3MW
capacty at sub-contract stes in Suffolk) The
proportion of operational capacity eligible for
ROCs remaned at 74% with the remaining
26% being on {lower priced) NFFO contracts
Vindor's NFFO contracts end in tranches
after which the capacity for all Vindor's stes
will transfer to ROCs (about 60% will move
across 1N 2013/14 with the balance in the
period up to 2016/17)

As well as the 107MW of landfill gas capacity,
Vindor has a further 30MW of renewable
energy capacity across its Bolton EfW facility
and its share of the Lakeside EAW facility and
Greater Manchester AD operations

In addrition to the above operaticnal projects,
Viridor 1s pursung a number of other

EfW cpportunities to prowvide a long-term
alternative to landfill disposal of residual
waste as noted above These will also
provide signdicant amounts of renewable
energy S EfW plants are already under
construction on fixed prce contracts —
Runcorn Phases 1 and 2 , Cardiff, Exeter,
Avrdley, Oxdordshire and Glasgow, and one 1s
due to start imminently In Peterborough

Vindor and its partners have a total
operational, under construction

and committed capacty of 2 5 milion tonnes,
of which 1 3 milion tonnes 1s backed by
long-term base-load municipal contracts

it has a further O 6 millon tonnes of capacity
with planning permission

Since the start of 2012/13 Vindor has made
significant further progress N developing its
pipeline of long-term PPP and EfW projects
* financial dose achieved for the

Glasgow Design Build Finance Qperate
project {Juty 2012) and planning
application for the associated Recycling
and Renewable Energy Centre approved
(January 2013) - construchon commenced
financial close achieved for the South
London Waste Partnership PPP
(November 2012) and planning
permission achieved for the associated
Beddington EfW facility (May 2013)
planning approval (January 2013)

and financial close (February 2013)
achieved for the Peterborough PPP
construction of the EfW faciity

1o start imminently

prefered bidder achieved for the South
East Wales residual wasta project (Prosiect
Gwrydd) (March 2013)

Cunbar EfW planning enhanced to cover
all of Scotland {October 2012)
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Joint ventures

Total jont ventures’ contnbution (compnsing
both Lakeside and Vindor Laing (Greater
Manchester} (VLGM)), which consists

of interast on shareholder loans and share
of prcfit after tax, rose 31% to £15 1 milion
(2011412 £11 5 mition)

Lakeside

The first of Vindor's EMV projects continues
to perform very strongly and 1s ghead of
managemant expectations The 2012/13
contnbution was £7 2 milion (2011/12 £5 1
milkcn), interast recenable on shareholder
loans was unchanged at £1 4 million,

and the share of profit after tax from
Lakeside was £5 8 milion {up £2 1 milion on
the prevous vear) reflecting strong

waste Inputs and electnoity generation

Vindor Laing (Greater Manchester)
The 25-year Greater Manchester Waste
PH contract (being delivered through
VLGM) 15 the UK's largest ever combined
waste and renewable snergy project

The company Is a joint venture between
Vindor and John Laing Infrastructure

As part of the VLGM contract a separate
contractor was mandated to constuct 43
facities Operation of the associated facilties
{(both existing faciities and those which

are to be developed) 1s being camed out
on a sub-contract basis by Vindor At 31
March 2013, 41 of the 43 facimes planned
had been formally taken over by Vindor

Solid recovered fuel produced from the waste
will be used to generate heat and power

at a plant being buit at the Runcom Phase 1
EfW facility in Cheskire

Phase 1 1s being bult prmartly for the Greater
Manchester Waste PFl contract by TPSCo,

a joint venture between Inecs, John Laing
Infrastructure and Vindor Phass 2 1s 100%
owned by Vindor and will be avalable for

the market generally as steeply nsing landfill
tax dnves restdual waste disposal away from
landfill towards recycling and EANV

The ongoing delays in takeover of the
remainsng mechanical biclogical treatment
(MBT) plant and the delay In completing

the Runcorn Phase 1 EfW facility could
have the potential to Impact the VLGM

and also the TPSCo credit agreements
Runcom 1s around nine months lbehind
schedule, but TPSCo and Vindor have
contractual protection, Including va liquidated
damages Vindor 1s continuing commercial
discussions wrth its joint venture partners
and the coniractors to resolve the
construction 1ssues and protect its

and TPSCo's financial position At this point
In time, based on avalable information,
Vindor does not expect this matier to have
a matenal impact on the completion and
operation of the Greater Manchester PFI

or TPSCo

Interest recevable on sharsholder loans

from the VLGM joint venture was £7 9 milicn,
up £1 8 millon due to the increased average
balance on shareholder loans {oans fully
drawn dunng 2011/12) Share of profit after
tax from VLGM on an IFRIC 12 basis was

nil, down £0 3 million (£4 4 million profit UK
GAAR, down £0 2 milion}

Landfill

The landfil market 1s being replaced by

recycling and EfW as local capacity becomes

avafiable, in ine with government policies

Reflecting this trend, Vindor's landfill disposal

volumes decreased by 0 4 milion tonnes

{12 7%) to 2 7 million tonnes in 2012/13
in ine with the market more generally

Average gate fees increased by 8 1% to £25
per tonne but costs also increased by 8 1%

reflecting the mpact of reduced volumes on

fixed costs Consented landifill void reduced

from 65 4 millon m? at 31 March 2012 to
61 5millon m*at 31 March 2013 reflecting
usage dunng the penod
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Dwectors' report - Business review - Viridor

Business review
Continued

Key relationships

All recycling and waste management
operations in England and Wales require
Ervironmental Permits iIssued and regulated
by the Environment Agency {(EA) and Natural
Resourcas Wales In Scotland the Scottish
Environmental Protection Agency 1ssues
and regulates similar waste management
licences or pollution, prevention and control
{PPC) permits Vindor maintans a positive
working relationship with these and other
relevant regulatory bodies by means

of proactive laison and management

of any 1ssues at both site and strategic levels

Vindor has pionesred an innovative

online data shanng portal, known as
‘OpenSpace’, with the EA, embracing
latest data managemant practce to supply
enronmental montoring data effectvely
Ive online to the regulator This replaces
the nesd to supply huge volumes of written
quarterty and annual reports, thus saving
sianificant time and resources for gt partes
QOpenSpace has been further developed
dunng the year between Vindor and the EA
1o explora the application of such systems
In other regulated sectors

With regard to Vindor's largest customer
groups, local authonties account for 31%
of the company's revenue, although no
indmdual authonty accounts for more
than 12% Vindor's BOC energy contracts
account for 7% of revenue, pnmanly with
one customer

Ne suppher accounts for more than 5%
of the company’s revenue and the company
sources from competitive markets

People

The achievernents, commitment

and professionalism of its employees,
particularly in the ongoing challenging
market conditions, remains a source of pnde
to Vindor The company values and thanks
them all for ther contributions and continued
hard work and inncvation

A safe, healthy workforce and the continued
professional development of employees,
remain the top operaticnal prories for
Vindor Whilst there was a disappointing
increase In the RIDDOR incidence rate over
the previous year (45 reportable incidents,
amvng a rate of 1,429 per 100,000 employees
compared with 1,238 In 2011429,

a reduction of 42% in the roling three-year
incidence rate confirms progress 1S being
made n this vital area

Alrmost 4,000 traning days werg delivered
across Vindor dunng the year, underining
the company’s commitment to the training
and development of employess throughout
the business Around 200 employees

are parbaipating In apprenticeship
programmes and 40 managers

are enrolled on the innovative Vindor
Foundaticn Degres course, developed
and delivered in partnership with Edge

Hill University

* Change n RIDDOR reporting cntena
(see page 53 for detals)
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Outlook for Viridor

Vindor has successfully fransformed itself over the last decade to be one of the UK’s leading recycling,
renewable energy and waste management companies The company continues to face near-term
headwinds In recycling and the ongoing trend decline In landfill Although recyclate levels per tonne
appear to have stablised, and indeed have recovered 3 Iittle from their lows of October to December
2012, they remain significantly below the first half of 2011/12 levels The company remains cautious
about the prospects for further recovery In pnces in the short-term

Strong progress has been made on Vindor's PPP/EfW pipeline this year and these projects are already
making a significant contnbution to Vindor’s bottormn ine The growing pipeline of cumrent and future
projects 18 expected to drive the company’s long-term profit growth

The UK Government has set out guidance Within this policy framework and changing

for local authorties on the infrastructure market demands, Vindor continues to focus
required to meet the requirements on delvenng vital infrastructure and qualty
of the rensed EU Waste Framework services to provide essential renewable
Directive It has also published ts Waste energy, resource recovery and waste

and Resources Evidence Plan setting out management for its customers across
policy prionties and how the sector can all sectors

coninbute to sustanable economic growth,
alongside new regulations and guidance
on recycling quality and the important
contnbution of EfW

Pennon Group Plc Annual Repaort 2013
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Dweclors' report - Business raview

Group
Financial review

Notwithstanding current challenges, the Group has delivered
overall profit before tax (before exceptional net charges)
broadly in line with last year.

Performance overview

The principal measures we use to assess the Group's financial performance are profit
before tax and earnings per share (both before exceptional net charges and deferred tax)
and the interest rate on average net debt

201213 201213 2011412 2011712

Profit afier tax (€m)  Earmingspershera (p)  Profit after tax (Cm}  Eamings per share (p)
Statutory earnings 26.9 74 1724 481

Deferred tax before exceptional net charges {122) (3.4 (2.8) [08)
Exceptonal net charges (post tax) 1402 38.6 - -
Eamings before exceptional net charges and deferred tax 1549 426 1696 413

Note Earnings per share figures in this business review exclude exceptional net charges and deferred tax The Direclors beleve
excluding deferred tax provides a more useful companson on business trends and performance Deferred tax distorts earnings
per share through the effects of changes in corporation tax rates and the level of long-term capital Investment

Continuing Interest outperformance coupled with raising cash and facilities to fund future growth
£1,150 million cash and faciites at 31 March 2013, including £782 million of new (inciuding hybnd
capital issuance) and refinanced facilities sourced dunng the year
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The year’s financial highlights

South West Water recorded a strong performance aganst the 2010-2015 regulatory
contract and 1s well placed to deliver ocutcomes and outperform assumptions

Vindor had a mixed year with trading significantly down on last year from declines
in recychng and landfill more than outweighing continued growth in joint ventures

We have secured further funding

to finance continuing growth, Including

a £300m hybnd capital issuance in March
2013 which strengthens the Group balance
sheet as well as providing funding

By the year-end we had £1,150 million

in cash and faciimies in place to fund

the major growth In Vindor's projects under
construckon and EFW/PPP pipeline, together
with South West Water's K5 (2010-2015)
caprtal programme

Capital investiment increased by 61%

to £438 million due to the major Investment
n Vindor's energy from waste plants which
are expacted to dnve future growth

We have secured funding at a cost that

1s low in absolute terms The Group interest
rate on average net debt improved to 3 5%
(2011/12 3 9%)

Revenue

Group revenue decreased by 2 6%

to £1,201 1 milllon South West Water's
revenue increased by 5 2% t0 £498 6
rillion as a resutt of tarff increases

and new connections, partrally offset

by lower demand and a reduction In revenue
from customers switching from unmeasured
to metered charges Vindor's revenue

was down by 7 5% to £703 8 millon

due pnmarnly to the declines in recycling

and landfill operations

Operating profit

(before exceptional charges)

Group operating profit decreased by 8 4%
to £246 3 million with South West Water
up by 5 1% to £215 2 million, but Vindor
down by 51 6% to £30 8 million

To wew our online annual report
www pennonannualreport.co uk/2013

Net finance costs

(before exceptonal net income)

We continued our effactive managerment

of interest rates in 2012/13 with net interest
payable on average net debt equating

103 5% (2011/12 3 9%) Dunng the year

net finance costs (excluding pensions,

net interest, discount unwind on provisions
and IFRIC 12 contract interest recevable)
were £53 3 million {2011/12 £74 9 millon)
covered 4 2 tmes (2011/12 3 6 times)

by Group operating profit Investrment Income
totaling £10 8 milhon (2011/12 £5 7 million)
has been achieved with the objectve of
enhancing returns on the Group's substantal
pre-funding of arcund £500 millon

Profit before tax

{before exceptional net charges)

Profit before tax was £188 2 millon, 2
decraase of 1 1% Pages 18 and 25

gve a detaled descnption of the financial
performance of South West Water and
Vindor respectvely On a statutory basis
profit before tax was £21 8 miflion reflecting
exceptional net charges of £176 4 milllon

Taxation

{before exceptional net charges)

The Group's UK corporation tax charge
for the year was £43 3 millon (2011/12
£30 9 million) after release of pnor year
credits of £13 0 milion (2011112 £16 2
millon} The increase pnmary reflects

the absence of tax refief of around £ milion
on 2011/12's accelerated penston deficit
recovery contribution Defarred tax for

the year was a credit of £12 2 milkon
(2011/12 £2 8 million) which inciuded

a credit of £13 6 millon from the mpact
of the introduction of the 23% corporation
tax rate from Apnl 2013

Earmngs per share

[before exceptional net chargas

and deferred tax)

Earnings per share were down by 9 9%

to 42 6p refleciing the higher corporation
tax charge The weaighted average number
of shares In 1ssue dunng the year was

363 6 milion (2011/12 358 7 million)

Nst assets per share at book value

at 31 March 2013 were 202p

Exceptional net charges

Dunng the year South West Water terminated
a lease faciity and receved a consent fee
ansing from the sale of a finance lease
between financial nstitubons, which resutted
In a net exceptional gain of £12 5 millon

An exceptional imparment charge

of £78 2 milhon has been recognised to
wnte-down the carmying values of property,
plant and equipment, pnmarily In landfil
actwies, to reflect reducing landfill volumes
and our expectations on recyclate prices
The impairment charge has no cash impact
In addiron £20 6 million has been provided
agamnst ongrous contracts (pnncipally from
recycling actvities) and other tems

An exceptional charge of £90 1 miton
has bean recognised for environmenta)
provisions, primanly landfill aftercare costs,
where we have Increased the expected
penod of aftercare to 60 years (2012 30
years) following a reassessment based
upon independent external advice

This also has no immediate cash impact
and reflects the present value of costs
expected to be incumed at ndwvidual
sttes over the 60 year penod

The exceptiona net charges total
£140 milkon net of tax
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Dxrectors’ report - Busness revew - Group

Financial review
Continued

Dmdends and retained earnings
The statutory net profit of £26 9 millon
has been transferred to reserves

The Directors recommend the payment

of a final dmdend of 18 70p per share

for the year ended 31 March 2013

With the intenm dmvidend of 8 76p per
share paid on 4 Aprl 2013 this gives a total
dmdend for the year of 28 46p, an increase
of 7 3% over 2011/12 (reflecting 4% real
growth plus RP! of 3 3% for the twelve
months to 31 March 2013)

Proposed dvidends totaling £103 8 milkon
are covered 1 5 times by net profit (before
exceptional net charges and deferred tax)
{2011/12 1 8 times) Dmdends are charged
against retaned earrungs n the year in which
they are paid

Dmwidend policy

The Group's policy Is to Increase the dvdend
each year by 4% above inflation up to the
end of 2014/15 The Group is well posiioned
to meet future challenges and to continue
delivening sharehclder value We remain
committed to this increase

Operating costs

(bafore exceptional charges)

Operating costs for the year totalled
£855 millon The most significant areas

of expenditure were

Expenditure £m
Manpower 159
Depreciation 146
Landfill tax 143
Raw matenals and consumables a3
Transport 59
Power 31
Business rates 29

Abstraction and discharge consents 7

Exchrdes elerments of transport costs.

Group investment

The Group's capital expenditure on property,
plant and equpment, ncluding senice
concession arrangements, increased

by 61% to £439 milion (2011/12 £273
million) pmarty from investment n Vindor's
growth projects of £292 multon The major
categenes of expenditure wers

Cash flow

In 2012/13 the Group once agan had

a strong operating cash flow Net borrowings
reduced by £96 milion pamanly due

to the 1ssuance of the hybnd secunties,
partially offset by further capital investment

Summansed cash fiow £m 2012113 201112
Cash inflow from operations 385 390

Net interest paid (50) (61)
Dmdends and tax paid @7 {111)
Caprtal expenditure (422) {274)
Acquistions/investment in joint ventures (14) 43
Loan repayments and dvidends received from joint ventures 9 4

Pensionh contributions (14) {49)
Net cash outflow (203) (144)
Hybnd securities 1ssuance 285 -
Shares 1ssued 4 2

Debt acquired with acquisitions m -
Debt indexabon/interest accruals 1 (29)
Decrease/(increase) in net borrowings o6 (171)
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Liquidity and debt profile
The Group has a strong liquidity
and funding positon with £1,150 million
cash and facities at 31 March 2013
This Includes cash and deposits of £635
milion (including £143 miflon of restncted
funds representing deposits with lessors
aganst lease obhgations) and undrawn
facities of £5615 millon A total of £782
muflion in new or renewed debt facities were
amanged dunng the year, being
* £304 millon term loans and revoving
credt faciiies renewed
* £178 millon of new term loans
and Revong Credit Facilities

+ £300 milien hybnd capital Issuance

The Group's financing structure gves

us the scope and flexibility we need

to mplement our strategic objectives
and maxirmise valua for our shareholders

At 31 March 2013 the Group's loans

and finance lease oblkgations totalled £2,644
milion After the £6835 million held in cash this
gnves a net debt figure of £2,009 million, a
reduction of £96 milion dunng the year Debt
Incurred for the construction n progress

of Vindor's portfolio of EfW plants at Runcorn
Phass II, Ardley — Oxfordshire PPF, Exeter,
Cardiff and Glasgow Increased to £438
milton at 31 March 2013

A strong hquidity and funding
position to finance growth

David Dupont, Group Director of Finance
Pennon Group

Major components of the Group's
debt finance at 31 March 2013

The Group’s debt has a matunty of up to 44
years with an average matunty of 22 years
The Group has fixed, or put swaps in place
to fix, the nterest rate on at least 50%

of South West Water's debt for the entire K&
penod at an average interest rate of 3 4%
Afurther £382 millon of Scuth West Water's
debt 1s ndex-Inked to 2041-2057 at an
overall real rate of 1 79 As a result of these
inhatives South West Water's cost of finance
is amongst the lowest In the industry

The Group's and South West Water's interest
rates on average net debt for the year

to 31 March 2013 were 3 5% and 4 1%
respectively (after adjusting for capitalised
mnterest of £13 6 millon and notional interest
rtemns totalling £5 4 millon, as detailsd in note
8 to the financial statements)

Just under half of the Group's gross debt
ts finance leasing gmng us a long matunty
profile Interest payable benefits from

the fixed credit margins which were
secured at the inception of each lease

At 31 March 2013 the far valus

of the Group's non-cument bormowings
was £208 millon less than its book value
(2012 £200 millon} as detaled in note
28 to the financial statements
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Dwrectors' report - Business review - Group

Financial review
Continued

Capntal structure - overall position

At the end of the financial year the Group's
net debt of £2,009 milion gave a geanng
ratio of net debt to {equity plus net debt)

of 85 4% at 31 March 2013 (2012 71 9%)
with the reduction attnbutable to the £300
mifilon hybnd caprtal 1Issuance

South West Water's debt to Regutatory
Capttal Value (RCV) was 55% at 31 March
2013 (2012 56%) which compares to Ofwat's
optimum range of 55% — 65%

Vindor 1s funded by a combination

of Pennon Group equity and debt (rased
by Pennon Group) and direct barrowang

by Vindor At the year end Vindor’s net
debt was £676 milicn {2012 £517 milior)
equvalent to 8 7 trmes EBITDA (20124 7
times) Dunng the year Vindor's equity base
was increased by £151 millon through
revised infragroup funding

Treasury polictes

The role of the Group's treasury function

Is to ensure that we have the funding to mest
foreseeable needs to mantain reasonable
headroom for future contingencies and to
manage interest rate nsk. The Group enters
into certain structured financing fransactions
that have and are expected to prowide

an improved return on surplus funds

and overall interest rate psrformance

It operates only wathin policies approved

by the Board and undertakes no speculative
trading actmity

The Board regularly menitors expected
financing nesads for at least the next 12
months These are iIntended {o be met for
the coming year from existing cash balances,
loan faciites and operating cash flows

The Group has constderable financial
resources and a broad spread of business
actviies Tha Directors therefore believe
that it 1s well placed to manage its business
nsks despite the ongoing uncertanties

of the current economic envircnment

Internal borrowing

South West Water's funding is treated

for regulatory purposes as nng-fenced

This means that funds raised by, or for,

the company are not avallabls as long-temm
funding for other areas of the Group

Going concern

The Directors have a reasonable expectation
that the Group has adeguate resources

to continue its operational exstence for

the foresesable future They therefore have
continued to adopt the going concern basis
in prepanng the financial statements

Taxation objectives and policies

QOur tax strategy, as approved by the
Board, 1s to ensure we do not engage in
any practces which avold paying tax at the
appropnate levels We manage the taxes
we pay having regard to the interests of our
shareholders and our long-term relationship
with the tax authorties We will consider
bona-fide arangements which are integral
to our business and which qualify for tax
exemption or relief

Tax contnbution 2012/13

The Group made a net payment of

£18 5 mitien of UK comoration taxin

the year {2011/12 £41 4 million) which
reflects setlement of previous years’

tax computations and tax relief on the
exceptional charge for aftercare costs
South West Water paid £34 0 millon
(2011/12 £28 5 million) of UK corporation
tax on profit before tax of £164 6 milion
(2011712 £141 5 milion)
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The total tax charge for the year (before
exceptional net charges) of £31 1 million
was less than the charge which would have
ansen had the accounting profit before tax
of £198 2 milion been taxed at the statutory
rate of 24% A reconciliation 1s provided

in note 9 to the financial statements

The Group's total tax contnbution extands
significantly beyond the UK corporation
tax charge

Total taxes amounted to £261 mdlion
of which £33 milion was collected on behalf
of the authorties for employee payroll taxes

In addition to corporation tax the most
significant taxes involved, together with ther
profit Impact, were
» |andfil tax of £139 millon was collected
by the Group on behalf of HM Revenue
& Customns (HMRC) This amount includes
£10 millron pard to local environment
bodies wia the Landfill Tax Credits Scheme
Landfill tax 15 an operating cost which
1s recovered from customers and is
recognised In revenue In addition
the Group incurred landfill tax of £23 mullon
on the disposal of waste to third parties
This Is an operating cost for the Group
and reduces profit before tax
+ Value Added Tax (VAT) of £25 milllon
was recovered by the Group from HMRC
The repayment has ansen chiefly as
a result of the large capital expendture
incurred by Vindor on EfW plants VAT
has no matenal impact on profit befors tax
¢ business rates of £29 milion pad
to local authonties This Is a direct cost
to the Group and reduces profit before tax
» employment taxes of £51 millon including
employeses' Pay As You Earn (PAYE)
and total National Insurance Contnbutions
(NICs) Employer NICs of £13 rmillion
wera charged approximately 94%
to operating costs with 6% capitalised
to property, plant and equipment
This amount Includes PAYE of £2 milion
on pension payments made by the Group
pension scherme

¢ Fuel Excise Duty of £11 million related
to transport costs This reduces profit
before tax

* payments to Environment Agency
and other regulatory bodies total £10
millon This reduces profit before tax

¢ Carbon Reduction Commitrnent payment
for the Group was £1 million, this payment
Includies a cradit of £1 millien ansing from
Vindor energy production This reduces
profit before tax

The corporation tax rate for 2012/13 used
to calculate the cument year's tax 1s 24%
The corporation tax rate has been reduced
to 23% for 2013/14 and 1s expected to fall
further, subyect to legislation being enacted,
to 20% from 1 Aprl 2015

Pensions

The Group operates defined benefit pension
schemes for certain employees of Pennon
Group, South Waest Water and Vindor

The main schemes were closad to new
entrants on or before 1 Apnl 2008

At 31 March 2013 the Group's pension
schemes showed a deficit {before deferred
tax) of £110 mifiion (2011/12 £99 midiory),
the Increase primanty reflecting a reduction
n the long-term net discount rate of 0 53%,
the main factor being lower AA bond yelds

Net labilities of £85 million {after deferred
tax) represented around 4% of the Group's
market capitalisation at 31 March 2013
The revision to 1AS 19, to be iImplemented
N 2013/14, 15 expected to resutt In a

net finance cost In 2013/14 of £4 million
(2012/13 credit of £4 miflon) A further

£1 milkon 1s expected to be charged to
operating profit to recognise administration
costs as they are incurred  Pension hiabilities
will reduce by £10 million as at 31 March
2013 as a resutt of the change

South West Water's cash contnbutions
to the schemes remarn wathin Ofwat's
Final Detenmination for the K5 penod

The last actuanal valuation of the man
scheme was at 31 March 2010 and the
tnennial valuation at 31 March 2013 1s
currently under way The defictt 1s expected
to be hugher than IAS 19 due to the lower
gl rates used to discount labiites

Insurance

Pennon Group manages its property
and third party habilty nsks through
insurance policies that mainly cover
property, motor, business interruption,
public habity, environmental pollution
and employers' hability

The Group uses three tiers of iInsurance

to cover operating nsks

* Seff-insurance — Group companies pay
a moderate excess on most clams

e Cover by the Group's subsidiary
{Peninsula Insurance Urnited) of the layer
of nsk between the self-nsurance
and the cover provided by external insurers

= Cover provided by the external insurance
market, arranged by our brokers with
Insurance companies which have good
credit ratngs
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Dwectors' report - Business revew - Group

Principal risks and uncenrtainties

The nsks and uncertainties set out in this section have been identified from our risk
management process as potentially having a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations and reputation They are managed as described
but are not wholly within our control and may still result In a matenal adverse impact

on the Group. Factors beside those listed could also have a material adverse effect

On our business activities.

How we manage risk

We operate a well established and fully embedded Group wide nsk management process from
which we seek to identify significant nsks at the earliest possible stage and determine whether
they are acceptable risks which we can manage and mitigate satisfactonly More detall

on our nsk management process Is set out on page 70 of our comorate governance report

Key
T Increased dunng year Risk Level The colounng (red, amber, green) 1s the Group’s
€& Unchanged during the year Green - Low estimate of the Inherent nsk level 1o the Group after
J’ Reduced during the year Amber - Medium mitigabon It1s important to note that nsks are difficult
Red - High to estimate with accuracy and therefore the nisks
may be more o less significant than indicated
South West Water

Law and regulation

Risk Commentary Mrigation Change

Changes in law, regulation or There 1s a wide range of laws The general direction of travel of !
decisions by governmental bodies and regulatons and policy UK Government policy 1s known |
or regulators could have a matenal decisions of government and South West Water 1s actively '
adverse effect on our financial and regulators which could involved In consultations

results or operations. have a matenal adverse effect on on regulatory changes

South West Water, Examples of
legal and regulatory change include:

Uncertanty ansing from DEFRA 1ssued tts Strategic Policy South West Water has contnbuted fully |
regulatory reform Statement to Ofwat {the Econcmic to the consutiation on regulatory reform |
Regulator) m March 2013 outining and has had dialogue with regulators
direction and prorties Within and staksholders in order to effectively .
that context Ofwat 1s reforrmng portray s views '
the reguiatory approach
Msthodology changes wili continue
2012/13 has seen the modification to be considered over the coming
of cormpany operating icences months n the lead nto the next
in preparation for the next price pnce review
review and a number of methodology
change proposals
Legslativa and regutatory compliance As a regulated business South Performance aganst key regulatory H
West Water 1s subject 10 numerous outputs Is reported to the Board on
and changing obligations a monthly basis and where performance

falls shoit corrective programmes are
developed and mplemented to target
recovery In a specific area
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Risk

New regulations, cbligations
and standards could increase costs

Economic conditions

Risk

Economic conditions could
matenally affect South West
Water’s revenues and profitability.

Nen-recovery of customer debt

Commentary

Issues are addressed through the five-
year regulatory pnce review mechanism,
chligations which anse within price
control penods such as private sewers
and bathing water obligations are
funded through future adjustments

to prce Imits

Commentary

South West Water has exposure
to reduced economic activity
and mflation/deflation.

Customer debt and affordability are
key areas of focus grven the contmued
challenging economic conditions

Mtigation

Internal monttonng and assurance
programimes are undertalen through
the year Annual data is supported
by external venification to provide
assurance on the company’s
complance with its obligations

South West Water continues to manage
cost pressures as they anse in addition
to achieving cperating cost efficiencies
and managng nflationary iIncreases

Mitigation

South West Water's revenues
are economically regulated through the
pnce review mechanmism.

In addttion to existing strategies, which
are kept under review, South West Water
conhtinugs to Implement new INttiatives to
improve and secure cash collection through
¢ use of third party collection agencies
» external trace data to track down
previous 0CCUers
* developing a new strategy for
previous and earler debt collections
* working with social housing partners
* continued use of property

chargng orders

The company has also continued to fund
and promote ways to help customers
struggiing to pay bills (WaterCare, Restart,
Fresh Start Fund) which seek to reduce
bad debt exposure

South West Water 1s one of the few
companies to have implerented a social
tanff following the introduchon of ks
WaterCare tariif from 2013/14 This tanff
Is designed to assist around 10,000
households in the region by reducing
ther bills to an amount they can better
afford to pay

The Government's commitment to tackle
the ‘unfaimess’ 1Issue for South West Water
customers, in which around 3%

of the population are effectively paying

for a third of the UK's bathing waters,

has resutted in a household customer's

bill being reduced by £50 per annum

from 2013/14

Change

>

Changs

\ e 4

Pennon Group Pic Annual Report 2013

a7

MBIBAO dnoIL)

JBIBAN 1S8M LINOS

JOPUIA

SIBLLISAOD) dnour)

SIUBLLSIES [BOUeU




Dwaclors' report - Business review - Group

Principal risks and uncertainties
South West Water (continued)

Economic conditions (continued)

Risk

Loss of revenue

Financial loss ansing from nsolvency
of a major supplier

Operating performance

Resk

Poor operating performance

or a failure or interruption

of operating systems or the mability
to carry out network operations

or damage to infrastructure may
have a material adverse impact

on both our fmancial position

and reputation

Non-comphance or avoidable
health and safety incident occurrences

Commentary

South West Water revenue can be
impacted by changes in customer
demand and other income streams

The company has around 75% of its
customer base metered and as a result
the revenus from metersd charges can
be volatie from changes in customer
usage which can be affected by

¢ abnomal weather impacts
¢ Increased water efficiency

® recassion mpacting
commercial customers

South West Water does not have
matenal exposure to payment before
recetpt of goods and services

Commsantary

Poor operating performance

could result m enforcement action,
prosecutions, loss of permits

and civil action which could

all result in negative publhcity,
regulatory penalties, loss

of customer confidence and
eventually reduced demand for
services and increased fixed costs

South West Water 1s committad

to achieving the appropnate level

of heatth and safety complance

This year has seen the continued
delvery of the behavioural safety
programme including safety leadership
training for a number of staff, as well
as innovatva behawviour training

In addition senior management vists
were completed dunng the year across
a number of stes

Miligation

The financial impact of changes

In customer demand Is mitigated
through the Revenue Cormrection
Machanism whereby shortfalls

In revenue In one five-year regulatory
pricing penod are adjusted

in the followaing penod

The company uses third party credit
monitonng services to Idantify changes
to major suppliers’ financial status

and creditworthiness 1o supplement
an annual nsk review of key

and strategic suppliers

Misgation

South West Water monrtors

its operating performance
through a wide range of systems
and management reviews

and invests as appropnate

to mantain target performance.

The number of RIDDCOR accidents
for 2012 has fallen by over 50%

Continuous traning 1s being
provided to ensure that appropnate
health and safety working practices
are embedded and this reducing
trend continues

Change

Change
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Risk

Operational falure at clean
and waste water sites

Contamination of water supplies

Extreme weather and climate change

Increased flooding Incidents

Pollution events

Water rasources adequacy

Commentary

Due to the natura of South West
Water's businass there are continued
nsks ansing during the normal course
of business, including nsk of failure

of assets, processes or systams which
could otherwise impact on the heatth,
safety and securnty of the company’s
people or customers, or on its financial
postion and reputation

South West Water has established
procedures and controls in place,

as well as contingency plans

and incident managerment procedures

2012 has besn a challenging

year in tarms of weather mpacts

The continued dry weather from 2011
into the earty part of 2012 placed
pressure oh the company's water
resources This was followed by

a penod of extreme rain — South West
Water’s wettest spnng/summer In
100 years — which placed significant
pressure on its network and resutted in
higher levels of flooding incidents

The extrerme wet weather dunng
the year resulted n a significant
Increase in the number of flooding
Incidents, both for customers

and at South West Water sites

South West Water 1s committed
to minmising the iImpact
on the environmant

South West Water has a number

of schemes in place to mantan water
resources (such as pumped storage
for certain reservoirs) and promotes
conservaton measures and customer
water efficiency measures

Mitigation

The company Is able to monitor

s significant assets by automated
and remote cperation and has routina
controls and operating procadures

in place that are constantly kept under
review Asset management techniques
are employed to pre-empt the falure
of assets

Where 1ssues do anse there are
appropriate contingency plans
1o deal with such instances
and these are updated through
experience of such events

It also maintans msurance polcies

In relation to these nsks, although there
can be no assurance that all or any

of the costs associated with these nsks
would be covered or that coverage will
continue to be avalable In the future

The business 1s well placed to manage
such extrerne incidents  Key mitigation
18 having detalled contingency plans,
sufiicient emergency resources

and a capital programme that supports
ongoing efforts to manage these

nsks In the longer term the impacts

of chmate change are baing considered
The company has plans ready and will
adapt the way it conducts its business
to respond effecivaly to cimate changes

The company has identified targeted
capital investments to reduce the nsk to
specific customers in key affected areas

As aresult of the extrerne weather dunng
the year the number of acute pollution
incidents has increased from the pror
year Whilst this 1S regrettabla the number
of more senous Incidents has fallen from
the pnor year

Whilst there has been a strong recovery
In the company’s water resources, as a
result of the extremely wet weather seen
over spring/summer 2012, the company
continues to monitor reservorr levals to
mantan sulficient water resources

for dner penods such as thosea seen

n recent years

Change

T
T
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Dwectors' report - Business revew - Group

Principal risks and uncertainties
South West Water {continued)

Operating performance (continued)

Risk

Poor service provided to customers

Fallure to deliver operating
cost efficiencies

Capital investment

Risk

The failure or increased costs

of caprtal projects or acquisittons
or joint ventures not achieving
predicted revenues or performance
could have a material adverse
effect on both South West Water's
financial posthion and reputation

Commentary

Customer service remains

paramount to South West Water

and tha company focuses on iImproving
customer satisfaction and reducing
customer complants

Saouth West Water could incur a financial
penalty under Ofwat’s Service Incentive
Mechanism (SIM) for below average
customer service performance

In kne wath ts track record South West
Wiater remains confident of delvenng
Oiwat's assumed operating cost savings

Commentary

South West Water may not delver
its capital programme within the
price hmits and with the efficiencies
determined by Ofwat

Mrtigation

South West Waiter also considers

tha longer term resource situation

It prepares a new Water Resources
Management Plan every five years
and reviews it annually for a range

of cirmate change and demand
scenancs The Draft Water Resources
Management Plan for 2015-2040

has recently been submitied to
DEFRA and will be publicly avalable
later in the year The plan ndicates
that the company has a surplus

of resources through to the honzon

of 2040 However nvestmanit is needed
to develop the overall trunk main
infrastructure, to expand treatment
capacity and to snhance certan
pumped storage faciites

The company has delvered significant
Improvemnents in customer semvice
duning K5 with a 51% reduction in
written complaints and an 88% increase
In the Service Improvement Macharism
(SIM) score Continued Improvement

Is beng targeted

While the company has seen
Improvements In customer service
particularly through reduced wrttten
complaints, South West Water's
relative posttion will remain unclear
unbl ndustry data 1s published
There 1s an ongoing strategy

10 improve customer sennce fusther

The company has delivered cumulative
operating cost efficiencies ahead
of K5 targets

Mitigation

South West Water has a track record
of delivenng its capital prograrmme

in accordance with regulatory
requrements and progress Is regulary
monitored and reviewed

Change

Change
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Business systems

Risk
Major fallure of IT systems.

Market

Risk

Uncertainty ansing from
market reform.

Reputation

Risk

Loss of key stakeholder
support and prolonged
negative media campaign

Commentary

There always remains a nsk of
interruption, fallure or third party
intervention that could have a material
adversae iImpact on the operations

of South West Water's business

Commentary

Whilst the Draft Water Bill recognised
an approach to reform that was
‘evolutionary’ rather than ‘revolutionary’
the development of greater compstrion
in the water industry could reduce
South West Water's revenues

Commentary

South West Water has a numlber
of key stakeholders, including
customers, and ams to balance
therr needs with environmental
responsibilities and legislative
and regulatory cbiigations

Mitigation

South West Water has well developed
IT systerns and continuity systems

in place These include a geographically
separate altematve data centre,

which I1s hosted by a third party
communications provider This reduces
the impact of any falurs or disruption

Mibgation

As part of the nsk management

and business strategic planning
processes the company continues

to evaluate developments and
propesals for competiion

South West Water is prepared

for the development of retal competticn
for non-household customers dunng
the next regulatory penod and has
developed enhanced services offerad
to commercial customers through
‘Source for Business'

Mrigation

The company 1s committed

to engaging with key stakeholders
for both South West Water's long-
term sfrategy and coming regulatory
penod through its ncdepandently
chaired WaterFuture Customer
Challenge Panal which includes
reprasentatives from stakeholder
crganisations

In addtion South West Water actvely
manages communications with
custormers and stakeholders both
online and through social media

Change

>

Change

T

Change

>
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Dwectors’ report - Business revew - Group

Principal risks and uncertainties

Viridor

Law and regulation

Risk

Changes m law, regulation

or decisions by govermmental
bodies or regulators could have
a matenal adverse effect

on Vindor's financial results

or operations

Landfill dversion and recycling
targets could increase costs/
reduce profitability

Higher requiatory standards
could increase costs

Commentary

There 1s a wide range of laws

and regulations and policy decisions
of government and regulators

which could have a matenally
adverse effect on Vindor

It remains possible that government
policies and regulations may
change in unforeseen ways

which adversely affect Vindor

The UK has landfill dversion,

recyching and recovery targets

which, together with the mpact

of WEEE Regulations, higher Producer
Responsbilty obligations and pre-
treatment requirements, plus nsing
landfill tax, will continue to further
reduce landfill volurnes for Vindor

and potentially, over time, landfill

asset values

The ever increasing demand for higher
standards, in areas such as health

and salety, emaronmental performance
and employee welfare, Increases costs

Mrtigation

The general direction of trave! of
UK Government policy 1s known
and Vindor 1s actively involved

In cansultations on regulatory
changes It maintains a transparent
and proactive relationship

with regulators,

Vindor policy 1s to meet or exceed
regulatory requirements which
represents a potental competitive
advantage for the company.

Vindor's strategy 1s to grow in recycling
and energy from waste where marging
per tonne are much higher than in
landfill Escalating landfil tax increases
the economic attractiveness of recycling
and energy from waste The resource
efficiency agenda from the EU and the
UK Government's attention to resource
and energy securty are expected

to provide further opportunties for
Vindor Reflecting the above Vindor

has undertaken a thorough review

of landfill site bves on a prudent basis,
and has wntten down landfill asset
values accordingly

Wherever possible Vindor passes

on these higher costs through
contractual arangements with waste
authorties and other customers

{(wia legislation and technical clauses)
However as government cutbacks
continue to bite, local authonties

(va austenty measures) are looking
for pnee reductions for already
contracted waste streams

Continually improved management
controls and investment in its business
management systems help Vindor to
keep the cost base as low as possible
whilst maintaining comphance Vindor
also mantains a dose interest In Industry
developments via the waste sector trade
association and therefore 1s often at the
forefront of planned changes

Change

>

l

>
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Economic conditions

Risk

Economic condrhions could
matenally affect Vindor's revenues
and profitability.

Reduced waste volumes could mpact
Vindor revenue/profit

Reduced recyclate prices could mpact
Vindor revenues/orofit

Vindor enters into long-term

contracts which potentially subject

the company to contract performance
ngk for many years

Commentary

Vindor has exposure to reduced
economic activity, inflaon/deflation,
the impact of the current Eurozone
uncertambies and any potental slow
down in the Chiese economy

Vindor has seen residual waste landfil
and collection volumes reducs due
to the recession and the long-term
trend towards recycling and energy
from waste

Vindor's commoedity trading am,
Vindor Rescurce Management, trades
where the market 1s most favourable
However Vindor remains susceptible
to glokal economic demands and the
weakness of the Eurozone 1s having

a deprassing effect on the pnces

of internationally traded recyctates

A breakdown of the Eurozone would
intensify tha downward pressure

on pnces In addibion competition

for recyclables from other contractors
via aggressva pncing has been a recent
trend China's recent ‘Green Fence’
iniatrve, effectively banning cartain
waste streams from the country, has
placed further burdens on exporters
to that country

The Government’s ongoing spending
review 1S putting increased pressure on
local authonty services, including waste
management, and creating an ongoing
search for efficencies

Poor performance 1n the contract

or poor Intial pricing &t the tender stage
could impact on the company's long-
term profitability and financial condrtion

Mrigation

Vindor has a diversified revenue
stream which includes domeshc
sales as well as exports to countnes
such as China and India and the rest

of the EU., Nevertheless Vindor remains

exposed to general weakening in
worldwide economic conditions.

Vindor's strategy 1s focused on growing
In recycling and energy from waste
where margins per tonne are much
hugher than in landfil

Vindor has atempted to mitigate this

pnce reduction wa customer supply
contracts and by extensive cost control
and other management actions Closure/
mothbaling of stes has now taken place
and an asset impanment charge has been
recogrised accordingly

Vindor provides best value serices

and competitive procurement bids

to its public sector customers and 15
protected by the terms of &s contracts
which run for pencds of up to 25 years
Some local authonties are sesking pnce
reductions Vindor's postion remains that
it will consider renegotiation of contracts
where appropnate to mutual benefit
Nevertheless Vindor remains exposed
1o such pressures pariicularty when
contracts come toan end

The company’s strategy of identifying
leng-term profitable contracts includes
a full evaluation of the benefits from a
mex of responsas to the requiremeants
of clent organisations ensunng that
profit 1s recognised at each stage

of the supply chan

Tha company has stnct contract
authonsation procedures which reflect

the s1ze, duration and potential nsks

of diiferent types of contract Authonsation
of long-tern contracts 1s given at Board
ar senior management level

Change
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Dxractors” report - Business revew - Group

Principal risks and uncertainties

Viridor (continued)

Economic conditions (contnued)

Risk

Operating performance
Risk

Poor operating performance

or a faillure or interruption

of Vindor's operations may have
a matena! adverse impact

on both its financial position
and reputation

Environmental provisioning

Risk

Landfill aftercare and restoration
habilities are long-term in nature
and could increase which may
have a material adverse impact
an Vindor's financial position

Capital investment
Risk

The failure or increased costs

of capital projects, and acquisttions
or joint ventures not achteving
predicted revenues or performance,
could have a matenal adverse effect
on both Vindor's financial posttion
and reputation

Commentary

Commentary

Poor operating performance

could result in enforcement

action, prosecutions, loss of permits
and civil action which could all result
in negative publicity, regulatory
penaltes, loss of customer
confidence and, eventually, reduced
demand for services and increased
fixed costs,

Commentary

The high cost of moving landfills
from active operation, through
restoration and into aftercare,
continues to increase

Thts 1s compounded by shorter
remaining landfill lives {due

to reduced tonnages).

Commentary

Within Vindor there are nsks

of project delays, cost overruns

or contract fallure which could

be as a result of fallure or insolvency
on the part of contractors or their
subcontractors, or due to a new
technology failing performance
requirements There Is also a nisk

of overpaying for an acquisttion.

With the increase in Vindor's project
pipeline, Vindor recogrises that this nsk
IS increasing and Is addressing it

Mrtigation Change

The company has recognised that
certain histonc contracts, particularly from

acgured businesses, have unsatisfactory
pncing structures and where appropnate
has recognised a dminution in value

Mitigation Change

>

Regulatory performance 1s subject
to continued and extensive internal
and external inspection, including
business management systems
and compliance policy.

Mrtigation Change

Extensive modelling work has been
undertaken with the assistance of

outside professional adwvisers to fully
understand the frue cost of restoration

and aftercare This has resulted in

the period of provision having been
increased to 60 years and provisions

having increased accordingly

Mitgation Change

This has been recognised as a key
nsk and systems and procedures

are in place to address it. More
recently the Vindor board has been
strengthened by the appomntment

of a Capital Projects and Engineenng
Director The establishment of ‘oversight
boards’ for each of the major projects
has added addional ngour to their
delivery. Nevertheless the scale

of the investment has increased
significantly and the quantum of nsk
has accordingly nsen

Vindor's expenenced and dedicated project/
caontract teams cany out detalled due diigence
on all projects, suppliers, technologies and
acquistions pnor to commencement
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Risk

Contractor faling to deliver progress
could ncrease Vindor's costs

Competitive pressures
Risk

A reduced customer base,
increased competition
affecting prnices or reduced
demand for services could
have a matenal adverse impact
on Vindor's financial position.

Over capacity In the UK EfW market
could impact demand for Vindor's
new plants

Commentary

Besprte extensive due diligence

and significant protection of back-to-
back contracts and/or penalty clauses
In contracts to deliver new technologies
on tmae and on budget, Vindor remains
exposed to contractors' falure to deliver
new projects which may in extrems
circumstances reguire lengthy legal
action or other redress

The Runcorn EfW/CHP plant 1s beleved
to have fallen about ning months behind
schedule and such delay without an
increase In lquidated damages would
have an agdverse effact on Vindor's
associated jont ventures and uttmately
on Vindor itself

Commentary

As a result of current weak
econamic condrbions compounded
by the recent spike in global
commodity prices, Viridor is
expertencing increased competitive
pressures in a number of areas of
its business, including n particular
recyclate volumes and pnces,
landfill gate fees and bhidding for
Public Private Partnership
contracts (PPPs)

Recycling has been recognised as an
aftractive business by an increasing
number of businesses who are now
compebng aggressively for volume
leading to depressed prices

There 15 significant consented EfW
capacity in the UK which has yet
to be buitt

Mitgation Change
Wherever possible back-to-back

agreements with, and guarantees from,

supplers are entersd into which provide

a significant degree of protection

There is also regular morithly reporiing

on performance on major contracts

and post project appraisals are camed

out, which all assist in being able to improve
future parformance

Vindor, through its Capital Projects

and Engineenng Director, proactively
manages its contractors It has enhanced
tts team, both from internal and external
resources, to reflect the increased scale
of s capttal programme

Mitigation Change

Vindor provides recycling and
waste management services which
are locally delivered services from
locally managed facilibes and a
signiftcant proportion of its revenue
Is contracted over the medium or
long-term In general terms Virdor's
strategy I1s to establish a long-term
sustainable competitive advantage
in the business in which it operates;
this I1s designed to protect long-term
shareholder returns.

bemng pursued there are bamers to entry
due to planning permissions being difficutt
to obtan and sigrificant investment
requrements We beleve there 1s
competitiva shake-oul taking place among
margnal competttors which will In due
course benefit Vindor as a market leader

With regard to major compstitive projects l

Vindor has fully evaluated projected
demand and competing capacty for each
of its planned facilites and 1s canfident that
they can be filled profitably With landfill

tax to reach £80 per tonne in Apnl 2014,
large scale energy from waste faciiies

of the type Vindor is bulding will be the low
cost way of disposing of residual waste

>
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Dwectors' report - Busmness review - Group

Principal risks and uncertainties
Viridor {continued)

Competitive pressures (continued)

Risk Commentary

Over capactty in parts of Europe could Some waste 15 being converted

impact the UK EAW market into solid recovered fuel (SRF) and,
in the absence of sufficient EfW capacity
m the UK, is baing sent under EA
hcence for disposal in adjacent parts
of Northern Eurcpe where there

1s currently sumlus capaciy
Business systems
Risk Commentary
Information technology Some of Vindor’s IT systems
and business continuity systems require replacement, development
and processes may fail which or upgrading to meet the growing
may cause matenal disruption requirements of the business.

to Vindor's business and could have
a matenal adverse iImpact on bhoth
its financial position and reputation.

In some areas new technology being
introduced may not operate or parform
according to stated specification
requirements

Exsting systems are beginning to prove
Inadequate or are unsupported which
may lead to an inability to perform key
business functions

Group

Mitigation Change

Reflecting government policies and trencis H
there will be a need for around 20 milion
tonnes of capacty in the UK n 2020

When reviewing current competing projects
and take account of planning bamers,

financing difficulties and the lack of further

large base load municipal contracts, it Is
expected that there will be a capacity shortfall
of up to 258 Ofthe 2 § millen tonnes capacity
Vindor 1s committed to operating by 2020 more
than half (1 3 millon tonnes) 1s already backed
by long-term municipal contracts

The costs of producing SRF to the required H
qualty and of shipping 1t to Europe are

significant Disposal and generation of the

associated ranewable energy In EfWs in the UK

1s generally lower cost (and better for the UK
economy) Nevertheless small amounts of SRF

may continue to be exported espacally f UK

EiW capacity remains insufficient

Mitigation Change

Vindor has increased its IT management H
and technical resources accordingly,

It also has a comprehensive development
programme and plans in place to address

the deficiencies identified and seek to ensure
business continuity in the event of failure
Nevertheless Vindor recognises the nsks
associated with IT upgrades

Project Enterpnse, charged with developing H
a fully sceleable Enterpnsa Resource Planning

(ERP) type platform s now well advanced,

led by the Director of Business Transformation

with external professional assistance as required
Nevertheless this 1s a major project which,

as with all [T systems, cames risks

Project Enterpnse 1s significantly addressing ( )
thase Issues as a mattar of pronty

Finance and funding

Risk Commentary

The Group may be unable Access to finance and funding
to raise sufficient funds to finance costs may be adversely affected
its activities or such funds may by perceived credst rating

be only available at higher cost and prolonged penods of market

Mitigation Change

The Company has robust treasury
polictes in place.

volatility or iquidity. There are covenant

limits and restnctive obligations on
borrowing and debt arrangements.
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Risk

Pensions

Risk

Pension costs may Increase
due to higher costs for future
service and growing deficits

in relation to past service in the
defined benefit schemes.

Succession planning

Risk

Pennon’s employees are

the comerstone to its success
and further development. High
quality, well motivated, trained
and competent people at all
levels must be in place to ensure
sustamed busmess development.

Forward-looking statements

Cornmentary

The Group had £1 15 bilion of cash
ang facilties as at 31 March 2013
including around £0 8 bilion of new/
refinanced facilites sourced dunng
the year

Commentary

All defined benefit schemes (apart
from the Greater Manchester Waste
PFI scheme) have been closed

to new entrants since April 2008

Indications are that the actuanal deficit
has Increased snce the last valuation
n 2010

Commentary

Ensurng the nght people in the nght
places at the nght time does not happen
by accident, it needs careful planning

Miigation

Policies include atways having pre-funded
at least one year's estmated cash flow
through cash and/or committed facilties
and ensunng no mere than 20% of net
borrowings mature N any one year

In addition in respect of South West Water,
the economic regulator has a statutory
duty to ensure that it 1s able to finance

its functions In the normal course

The Group hes to date obtained funding
at lower effective average Interest rates
compared with many other companies

In its sector and1s well placed to mest the
funding requirements of both South West
Water and Vindor in the foreseezble future

Mitigation

Employee and employer contributions

are kept under review and a formal

actuanal valuation 1s being undertaken

as at 31 March 2013.

Pension trustees keep nvestment

policies under review and use professional
investment adwvisers to seek to maximise
investmant returns at an appropnate

level of nsk

Miigation

Succession plans are in place for Board
Directors and senior management,

and further down the orgarusation

as appropnate These are normally
updated annually

Both South West Water and Vindor

have introduced training and development
programmes including apprenticeships,
graduate training and management
development

Change

l

Change

T

Change

\ e 4

T

This Business review contains forward-looking statements regarding the financial position, results of operations, cash flows, dnvdends,
financing plans, business strategies, operating efficiencies, capital and other expenditures, competitive posiions, growth opportunities,
plans and ohjectives of management, and other matters These forward-looking statements including, without Imitation, those relating
to the future business prospects, revenues, worlang capital, kquidity, capital needs, interest costs and income In relation to Pennon Group
and 1ts subsidianes, wherever they occur in this business review, are necessanly based on assumptions reflecting the views of Pennon
Group and its subsidiary cormpanies, as appropriate

Thay involve a number of nsks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ matenally from those suggested

by the forward-looking statements Such forward-locking statements should, therefore, be considered in the light of relevant factors,

Including those set out in this section on principal nsks and uncertainties
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Dwectors’ report - Business revew - Group

Sustainability report

As one of the largest environmental and resource management groups

in the UK, Pennon’s business is all about sustainability. We deliver high quality
water and sewerage services and recycling, renewable energy and waste
management services that are essential to the well-being of our society.

South West Water provides high qualty dnnking water, together with effective waste water treatment
for Devon, Cornwall and parts of Dorset and Somerset

Viridor 1s one of the leading UK recycling, renewable energy and waste management businesses

Our ongoing investment, and our commitment to continuously Improving levels of service
and operational performance, will help society meet its fundamental reguirements in water
and resource management services in the long-term

2012/13 achievements

South West Water

* 16 consecutive years without water restnctions, industry-leading leakage control,
top quality dnnking water and best ever waste water treatment performance

+ Two further awards won for ‘Upstream Thinking’, South West Water's flagship catchment
management initiative

* Park Lake, the former china clay quarry now used as a water storage resource, and awarded
County Wildlife Status following the company’s work to enhance the landscape and habitat

* Community engagement strengthened with South West Water's employee volunteenng
programme and support for the successful bid for a University Technical College in South Devon

* South West Water customer service score improved
* |ntroduction of a new social tanif for customers in 2013/14

Viridor

¢ Vindor announced as a ‘Bronze' company In the Business in the Community Corporate
Respcnsibiiity Index

+ Vindor first In its sector to achieve ISO 50001 (Energy Management System) accreditation

* Viridor's groundbreaking ‘OpenSpace’ web portal used for ‘ive reporting’ of environmental
compliance data further developed and used by the Environment Agency as model of best practice
for other regulated industries

* 40 employees enrolled on Vindor Foundation Degree course designed for future company leaders
and around 200 on a vanety of apprenticeships

¢ Vindor won Best Practice in Health & Safety and Best Communications Campaign titles
at Chartered Institution of Wastes Management Awards 2012

+ £10 5 million provided by Vindor and distributed for environmental and amenity projects
across the UK via the Landfill Communities Fund
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We are pleased to report our performance aganst our strategic sustanability objectives and KPlIs

Objective Manage Pennon Group as a sustainable and successful business for the benefit
of shareholders and other stakeholders.

mawnano dnaigy

As a well managed and responstble Group, with sustainabilty
dmving its business strategy and at the core of #s operations,
we am to deliver strong performance and lasting value for

all our stakeholders Our services and methods of operation
at all times lcok to provide clear community benefits

and to protect and enhance the environment

In addition to our long-term investrment performance,

Pennon was pleased to have Increased its 2013 score

in the FTSE4Good Index — Environmental, Social

and Govemance ratings assessmentto 4 2 out of 5 (2012 38)

Includes Invastment in contracts in which local authorities
have a residual nerest Previcus years restated

Objective Aim to ensure that all our business activities have a positive economic,
social and environmental impact on the communities in which we operate.

Pennon recognises it has a responsibity to contnbute
postvely towards communties atfected by our operations

In addiion to Investing in a high quality water and waste
management service, we create local employment, use local
supply chains, provide financial support to commurnity projects
and enhance the environment

Pennon Group and its subsidianes support communities

and charties within thewr operational areas and Vindor continues
to provide substantial funding to environmental and community
projects wa the Landfil Communities Fund Vindor and South
West Water also both fundraise for their prefemred chanties
WaterAud, the Cystic Fibrosis Trust and Trees for Cities
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Deeciors' report - Business review - Group
Sustainability report
Continued

Objective Aim to ensure that all our business activities have a positive economic,
social and environmental impact on the communities in which we operate.

Continued

Economic impact

South West Water

The company has introduced an innovative ‘mixed economy’ model
for the curmert regulatory penod to source tts capital programme
This means using a significant number of smaller local contractors
1o provide specialised services, so providing inward investment

into the local economy Research compiled by Plymouth University
Businsss School In February 2013 suggests that the company
generates over 4,500 jobs in the region

South West Water's £2 billion investment in ‘Clean Sweep' has
delvered improved waste water traatment around the coast,
improving the amentty of beaches and bathing waters, which
15 fundamental to the success of the tounst industry in Devon
and Cornwall

Since privatisation of the water industry in 1989, around 3% of

the country’s poputation who live In the South West have effectively
been payng for the clean-up and protection of one third of the
naton's bathing waters Following four years of close work alongsicle
MPs of all parties and consumer groups, South West Water has besn
delighted to see the UK Government funding a £50 per annum bill
reduction to all household customaers In the region, which Is

designed to address this histonc unfamess This arangement

was Implemented for 2013/14 charges and 1s planned to run until

at least 2020

Social impact

South West Water

South West Water has further developed tts affordabilty toalkit

for customers who are struggling to pay theirr water bills

The company has iIntroduced a new social tanff for 2013/14

to help its most hard-pressed customers, and established new
partnerships with Age UK to target support for older customers

and with housing associations to engage with low Income customars
'Battle the Bills' sessions have provided advice on water and energy
use to the all iImportant small businesses in the region

South West Water’s expanding apprenticeship scheme continues
to dentify and nurture talent in the region The company 1s proud

to have supported the successful bid for a Universtty Technical
College in South Devon, which will provide students with relevant
skills In water, environment and engineenng Recognising that this
sector plays a significant part in female participation rates, some of
the company’s female scientists and engineers have wisted schools
to encourage girils to study science, technolegy, engineenng

and mathematics (STEM)

Vindor

Vindor's current programme of investment of around £1 5 bilklon
in recycling and energy from waste faciities, iIncluding £292 milion
of capttal investmant n growth projects n 2012/13, 1s creating
significant employment and traning opportunities  These Include
construction jobs ffor example, around 1,000 people were smployed
at the Runcorn energy from waste (EfW) development site alone
at the turn of the year) and jobs In ts supply chan, as well as

the long-temm employment opportunities for plant managers,
operatives and technicians Both Vindor and its construction
partners are providing tramng and apprenticeship programmes
on thess projects

Vindor

Vindor contnues its programmes of proactive community
sponsorship, focusing on environmental and sciences, technology,
engineanng and maths (STEM) —focused education intiatives

In ks areas of operation

The company also continues to provids funding to Vindor Credits,
an independent Environmental Body and registered chanty,

via the Landfill Communities Fund In 2012/13 Vindor provided
£10 5 mullion for amenty and environmental Improvement projects
In the wcinty of pemutted landfil sites across the UK
Approximately 275 projects were supported and it is sstmated
these benefited some 200,000 people

Sorme of the major service contracts signed dunng 2012/13,
such as those with Glasgow Crty Council and Peterborough Gity
Council, nclude significant community benefit packages whereby
Vindor 1s committed to delivenng education, trasming and local
‘capactty bulding' servces to complement the core waste
treatment requiremeants
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South West Water contracts the prowision of conservation, access
and recreation at its reservorr stes to South West Lakes Trust

The public can parbicipate In guiet recreation, such as camping,
walking, cycling and fishing, or take part in a wide range of boating
and watersports actvities The company has further developed

Its community engagement strategy by providing opportunities for
employee voluntesring Dunng summer 2012 teams of employees
participated In a sanes of beach cleans arcund the region, n
conunction with Keep Britain Tigy

Environmental impact

South West Water

Folowing the acquistion of Park and Starinon china clay pits from Imerys,
South West Water Is now restonng the landscape and wildlife amenty

at these siles  In recogniion of the significant Improvements at Park,
Cormwall County Councl has awarded the ste County Widife Status

The extreme wet weather in the latter half of 2012 and the start

of 2013 caused widespread flooding in the south west of England
The number of Interal and external sewer flooding Incidents
increased as a direct result South West Water worked in partnership
to minimise the iImpact of these events Steps have been taken

to mprove resilence to extreme weather, for example the £2 milion
nvestment in flood defences at Pynes Water Treatment Works

In Exeter

South West Water expenenced four Category 2 or ‘significant’
polution incidents in 2012

In 2012 the company was the subject of 17 prosecution cases
brought by the Emvaronment Agency for pollution incidents in 2010
and 2011 South West Water regrets the increase in prosecutions,
but 1s confident that the targeted programme of action over the last
two vears 15 delvening significant improvements in performance

The South West has more designated bathing waters than
any other region in England and Wales and in the past two
decades South West Water has made significant advances
In helping to improve bathing water qualty

The summer of 2012 was the wettest on record for 100 years
Bad weather can adversely affect bathing water quality because
heavy rain impacts on urban dratnage and agncuttural run-off
Heawy storms can also tngger the operation of combined sewer
overflows (CS0s) n the sewerage system

Following this and changes to the way in which guideline standards
wers recorded n bne with new bathing water quality standards, 93%
of England's bathing waters met the ‘good' (mandatory) European
standard, with over 58% meeting the tighter ‘excellent’ (guidsline)
standard Of the 146 bathing waters in the South West region,

133 or 91% met the ‘good’ standard and 88 or 60% achieved

the 'excellent’ standard

Desprte the wet weather, fewer than half the year's falures occumed
dunng the operation of CS0Os This ustrates why the company
continues to work with its partners to tackle all the other issues that
can gffect bathing water qualty — urban drainags, agncuttural run-off,
birds and other wildlfs, private sewers and misconnections {homes
wrongly connected to surface drainage instead of to pubiic foul
sewars) South West Water i1s proud that in 2013 its service area

was awarded 14 Blue Flags and 18 Seaside Awards notwithstanding
the tougher standards introduced by the awarding body last year

Complementing ts sponsorship n STEM education in schools

and colleges, Vindor also operates or supports 10 education

cenires on or near s sites These help to promote understanding
and best practice in waste preventian, recycling, recovery

and resource management, as well as wider i1ssues of sustainability
During 2012/13 the centres welcomed 15,792 visttors from schools,
colegas and community grodps All Vindor centres hold the 'Leamning
Outside the Classroom Qualtty Badge’, the nationally recognised
indicator of good qualty educational provision

Vindor

Vindar continues to proactively create, assist and rmanage qualty
habttats on both its own stes and In the vicinity of s operations
The company 1s now mplementing its biodversity sirategy

which will lock to pnortise biodiversity enhancement opportunities
and to mplement good stewardship practice on all relevant

sites Vindor 1s the Industry leader in achieving the Wildife Trust's
Biodnersity Benchmark at around 30% of is closed lancfills

and 15 working to extend this list as further sites come into closure

The unusually wet weather In 2012 caused local management
challenges especually at landfill sites, associated with the collection
and disposal of leachate Owver 80% of the company’s major
operational facilties have been developed and managed in

a manner that has demonstrated cimate change resilience in ine
with the Ermvironment Agency’s best practice guidance which Vindor
has also helped to develop

A Gategory 1 or ‘'mgjor’ poliution incident occumred at Vindor's Lean
Quarry Landfillin Cormwall, whereby a quantity of leachate was
released into the local water course as a result of vandalism out

of hours Due to Vindor's swift and effective comective actions, the
Envronment Agency 1 considenng cml sanctions rather than a formal
prosecution and fine
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Drectors' report - Business rewew - Group

Sustainability report
Continued

Objective Engage with all our stakeholders and foster good relationships with them.

Pennon ams to be a good neighbour, and hlaises with its stakeholders in ordar to determing and respond {o thar prionties

Both subsidianes are actvely engaging with stakeholders via social media, developing their online presence to enable customer
and community gueries and 1ssues to be raised and addressed n this way

South West Water

As part of prepanng its 2015-2020 business plan South West Water
has commissioned extensive Independant research to ascertain
customer prionties, fulure service and investrnent It has established
a WaterFuture Customer Challenge Panel compnsing regulators and
representatives from domestic customers, the business community
and environmental groups to ensure the company’s business plan
reflects stakeholders’ opinions

The company's ‘Upstream Thinking’ project includes extensive
stakeholder engagement, liaising with regulators, the chantable
sactor, landowners and universities This epproach was recognised
when the company won the Environment Award at the Utiity Industry
Actrevements Awards

South West Water's Twstter feed has helped improve scope for
communicating m real ime with the public for example dunng

the flooding In December 2012 94,000 of its household customers
have registered with the '‘My account' web page and approximately
4,000 customers are using the company's mobile ‘App’

The nurmber of beaches covered by ‘BeachLive’ has been increased
This online service provides real time information on the operation

of Combined Sewer Overfiows and therr impact on over 40 beaches
in the region

Vindor

Vindor registered rts first submussion n Business in the Community's
(BitC) Cormporate Responsibility Index {CR Index), an annual
benchmarking of responsible business management The company
was pleased to be ranked as Bronze within the Index, a very
creditable performance for a first entry

The CR Indexs the UK's leading ard most in-depth voluntary
benchmark of compoerate responsibiity, helping companies

to accurately measure and manage all aspects of therr social

and environmental performance and improve corporate responsibity
througholrt therr business operations, and benchmark themsetves
aganst compettors

There 1s room for improvernent within the community investrment
and marketplace sechions and these will be looked at carefully

in the coming moniths to see where progress can be made

On &l counts Vindor scored wel within sight of the averages

for both ts sector and the Index as a whole

Dunng the year Vindor further developed tts 'OpenSpace’ wab
portal — one of the most ground-breaking projects between

the Environment Agency and the waste industry, embracing
contemporary data management practice to enable tmely review
of the environmerital parformance of regulated faciliies In addrton
the Scottish Environment Protection Agercy Is tnaling the systemn
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Objective Strive for the highest standards of health and safety in the workplace
so0 as to minimise accidents, incidents and lost time.

A safe and healthy worldorce wilt always be a top prionty

for the Pennon Group

Reportable incidants are now reported over seven days absence

(2011, after three days absence)

South West Water

South West Water 1s pleased to report further improvernent

In ts heatth and safety performance during 2012 The total number
of RIDDOR reportable incidents for the calendar year 2012 was 7,
compared with 201n 2011 Innovatwe behawvioural traning has besn
rofad out to employees dunng the year

South West Water employs an independent occupationa!l health
service which provides a range of services such as health surveillance
for shift workers and field staff The company has introduced a thurd
party nurse-led absence reporting process to support the reduction
of absence and to provide employees with advice on specific medical
1ssues when they report abbsence from work

Vindor

Vindor achieved a 42% reduction in its three-year roling RIDDOR
Incidence rate since 2008, against a target of a 10% reduction
Howaver, the company's performance in 2012 saw an increase

In this incidence rate over the previous year {from 1,238 per
100,000 employees In 2011 to 1,429 1n 2012} This Increass IS very
disappointing and Vinder 1s redoubling its efforts to continue to drive
down the number of accidents

The company continues &s strenuous sfforts to ensure a genuine
'health and safety cutture’ throughout the organisatron It is gving top
priomty o a rangs of employee engagement and trairing mitiatives,
alongside ongaing focus on fundarmental nsk assessment systems
and safety management procedures, following last year's full review

Vindor won the Health and Safety Best Practice Award
at the Chartered Institution of Wastes Management Awards
for Envronmental Excellence 2012
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Cwrectors’ report - Business revew - Group

Sustainability report
Continued

Objective: Develop and motivate our employees, treat them fairly and ensure that they
are fully engaged in all aspects of the Pennon Group’s objectives.

Pennon's success 1s fundamentally due to the qualtty and dilgence of our employess We recrurt talented and commitied
personnel and provide training packages to equip them with the skills they need to daliver the Group’s cbjectives

South West Water

South West Water has sitver status in the Investors in People
standard The company's equal opportunites policy 1S regularly
updated to reflect current legislation and good practice

The company's recrutment procedures ensure objectvity

and focus on appointing the best person for the job, without
dversity bias

South West Water is training supervisors in strong leadership
skills to faciltate behavicur change, and operators are being
upskilled through the acquistion of NVQs This approach

I8 helping to ensure that ts employees have the necessary

skills to suppert the mtroduction of remote operating systems,
known as ‘PUROS' Further traning programmes are developing
current and future managers

Phased Utilisation of Remote Operating Systems

Vindor

Vindor reviewed its employment and workplace policies durng
2012/13 and tts employment handbook and management

guide are made available to all employees to help them understand
and interpret company policies and ensure consistency

and fairness in their application HR training courses (such as those
on investigations, absence management and performance
management) support new managers and contribute to the
consistency of applcaton across the company's business

regions The company continues to expand its Investors

In People registrations in certain parts of the country

The company has & structured approach to assessment

and traning throughout the business and nearly 4,000 training
days were delvered in 2012/13 Over 200 employees are taking
the sustainable waste management apprenticeship, which Vindor
helped to design, and 15 other apprenticeships are also underway
The innavative Vindor Foundation Degree course, developed with
Edge Hill University and focused on professional development

for the cornpany’s future leaders, started in Apnl 2012 and currently
has 40 employees enrolled Vindor also plans to mplement s new
Employee Engagement and [nternal Communications Strategy
and Plan dunng 2013/14
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Objective. Aspire to leadership in minimising emissions that contribute to climate change,

and develop climate change adaption strategies.

For many years, Pennon has recogrised the need to manage its carbon emissions and adapt to the consequences of cimate change

With a scare of 71 in the internationally recognised Carbon Disclosure Project (CDP) in 2012, Pennon moved slightly down
the rankings to 86th place out of 240 respondents from the FTSE 350 Pennon is working with COP and ther sconng partner,
PncewaternouseCoopers, to identfy and implement areas for further improverment

Penncn Group continued to comply with the Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy Efficiency Scheme, which was evidenced
by a successful audt dunng the middle of 2012 covenng the first complance year

South West Water

South West Water's energy strategy 15 designed to imit
greenhouse gas emissions through a combination of energy
efficiency and renewable energy schemes

The company remans committed to its ambitious long-temm target
to reduce its carbon emissions by 80% by 2050 Conssquently

the company set a stretching target to be achieved by 2014/15

In 2012/13 its greenhouse gas emissicns remained below the
2009/10 baselne, but the extreme weather meant the company
was unable to mantain the downward trend of the previous

two years South West Water remains focused on delivenng
Improvements towards its carbon reduction target The company
continues 1o be accredited to the Certified Emissions Measurement
and Reducticn Scheme (CEMARS)

South West Water's award winning ‘Upstream Thinking' programime
Is revolutionising the water industry’s approach to catchment
management The company 1s undertaking scientific research

In conunction with universities to assess how land management
practices Impact on raw water quality and working In partnership
to delver changes which will deliver a more secure and sustainable
water supply and improve resiience against climate change

South West Water's work focuses on moorland restoration

In the uplands, which capitalises on the water storing capacity

of peat, and encourages farmers to iImplement measures which
benefit adjacent water courses Dunng the year this project won
the large company category of the inaugural Institute of Chartered
Accountants In England and Wales {CAEW) Finance for the Future
Awards and the environmental category of the Utilty Industry
Achtevement Awards

South West Water continues to target energy efficiency through
ts programme of pump refurloishments and replacements at both
dnnking water and waste water treatment stes The optmisation
of its assets and networks 1s complemented by the use of remote
technologies to contral processes and equipment from a central
hub as part cf the PUROS project

In addition South West Water's ‘Powerdown' energy efficiency
campaign promotes company-wide energy efficiency An example
of this in 2012/13 was the saving of 1 1GWh through highting

refits at several of its largest sites

Virdor

In March 2013 Vindor became the first recycling and waste
management company in the UK to recene 1ISO 50001 certfication
from the Bntish Standards Institute for its energy management
systems This followed a number of years developing energy
management systems (including procedures, databases

and metering systems) 1SO 50001 now provides Vindor with

a continual improvement framewark for reducing s energy
censumption and greerhouse gas emissions In both the short

and long-term

Vindor has set an objective of reducing s energy consumption
relative to its growth by 20% over five years from 2010 and has

reached the end of the second year of its plan There were a number

of energy efficiency projects mplemented throughout 2012/13,
ncluding voltage optimisation schemes and energy efficient LED
ighting installations at a number of the company’s processing
facities Successful pilct projects have resufted in a nahonal level
project being Implemented in early 2013 to install LED kghting at the
mayonty of ts MRFs and transfer stations This should see significant

carbon savings accrue througheut the third year of the reduction plan

Dunng 2012/13, an energy efficiency technical group was
established to pull together technical expertise from across

the business The focus of the group 1s to identrfy projects for Board
approval for rapid implementation at scale across the business
Further training will be provided 1o Vindor personnel as energy
efficiency workshops are rolled out across the regions

Vindor continues, with its carbon reporting tocl, to assist ts customers

in identifying the carbon saving benefits of recycling, recovery
and good waste and resource management In 2012 an updated
second version of the reporting tool was made available to
customers, with a third update scheduled for summer 2013
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Dweciors' report - Business review - Group

Sustainability report

Continued
Pennon Group Greenhouse gas emissions tCOe

201112 2012/13
Scope 1° 1,967,935 1,934,332
Scope 22 159,360 164,712
Scope 3* 45,970 43,948
Total gross emissions 2,173,265 2,142,992
Carbon offsets 0 0
Netted off renewable electricity export to gnd up to total amount (159,360) (164,712)
of electricity purchased and consumed by orgamsation
Total annual net emissions 2,013,905 1,978,280

Intensity measure tCO:e (scope 1+2)/£100,000 revenus

173 tC0:e/£100,000 revenue 175 tCO,e/£100,000 revenue

' Scope 1 (Direct emissicns)

Acthities owned or controlied by our organisaton
that mlease ermissions straight nto the atmosphere
These are direct emissions

Notes

1 Change in emissions

Qur reported emissions fell between 2011/12
and 2012/13 largely as a result of fewer
fugrtive emissions recorded from Vindor’s
landfill stes

2 Methodology and approach

Wa have followed the Government's
Guidance on how to measure and report
your greenhouse gas emissions We

have usad the GHG Protocol Comporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard {revised
edition) and GHG conversion factors
published by DECC/DEFRA

? Scope 2 (Energy Indirect]

Emessions being refeased into the atmosphete associaled
with our consumption of purchasad electricity, heat,
stearn and cooling  These ana indirect emissiens that

am a consequence of our actvities but which oocur

at sources we do not own or control

3 Organisational boundary

The emissions listed here cover

the Pennon Group of companies
using the financial control approach

4 Operational scopes

We have measurad our scope 1, 2
and some scope 3 emissions where
information 1s avallable

5 Intensity measurement

We have chosen an intensity measure

of scope 1 and 2 gross emissions In tCO:&
per £100,000 revenue

¥ Scope 3 {Other indirect)

Emissions that are a consequence of our actions,
which ocour at sources which we do not own or control
and which are not dassed as scope 2 enssions

6 Carbon offsets

We do not purchase any carbon offsets,
instead we rely on self-generated renewable
energy to reduce our overall emissions

7 Green tanffs/renewable energy export
We do not purchase green tanff electnerty;
Instead wea can reduce our net emissions

by exporting our seli-generated renewable
snergy to other users

Objective Aspire to leadership in all aspects of waste prevention and resource efficiency.

Pennon 1s delivenng solutions for society to address

the environmental challenge of deplsting natural resources

by maximising the value of residual matenals, transforming waste
and improving energy efficiency
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South West Water

South West Water's goal 1s to have 30GWh of its energy

usags supphed from renewable sources by 2015 In 201213
excellent progress was made, with more power from renewables
generated than ever before In total, 19 3GWh was harnessed
from a combination of solar, wind, hydro and combined heat
and power (CHP} from sewage sludge

The company's 25 existng solar PV mnstallations performed well

and an additional seven schemes were installed, five of which were
cperational by the year-end, with the other two becoming operational
In Apnl 2013 The wand turbine at Lowermoor water treatment works
also outperformed its genaration target for the year

Following the success of the gnt and screenings composting tnal,
South West Water 1s now rolling this process out across the region,
In order to reduce volumes of waste sent to landifill

Governance

Programmes and performance contributing to the sustanability

of the businesses are overseen by the Pennon Sustainabilty
Committes Detais are given on page 68 The subsidianes develop a
range of targets as part of therr business planning processes

and monitor and report progress to ther respective boards

and to the Pennon Sustainabilty Committee throughout the year

Venfication

Pennon's sustanability performance and reporting has been

audited by Camstone Partners LLP, an independent management
consuftancy, specialising in comporate respansibility and sustanabilty

Vindor

Vindor provides waste prevention, recycling, resource efficiency

and renewable energy generation best practice audrits, advice

and services to chents across the public and pnvate sectors

The amount of matenal recovered wia re-use, recychng or energy
recovery) as a proportion of total waste inputs handled by the
company rose to 37% in 201213 (2011412 35%) and a total

of 2 6 milion tonnes of matenal was recovered This was an increase
of 8% on the previous year and included 340,463 tonnes of organic
{food and garden) waste composted

Atotal of 1,909,000 tonnes of dry recyclates were processad,
producing high qualty recycled commodities to be sold to customers
in the UK, Europe and globally for remanufactunng, thus making

a significant contnbution towards greater overall resource efficiency

Virdor, In partnership with the Greater Manchester Waste Disposal
Authonty, was pleased to win the Best Communications Campaign
at the 2012 Chartered Institution of Wastes Management Awards
for Environmental Excellence for tts Innovative work promoting
waste prevantion and recycling through the ‘Recycle for Greater
Manchester' intiatve

The provision of renewable energy from waste sources also makes
a substantial contnbution to energy secunty and resource efficiency
in the UK Dunng 2012/13 Vinder's output of renewalble power

from landfill gas, energy from waste and anaerobic digestion facilities
rose to 820 gigawatt hours (GWh) from 760GWh in 2011/12

South West Water
and Viridor sustainability reports

The full sustainability reports for South West

Water and Vindor will be published in July

and August respectively and will be avallable to view
at www.pennon-group.co.uk and also on the
subsidiaries’ websites Full details of the sustainability
targets for South West Water and Vindor for
2012/13, and ther performance aganst them,

are given in thelr respective sustainability reports
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Dwectors' rport - Other statutory information

Other statutory information

Principal activities and business review
The principal actvties of the Company and
its subsidianes ('the Group') are the provision
of water and sewerage services, recycling,
renewable energy and waste management
Information regarding the Group, including
avents and its progress dunng the year,
events since the year-end and fikely future
developments, 1s contained Iin the busmess
review sat out on pages 4 to 57 of this
BEwectors' report

In addition, the business review

contans a far and balanced review

of the business of the Group, Including

its posttion and prospects, Key Performance
Indicators and a descnption of the prnncipal
nsks and uncertanties facing the Group in
accordance with the requirements of the UK
Corporate Governance Code (2010 Edition)
and Section 417 of the Companies Act
2006 In addition, in accordance with the ABI
Corporate Social Responsibility Guidelines,
statements are included on any significant
environmental, social and governance (ESG)
nsks and the actions taken n mitgating
these nsks within the business review on
pages 38, 39, 44 and 47 Further information
on ESG aspects of the Group's business are
included in the Group sustanabilty report

on pages 48 to 57 The pnncipal subsidianes
of the Company are isted in note 41 to the
financial statements on pages 139 to 140

Corporate governance and Directors’
responsibilibes statements

The Directors' responsibilties staterments,
a report on the review of, and a statement
on, the Group’s system of internal controls
and the disclosures required by Part 6 of
Schedule 7 of the Large and Medium-
sized Companies and Groups (Accounts
& Reports) Regutations 2008 and FSA
Disclosure and Transparency Rule 7 2

are set out In the Company’s corporate
governanca and internal control report

on pages 60, 61 and 64 to 71 of this Annual
Report which are hereby included within
this Directors' report by reference

Financial results and dividend

Group proiit after taxation and exceptional
fiems on ordinary actmties after taxation

was £26 9 milon The Directors recommend
a final dwdend of 18 70p per Ordinary

share to be pad on 4 Octcber 2013

to shareholders on the register on 9 August

2013, making a total dmdend for the year
of 28 46p, the cost of which will be £103 8
million, leaving a transfer from reserves

of £76 9 milion The business review

on pages 30 to 35 analyses the Group's
financial results in more detal and sets

out other financial nformation

Directors

In accordance with the provisions of the
UK Corporate Governance Code (2010
Edrtion) the Code) all Drectors are offering
themseatvas up for re-election (or, In respect
of Gill Rider, election) at this year's Annuat
General Meeting (AGM) with the exception
of Dinah Nichols who will be retinng as

a Non-executive Director at the end

of the AGM having completed in excess
of nine years as a Drector

The Board continues to believe that each
Director starding for re-election or election
makes an effactive and valuabla contrbution
to the Board, demonstrating contnued
commitrment to his or her role The Non-
executive Directors, Martin Angle and Gill
Rider, are considered to be independent In
accordance with the provisions of the Code
Gerard Connell, subyect to his re-election at
this year's Annual General Meeting, will have
served as a Non-executive Director for more
than nine years The Board has determined
that Gerard remains Independent as he
demonstrates independence of character
and judgemant in hus conduct of matters
with the Board The Non-executive Directors
do not have service contracts, they have
contracts for services terminakle upen

three months' notice

The Chatmman, Ken Harvey, smilarty has

a contract for senices, which 1s terminable
upon 12 months’ notice David Dupont,
Execuive Director, has a service contract
which 15 dus to expira when he reaches
age 60 (June 2014) Dawd's contract 1s
expected to continue subject to 12 months'
notice when he reaches age 60 [n respect
of Chns Loughlin, who has reached age 60,
his contract now continues subject to 12
moenths' notice and Colin Drummoend who
had prevously reached age 60 and had a
centract continuing subject to 12 months’
notice will now retire from baing an Executive
Director when a successor is appointed,
currently expectad to be by the end of
September 2013

Formal resolutions for the above Directors’
re-electicn or election, as appropnate, will
be propesed at the Annual General Meeting
The Directors' biographtes are set out

on pages 62 and 63

No Director has, or has had, a matenal
interest, directly or indirectly, at any tme
dunng the ysar under review in any contract
significant to the Company’s business

A lst of all the Directors dunng the year

s set out in the emoluments table on page
78 Further detats relating to the Directors
and therr service agreements or contracts
for services are set out on pages 76

and 77 and details of the Directors’
interssts in shares of the Company

are given on pages 79 to 82

Directors’ insurance and indemnities
The Directors have the benefit of the
indemnity prowvisions contained 1n the
Company's Articles and the Company
has mantaned throughout the year
Directors' and Officers' liability nsurance
for the benefit of the Company, the Directors
and its Officers The Company

has entered into quakfying third party
indemniy arrangements for the benefit
of all ts Directors n a form and scope
which comply with the requirements

of the Companies Act 2006 and which
were in force throughout the year

and remain i force

Statement as to disclosure
of information to auditors

a) So far as each of the Directors in offica
at the date of the signing of the report
IS aware, there 1s no relevant audi
information of which the Company's
audtors are unaware, and

b) each of the Directors has taken
all the steps each Director ought
to have taken indmdually as a divector
in order to make himself or herself aware
of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company’s auditors
are aware of that nformation

Financial instruments

Detals of the financial nsk management
chjectves and policies of the Group

and tha exposure of the Group to pnce,
credt, lquidity and cash flow nsks are sat
out in the financial statements on pages
861098
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Employment policies

and employee involvement

The Group has a culture of continuous
improvement through investment in people
at all levels within the Group The Group

IS committed to pursuing equalty

and diversity in all ts employment actmties
Including recrutment, training, career
development and promotion and ensunng
there 1s no bias or discnmination in the
treatment of people In particutar, applications
for employment are welcomed from persons
with disabilities and special arrangements
and adustmants as necessary are made

to ensure that applicants are treated fary
when attending for interview or for
pre-employment apttude tests

Wharever possible the opportunity 1s taken
to retran people who become disabled
dunng thar employment in order to mantan
therr smploymant within the Group The
Group also has a Boardroom Drversity Policy
and encourages gender diversity in particular
Further detalls are set out in the report

of the Nomination Committee on page 69

Employees are consulted regularly about
changes which may affect them etther
through their trade union appointed
representatives or by means of the elected
Staff Council which operates in South West
Water for staff employees

Thase forums, together with regular meetings
with particular groups of employaes,

are used to ensurs that employses are kept
up to date with the operating and financial
performance of therr employer

The Group also cascades information
menthly to all employees to provide them
with iImportant and up to date information
about key events and to obtan feedback
from them

Further information abeout employment
matters refating to the Group are set out
on pages 20, 28 and &4 of the business
review

The Group encourages share ownership
amongst ts employees by operating an HM
Revenue & Customs approved Sharesave
Scherme and Share Incentive Plan At 31
March 2013 arcund one-third of the Group's
employees was participating in these plans

Research and development

Research and development within the
Group Involving water and waste treatment
processes amounted to £0 2 millon dunng
the year (2011/12 £0 2 milion)

Pennon Group donations
During the year the Company and its

subsidianes made chantable donations of
£83,301 (2011412 £73,992) dwvded between
environmental purpesas (£3,700) and

soaial and community purposes (£79,601)

In addition some £10 5 million was prowded
via the Landfill Communities Fund for
environmental and community projects
Further details are included on page 49 of
the Group sustanability report No political
donations were mada or political expenditure
incurmred and no contnbutions were made

to a non-EU political party {2011/12 i)

Tax status

The Company I1s not a close comparty within
the mearing of the income and Corporation
Taxes Act 19388

Payments to suppliers

It 15 the Group's payment policy for the year
ending 31 March 2014 to follow the Code
of The Better Payment Practice Group

on suppler payments Information about
the Code can be obtained from the webstta
payontime co uk The Company will agree
payrment terms with indmdual suppliers In
advance and abide by such terms The ratio,
expressed In days, between the amount
invoiced to the Company by its supphers
dunng 2012/13 and the armount owed

to s trade creditors at 31 March 2013,
was 43 days

Purchase of own Ordinary shares

The Company has authonty from
shareholders to purchase up to 10% of ts
own Ordinary shares (as renewed at the
Annual General Meeting in 2012) which
was valid as at 31 March 2013 and remains
currently valid Of the 3,632,705 shares held
in Treasury at 31 March 2012, 1,526,869
were subsequently re-issued under the
Company's employee share schemes

for proceeds of £4 6 milion

Major shareholdings

Detals of major shareholdings notified

to the Company in accordance with FSA
Disclosure and Transparency Rule 5 are set
out on page 144 ‘Shareholder information’

Independent auditors
PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP wera
appointed auditors until the conclusion

of the twenty-fourth Annual General Meeting
A resolution for ther re-appointment upon
tha recommendation of the Audit Cormmittee
of the Board will be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting

Appointed business

South West Water Limited 1s required

to publish addional financial information
relating to the ‘appointed business' as water
and seweraga undertaker in accordance

with the Instrument of Appointrrent from
the Secretary of State for the Envronment
A copy of this information 1s avalable

cn the website southwestwater co uk

or upon application to the Group Company
Secretary at Peninsula House, Rydon Lana,
Exater £X2 7THR

Annual General Meeting

The twenty-fourth Annual General Mesting
of the Company wil be held at the Sandy
Park Conference Centre, Sandy Park Way,
Exeater, Devon EX2 7NN on 1 August 2013
at 11 00am Detalls of the resclutions

are surmmansed below and set out in the
separate Nobice of Annual General Meesting
which Is cireulated to shareholders with

this Annual Report or provided by slectronic
communication via the Company’s website
pennon-group co uk Information required
by Section 311A of the Companias Act 2006
Is &lso on the Company's website

By Order of the Board
Ken Wocdier

Group General Counsel
& Company Secretary
25June 2013

2013 Annual General Meeting bustness

In addtion to routine business, resoluticns
will be proposed at the Annual General
Meeting to
* renew the existing authonties to 1ssue
a imted number of shares and to
purchase up to 10% of the issued share
caprtal of the Company

* seek authonty to make pelitical donations
under the Poltical Partres, Elections
and Referendums Act 2000, as amended
(It 1s not the Group's paolicy to make political
donations This Is a precautionary measure
which 1s followed by many companies
to ensure that thers 1s no inadvertent
breach of the law)

* re-glact Mr K G Harvey, Mr M D Angle,
Mr G D Connell, Mr C | J H Drummond,
Mr D J Dupent and Mr C Loughiin
and elect Ms G A Rider, as Directors
of the Company

* sesk authonty to continua to call
gengral meetings, other than an annual
general meeting, on not less than 14
clear days' notice (Pursuant to the EU
Sharsholder Rights Directive shareholder
authority 1s required to continue to call
meetings on at least 14 clear days' notice
Such authonty would only be exercised
by the Directors in exceptional
circumstances and if they considered
that t was In the best interests
of sharsholders and the Compary
as a whole to do so)
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Gavernance

Corporate governance report

Chairman’s introduction

The Board recognises that the highest standards of corporate governance are key
to managing Pennon Group successfully in the best interests of its shareholders

and other stakeholders.

Role of the Board and its effectiveness
My prirmary role as Chairrnan 1$ to prowide
leadership to the Board and to provide

the nght enviranment to enable the Directors
and the Board as a whols to perform
effectively to promote the success of the
Company for the benefit of its shareholders
In doing so wa take account of the Interests
of our customers, employess, suppliers,
communiies in which we operate

and other interestad stakeholders

I continue to firmly believe that we have good
governance In place and that we operate
effectivety as a Board However there

1s always room for improvemesnt and each
year we cany out a detalled performance
evaluation of the Board and each of the
Committees as well as of the Directors

and the Group General Counsel & Company
Secretary Further details of the review,

which was again faciitated by an external
govermance consultancy, are set out later

in thus report | remain mindful of the need

to ensure that the Non-exscutive Directors
continue to have appropnate up to date
knowledge and understanding of both South
West Water and Vindor as they develop

and pursue new Intiatives

Dear shareholder

| am pleased 1o introduce the corporate governance report for

2013 on behalf of the Board

The Annual Report continues to be the prncipal means of

reporting to our shareholders on the Board's governance policies
This Report sets out how the main and supporting principles of

good corporate governance set out In the UK Corporate Governance
Code (2010 Edticn) have been applied in practice The Code s
publicly avalable on the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) website

www.frepublications.com

This year the Board has receved
presentations from senior managernent
on matenal developments in the businesses
including waste and renewable energy
policy developments, our energy from
waste plant projects, and regulatory

and legislative changes proposed by
Ofwat and Government The Board has
also visited new plants under construction
In the Greater Manchester area to obtain
first hand knowledge of the projects

Remuneration

The Board and the Remuneration
Committee reman mindful of sharsholder
and Government concerns regarding
companies' remunaration practces

We have always pursued a rernuneration
policy of setting pay at a level which

Is adequate to attract and retain hugh
calibre managemenrt and prowviding
incentives which are fully aligned with
creating shareholder value We have
reviewed our pay and benefits practice
agan thig year and are satisfied that no
changes are necessary to this policy

Shareholder engagement

The Directors and | recognise the mportance
and valus of regular communications with
our shareholders

This ensures that we understand therr needs
and wishes and hopefully that we provide
them wath confidence that we have the

nght governance structures, processes and
systerns In place to assist us N achieving our
stated objectves

A regular dialogue with the Company's
institutional shareholders s maintamned
through a comprehensive investor relations
programme Dunng the year some 70
meetings with instiutional shareholders

and prospective shareholders were held
and attended by the Group Director

of Finance and the Company’s Investor
Relations Manager The Chief Executive

of South West Water and the Chief Executive
of Vindor also particpated when appropnate
The Greup Director of Finance continues

to report to the Board regutarty on major
shareholders' views about the Group

and every six months the Company’s
brokers give a presentation to the Board

on equity market developments and
shareholder perceptions

| also actvely encourage the participation

of shareholders at our Annual General
Meeting and as usual at our 20H 3 Annual
General Mesting on 1 August all our Directors
intend to ba present together with a number
of directors and executives of South West
Water and Vindor to mest with shareholders
to discuss the business of the Group
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To view our online annual repon
www pennonannualreport.co uk/2013

Compliance with UK

Corporate Governance Code

and other requirements

1 am pleased to report that throughout
the year the Company compled with
the prowsions and applied the man pnnciples
set out In the UK Comorate Governance
Code (2010 Edtion} with no exceptions
to report The Code was revised In
September 2012 to apply to companies’
financial years beginning on or after

1 October 2012 We believe we are also
comphanrt with the revised Code but

it wilk not formally apply to our reporting
to sharsholders until next year

My introduction to this corporate
governance report and the following
sectons are mads in compliance with

the UK Corporate Governance Coda,

FSA Lsting Rule 9 8 6 and FSA Disclosure
and Transparency Rules 7 1 and 7 2

and cover the work of our Board and ds
Committees, our intamal control systems
and procedures including nsk managsmant,
our corporate governance statements
relating to share capttal and control,

and our going concern and Directors’
responsibiliies statements

Ken Harvey
Chairman

25 June 2013

Contents of the corporate
governance report

3338883 & ARARRER

The Board of Directors

The Board and its Committees

The Directors, ther ndependence and responsibilities
How the Board operates

Performance evaluation

Dealing wath Directors’ conflicts of interest

Board Committees

Board Committees’ Terms of Reference
The Audit Committee
The Sustainabilty Committee

The Nomination Committee
The Board's dwverstty policy

Internal control

Wider aspects of internal control
Risk identification

Internal contral framework

Intermal control review

Going concem

Directors' responsibilities statements
Corporate governance statements

Directors’ remuneration report
Remuneration policy for Executive
Dwectors, ncluding incentive plans,
pensions and service contracts
Elements of remuneration

Total shareholder return

Remuneration policy for the Chairman
and Non-executive Directors, Including
contracts for services

Implementation of the rermuneration policy
Executve Directors' pensions

Directors' share interests

Single total figure table

Basis of preparation

Independent audstors’ report
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Governance

Board of Directors

Chairman

Kenneth George Harvey

CBE, Bsc

Chairman

Committees Nomination {Chanman)

Appointed on 1 March 1897 Ken was formerly chainman and chief executve of Norweb Plc
He was charman of National Gnd Holdings in 1895 and was previously deputy chairman

of London Electncity and earlier its engineenng director He has also been charman

of a number of Imited and private equity funded companies Currently he is the senior
independent non-executive director of National Gnd Ple

Executive Directors

Colmn Irwin John Hamilton Drummond
OBE, MA, MBA, LTCL, HonFSE

Chief Executive, Viridor

Committees Sustainability, Executve

Appointed on 1 Apnl 1992 Pror to joining
the Company Golin was a divisional chief
execuive of Coats Viyalla, hawng previcusty
been corporate development director

of Renold Plc, a strategy consultant with
the Boston Consutting Group and an official
of the Bank of England He Is charman of
the Government's Living with Envircnmental
Change Business Advisary Board and of
the Envronmental Sustainabilty Knowledge
Transfer Network Me 1s a senior visiting
research fellow in Earth Sciences

at Oxford University and a Past

Master of the Worshipful Company

of Water Conservators

Caolin is due to retire from the Board
when a successor has been appointed
which 1s expected to be around the end
of September 2013 At that time Colin
will become the chairman of the board
of Vindor Limited and wil retain his
directorship of that company

Dawvid Jeremy Dupont

MA, MBA,

Group Director of Finance
Committees Executive

Appainted on 2 March 2002 Dawid was
formerty regulatory and finance director

of South West Water Limited, having joined
Pennon Group Plc (then South West Water
Plc) In 1992 as strategic planning manager
Previously he held business planning

and development roles with Gateway
Carporation He I1s a member of the CBI
Environmentat Affairs Committee

and the CBI South West Regional Council

Christopher Loughlin

BSc Hons, MICE, CEng, MBA

Chief Executive, South West Water
Committees Sustainabilty, Executive

Appainted on 1 August 2006 Chns was
previously chief operating officer with Lloyd's
Register and earlier In his career was an
executive director of Bntish Nuclear Fuels Plc
and executive chairman of Magnox Electnc
Plc He was alsc a senior diplomat in the
Bntish Embassy, Tokyo Chnis started his
career as a chartered engineer working

In both the consulting and contracting
sectors and subsequently held a number

of senior positions with Brtish Nuclear

Fuels Between Apnl 2008 and March 2012
he was chamnman of Water UK Currertly
Chns is vice-chaimman of the Cormwall

Local Enterpnse Partnership, President

of the Institute of Water and a trustee

and member of the audt committee

of the glebal chanty, WaterAd
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Non-executive Directors

Martin Dawvid Angle BSc Hons, FCA, MCSI
Non-executive Director

Committees Audit, Sustainability,
Nominaticn, Remuneration (Chairmany)

Appointed on 1 December 2008

Martin curently holds non-executive
directorships with Sawlls Ple, OAQ Severstal,
Shuaa Capital psc and The Natonal
Exhibition Group where he 1s chairman

In addition he sits on the board of the FIA
Foundation where he 1s a vice-charman
Formerly he held senior positions with Tema
Firma Caprtal Partners and varous of its
portfalic companes, Including the executive
charmanship of Waste Recyciing Group
Limted Before that he was the group
finance director of Tl Group Plc and held

a number of sentor Investment banking
postions with SG Warburg & Co Ltd, Morgan
Stanley and Cresdner Kleinwort Benson

Dinah Alison Nichols CB, BA Hons
Non-executive Director

Committees Audit, Sustainability (Chairman},
Nominaticn, Remuneraticn

Appointed on 12 June 2003 Dinah was
formerty Director General Environment

at the Department for Environment, Food
and Rural Affarrs and previcusly held vanous
senior appontments within Government,
including being head of the water directorate
dunng the penod of water prvatisation

She 1s also a Crown Estate counsellor,

a non-executive director of the Land Trust,
charr of Keep Bntan Tidy and an external
member of counail of the National Trust
Dinah 1s due to retire from the Board

at the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting on 1 August 2013

Company Secretary

Kenneth David Woodier,

Soliciior, CMA, DiMS, CPE (Law)

Group General Counsel & Company
Secretary

Committess Executive

Appointed company secretary to the Board
in March 1998 Ken was formerly the head
of group legal services at Pennon Group
Plc {then South West Water Plc) from
February 1290 Previously he held senor
legal positions with H P Butmer (Holdings)
Plc, Investors in Industry Plc (3) and Severn
Trent Water He 1s a director of the Devon

& Somerset Law Society and a member

of its governance committee

Gerard Dominic Connell MA

Semor Independent

Non-executive Director

Committees Audit (Chairman),
Sustainabilty, Nomination, Remuneraton

Appoirted on 1 October 2003 Gerard
currently Is 2150 a non-executve director
and chairman of the audt committee

of the Defence Science and Technology
laboratory and the independent director,
finance and investment, of the Nuclear
Decormrmissioning Fund Company Limited
He was previously group finance director
of Wincanton Plc Before that he was

a director of Hil Samuel and a managing
director of Bankers Trust, having traned
cnginally at Pnce Waterhouse He s also
a governor of King's College School,
Wimbledon Gerard 1s due to retire from
the Board at the conclusion of the Annual
General Meeting In 2014

Gill Ann Rider CB, PhD, FCIPD
Non-executive Director

Committees Audit, Sustainability
(Chairman with efiect from 2 August 2013),
Nomination, Remurieration

Appointed on 1 September 2012 Gill currently
holds non-executive directorships with Charles
Taytor Consutting Plc, the Chartared Institute

of Personnel & Development where she 1s
president, De La Rue Plc where she is chairman
of the remuneration committee and she is char
of counal of the University of Southampton
Formerty Gill was head of the Cvil Service
Capahilty Group in the Caoinet Office reporting
to the Cabmnet Secretary and pnor to that held
a nurmber of senior postions with Accenture
culminating in the post of chief leadership
officer for the global fim
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Govemnanice

Corporate governance and internal control

The Board and its Committees

The Board

The Directors, their ndependence

and responsibilthies

The Board of Directors at the end of the year
comprised the Chairman, three Executive
Directors and four Non-executve Directors
All of the Non-executive Directors wers
considered by the Beoard to be independent
throughout the year None of the relatonships
or ciroumstances set cut Inprovison B 1 1
of the UK Corporate Governance Code
(2010 Ediion) (the Cods) appled to them
other than in respect of Dinah Nichols who,
following the Annual General Maeting last
year, had served on the Board for more than
mine years since her first election Following
this year's Annual General Meeting and
subject to re-election, Gerard Connell wailt
also have served on the Board for more than
nine years since his first election However
Dinah and Gerard have been determined by
the Board to be Independent The Beard

18 sathisfied that they do and will continue

to demonstrate iIndependence of character
and judgement in the performance cf ther
roles on the Board

In accerdance with the Board's planned
SUCCessIon process, as reported last

year, Dinah Nichols will be retinng from

the Board at the close of the Annual General
Meeting this year and Gerard Connell wil
retire at the dose of the Annual General
Meeting in 2014

All of the Non-executive Directors are
considered to have the appropnate skills,
expensnce in therr respectve disoiplines
and perscnaltty to bring independent

and objective Judgement to the Board’s
deliberations Their brographies on pages 62
and 63 demonstrate collectively a broad
range of business, financial and other
relsvant expenence Gerard Conngll

15 the Senior Independent Non-executive
Director His dutes include leading

the annual evaluation of the performance

of the Charman by the Non-executive
Directors and being available as an
additional potnt of cantact on the Board

for shareholders Gerard is also charman
of the Audit Committee and n accordance
with the Code’s pnneiples relating to audrt
committee membership ha has recent

and relevant financial expenence {(as set out
in his biography on page 63) Martin Angle
18 also a member of the Audit Committee
and he has relevant financial expenence

as sat out in his biography, alse on page 63

Thers Is a clear dmision of responsibilties
between the roles of Charman and the
Chisf Executives of South West Water
and Vindor as recorded in the descnptions
of the roles approved by the Board

All Directors are now subject to re-election
each year in accordance with provision

B 7 1 of the Code

The Board

The Directors on the Board and ther
attendance at the 11 scheduled mestings of
the Board dunng 2012/13 are shown below

Board membership Appointment date Attendance

Chairman

Kenneth Harvey March 1997 11/11
" Non-executve Drrectors T

Martin Angle December 2008 11/11

Gerard Connell October 2003 1011

Dinah Nichols June 2003 1111

Gill Rider September 2012 7

Executive Directors

Colin Drummond Apnl 1992 1111

David Dupont March 2002 1141

Christopher Loughiin August 2006 11/11

All Directors are equally accountable

for the proper stewardship of the Group's
affars with the Non-executive Directors
having a particular responsibiity for ensunng
that strategies proposed ior the development
of the business are criticaly reviewed

The Non-executive Directors also entically
examine the operaticnal and financial
performance of the Group and fulfil a key
role in corporate accountability through

their membership of the Committeas

of the Board In addtion the Charman holds
meetings with the Non-executive Directors,
without the Executive Directors prasent,

to discuss performance and strategic Issues

How the Board operates

In accordance with Group policies the
Board has a schedule of matters resarved
for ts decision and delegates more detalled
consideration of certain matters to Board
Committees, to the subsidiary boards

of South West Water and Vindor,

to the Executive Directors, and to the Group
General Counsel & Company Secretary,

as gppropnate  The matters reserved

to the Board include the approval of financial
statements, acquisticns and disposals,
major temns of capital expenditure,

authonty levels for other expenditure,

nsk management, and approval of the
strategic plan and annual operating budgets

The Board cperates by recemving written
reports crculated In advance of ts meetings
from the Executive Directors and the Group
General Counsel & Company Secretary

on matters within theirr respective business
areas In the Group

Under the gurdance of the Chairman

all matters before the Board are discussed
openly and presentations and agvice

are receved frequently from other senior
executives within the Group and from
external advisers

Directors have access to the acvice

and services of the Group General Counsel
8 Company Secretary and the Board has
established a procedure whereby Directors,
In order to fuffit their duties, may seek
independent professional adwice

at the Company's expense

The traning needs of Directors are reviewed
as part of the Board's performance
evaluation process each year
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Performance evaluation

The Board has well developed internal
procedures to evaluate the performance

of the whole Board, each Committee,

the Charman, each indvdual Drector

ard the Group General Counsel & Company
Secratary The evaluation procedure relating
to the Board and its Committees was

once again adminsstered by an external
governance consuftancy, Lintstock

All participants’ views were sought via an
cnkne queshonnare on a range of guestions
which were speariically designed by the
Charman and the Group General Counsel
and Company Secretary in conjunction

with Lintstock to ensure objective evaluation
of performance Responses were then
summansed and evaluated by Lintstock for
the Board and each Committee to consider
and determine whether any changes should
be made to be more effective

The Board constdered the findings of the
evaluation and, while performance was
again considered to be satisfactory overall,
anumber of areas were identified where
enhancements to Beard practice could be
made These included mere laison with
subsidiary boards and allocating more tme
for strategic discussion and presentations
from management on key business issues

The Board will be monrtonng implementaticn

of these enhancements over the coming
months to ensure that they are successfully
implemented

The Chatman's performance was evaluated
separately by the Non-exscutive Directors,

led by the Semor Independant Non-executive

Director The Charman’s other significant
commitments outside the Group did not
change dunng the year and the Board

was sabisfied that such commitments did
not prejudice the Chairman’s perfermance
In relation to his Group role He will be
rebngushing his non-executive directorship
on the Board of National Gnd in July 2013

Dealing with Directors'

confhicts of Interest

The Board has In place a procedure

for the consideration and authonsation

of Directors’ conflicts or possible conflcts
with the Company's Interests This is n
accordance with the Directors’ interests
provisions of the Compantes Act 2006
and the Company's Articles of Association
which grants to Directors authonty

to approva such conflicts subject

o appropnate conditions

Board Committees

Group policies aliocate the tasks

of gvng detaled consideration

to speciiied matters, to monitonng
exgcutive actions and to assessing
reward, to the Board Commitiees as

set out n the remaning sections of this
corporate governance report on pages
66 to 69 and the Directors’ remuneration
report on pages 72 and 73

Board Committees’
Terms of Reference

The Tenms of Reference of sach of the Audht,
Remuneration, Normination and Sustainability
Committees are set out on the Company’s
website www pennon-group ¢o uk or
avallable upon request to the Group
Company Secretary

The Remuneration
Committee

Detalts of the Remuneration Committes
and the Directors' remuneration report
can be found on pages 72 to 83
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Govemance

Corporate governance and internal control

Continued

The Audit Committee

Committee membership
Committee Chawrman
Gerard Connell
Members

Martin Angle

Dinah Nichols

Gill Rider

Qur actwvities dunng the year

A contnuing focus has been reviewing

the systems and controls in place in Vindor
{o manage its complex and regionalised
businesses across the UK. Vindor has been
re-assessing and enhanging 1ts processes
and controls, including planning for the
development of a new surte of [T systems,
to manage the strong growth expected from
its energy from waste plants, its recycling
businesses and its major contracts with
waste authonties The Committee was
pleased to note, for example, that audit
review of the self-assessment processes
implernented at site level and a focus on
the control responsibilities of local business
managers have together contnbuted to

an enhancement of the qualty of the nsk
assessment and monitonng within Vindor's
regional actmties

Towards the year-end there was particular
focus on the impairment reviaw in Vindor
The Commitee revewed and challenged
the key assumptions on which cashfiow
projections were based and considerad

a number of aternative scenanos with
appropnate sensitvty analysis, to test

Appointment date Meeting attendance
October 2003 6/6
December 2008 6/6
June 2003 6/6
September 2012 4/4

the appropnateness and prudence of
management estimates Key 1ssues
debated Included discount rates and the
determination of cash generating units

At Group level the 'gomng concern'
pesiticn was reviewed and it was
concluded that there was a reasonable
expectation that the Group had adequate
resources to continue its operations

for the foreseeable future

In South Wast Water the emphasis has been
on continuing to iImprove the efficiency of its
systerns whilst ensunng that nsks are being
appropnately assessed and controls in place
are operating satisfactonly The Committee
was pleased to note that South West Water
reviewed and refreshed its nsk assessment
and internal control processas dunng

the year In preparation for revised reporting
protocols to Ofwat and its next Penodic
Review in 2015

We also re-assessed our overall Group nsk
review processes dunng the year beanng in
mind that t was 12 years since the Group
introduced detalled nsk management policies
and procedures In accordance with tha

Turnbull Recommendations Deloitte
undertook a full review and, whilst concluding
that the Group’s nsk culture and processes
were generally satisfactory, made a number
of recommendattons to enable more focused
attention on key nsks at Board level As part
of the Group’s nsk review process the key
areas cf sensimty to the Group have been
reassessed and these are set out on pages
36 to 47 We have concentrated on the

high level key nsks to the Group and have,
where appropriate, provided an indication

of how the leve! of nsk has changed over

the past year

As reported In previous Annual Reports
wa continue to monitor carsfully

the effectiveness of our external auditors
as well as thetr ndependence, beanng
inmingd that 1t 1s recognised there

IS an ongoing need to use our auditors'
finrm for non-audit services

We have full regard to the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethical Standards
and ensure that our procedures

and safeguards meet these standards

Penodically a detalled review of the provision
of external audrtors 1s undertaken in
accordance with best practice and in Ine
with the latest edibion {September 2012)
UK Corporate Governance Code it 15 now
our policy to review the external auditor
appointment by putting it out to tender

at least every 10 years Tha last such
review was undertaken in 2006 whan the
current audritors were appointed following a
comprehensive competinve tender process
In addition the audrtors’ appointment 15
reviewed annually by the Committee As
part of this annual review the Committes
considers the tenure, qualty and fees of
the audtors

Qur polcy for the engagement of the
auditors’ firm for non-audit work involves
the Group Director of Finance sething out
in a report to the Commitiea the reasons
for appointing the audrtors' firm for any
matenal work and cbtaning the approval
of the Committee We carefully review
whether it 1s necassary for the auditors'
firm to carry out such work and we will
only grant approval for ther appointment
if we are satisfied that the auditors’
Independence and objectmty are

fully safeguarded

The Company’s audtors assist In this
process by ensunng that the senior partner
responsble for the external audtt of the
Group remains responsible for such audit
for no more than five years and that there
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is a Qualty Review Partner who 1s invoived
in planning the audit and In the reviewing
of the final accounts of the Company
including assassing any Gitical matters
which may be identified In the audrt

The auditors have also confinmed

to the Committee that they have
complied with all relevant guidance
1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board
and have implemented appropnate
safeguards including

¢ All non-audit related services,
where necassary, being performed
by personnel iIndependent of the audit
engagement team

* No work being undertaken that would
require the auditors to act In a capacity
as an advocate

* No aspect of the auditing engagement
partner's performance bemng assessed
on the level of non-audit fees charged
to the Company

» The Committee Charman meeting
with the auditors' independent senior
partner penodically to discuss the scope
and performance of therr work,

Set out on page 103 1s the level of fees

paid o the Company’s auditors' firm

for audt services, or audit-related services
and non-audit services, following the
guidance proposed by the Auditing Practices
Board's Ethical Standards Guidance

for Auditors

It 1s recognised that the level of non-

audrt fees payable to the Company’s
audttors’ firm in the past year was in excess
of the audtt fee paid This was pnmanly due
to fees pad o the corporate finance arm of
the auditors’ firm in relabon to the major new
PPP contract gains by Vindor We considered
carefully the reasons for the engagement

of the auditors' firm N accordance

with the process described above Of
paramount iImportance was the continuing
independence of the audtors which the
Committee was satsfied was maintained due
to the safeguards followed by the auditors’
firm as descnbed above

We were also satisfied that it was appropnate
to appoint the auditors' fimm to undertake
such work becausa of therr specialist
knowledge and the imited number of
consultants with the expertise to undertake
such engagements

These PPP contracts are of wital importance
to the long-term strategic development of
Vindor and 1t 1s criical that Vindaor should be
able to benefit from the best acvice avallable
in the market The number of PPP contract
opportunities s now declining which should
lead to a comasponding decline n corporate
finance fees payable

Another area of particular importanca

to the Committee is the internal audit
actmtes of the Group The Group has

a lengstanding and effective centralised
internal audit function led by an expenenced
head of functon who makes a sigruficant
contribution to the ability of the Audit
Committee to delver its responsibilties

A Group Internal Audit Plan 1s approved in
September each year It takes account of the
actviies to be undertaken by the external
audritor and also the Group's annual and
ongoing nsk managernent reviaws This
approach seeks to ensure that there is a
programme of internal and external audt
raviews focused on key nsk areas throughout
the Group

The Group Audit Manager reports quarterly
to the Committee on audit reviews
undertaken and ther findings and there are
regular Informal discussions and meetings
between the Group Audit Manager

and the Audit Committee Chairman

The areas of the business that receved
attention from Group Internal Audit over the
past year included
¢ Pennon - group treasury

and group insurance
* Vindor - acquistions and due
diligence, recycling iIncluding trading
and foreign exchange management,
Lakeside EfW, care sales processes
including landfill and collections,
and environmental provisions
South West Water - core income
and billing processes, bank payment
processes, developer sernvices and new
connections, business development
& sales ledger, reactive mantenance,
and credit management

We have also considered a range of matters
dunng the year in accordance with our
established calendar of business and Terms
of Reference ncluding in particular
+ Reviewing the acoounting policies
and reporting Judgements adopted
by the Group in prepanng the financial
statements We were satisfied that

they were approprate to prowvde a far
assessment of the financial performance
of the Group
* Agreeing the external auditors’ strategy
for camying out the audit dunng the past
financial year
» Carryng out a review of the Half
Yearly Report with the external auditors
Considenng a report from the external
auditors on the review of the financial
year-end and meeting them in the
absence of management to discuss
ther remit and any 1ssues ansing from
the audtt, Including managerment’s
treatment of significant judgements which
the auditors had confirmed {following
discussion with management) were
considered to be satisfactory
* Reviewing the effectrvaness of the
Group's internal controls, Including
all matenal financial, operahional
and compliance controls and nsk
management systems
* Monitorng and reviewing the
effectveness of the Group's Internal audit
function and approving the annual internal
audt plan
Reviewing the findings of the internal
audt function and reviewing
and monitonng management's
responsiveness to such findings
* Overseaing the relationship with
the external aucitors INcluding
ther appointment, remuneration,
re-appointment and the monkonng
of therr ndependence and objectvty
parbcularty having regard to the supply
of any non-audit services by the
auditors’ firm
* Reviawing the level of audit and non-audit
fees paid

After consideration of the reports provided
by the external audtors, and our assessment
of the performance and independence

of the auditors dunng the year in conjunction
with the Group Director of Finance,

we consider that it 1s appropnate that

the external auditors be re-appointed

and wil make an appropnate
recommendation to sharsholders

at the Annual General Meeting

It 1s our practice as an additional assurancs,
at the end of meetings of the Committee,
to hold separate meetings with the external
auditors and the internal Group Audit
Manager without management present

to discuss their respective areas of actmty
dunng the previous pencd and any Issues
ansing from therr respective audits
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Govermance

Corporate governance and internal control

Continued

The Sustainability Committee

Committee membership

Committee Chairrnan
Dinah Nichols
Members

Martin Angle

Gerard Connell

Colin Drummond
Chnistopher Loughlin
Gill Rider

The Sustanability Committee's duties,

i the context of the requirement for
companies to conduct ther business

i a responsible manner (in relation

to environmental, soca! and governance
(ESG) matters), are to review the strateges,
policies, management, niratives, targsts
and performance of the Pannon Group

of companies In the areas of occupational
health and safety and secunty; environment,
workplace policies, non-financial regulatory
compliance and the role of the Group

N society

Appoiniment date Meeting attendance
November 2006 6/6
December 2008 6/6
November 2006 5/6
November 2006 6/6
November 2006 6/6
September 2012 2/2

Dunng the year the Comrmittee considered

a wide range of matters in accordance

with its Terms of Reference including

= developments and progress in carbon
management and reduction

¢ drving sustamabilty through
the Group's supply chains

= Increasing the sustanability of the Group's
transport fleet and operations

¢ the impact of the Group's chartable
donations and community support

* the Group's health and safety
performance and plans

+ the Group's workplace policies
and performance, including diversity
and equality of cpportuntty, employes
traning and development, opportunities
including apprenticeship schemes
and the Vindor in-house degree

In addrtion the Cormmittee considered

* The 2012/13 Group, South West Water
and Vindor sustainability reports, and
the associated venfier's reports for
2012/13 and his recommendations
for the 2013/14 Reports

* Progress aganst the sustainability
targets for 2012/13

» Sustanability targets for 2013/14

* The annual review of the coverage
and approprateness of Group policies

In reporting on sustainability, the Company
has sought to comply with the Association
of Bnhsh Insurers' Guidelines on Responsible
Investment Disclosure The business review
on pages 48 to 57 contains the Group's
2013 annual sustanabilty report
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The Nomination Committee

Committee membership
Committee Chairnan
Kenneth Harvey
Members

Martin Angle

Gerard Connell
Dinah Nichols

Gill Rider

The Nomination Committee meets

as and when required to select

and recornmend to the Board suitable
candidates for appointment as Executive
and Non-executive Directors to the Board
and to the Vindor and South West Water
beards, determine the nomination process
and review succession plans itis

the practice of the Committes, led

by the Chaiman, to appoaint an external
search consuitancy to assist in any

Board appointments

Appointment date Meeting attendance
March 1997 5/5
December 2008 5/5
October 2003 a/5
June 2003 5/5
September 2012 2/2

Dunng the year the Committes considerad
the annual performance evaluation

results for the Committes, considered

and approved the appontment of an
execttive director to the Vindor board

and a non-executive director to the Board,
both with the assistance of external search
consultants (KORN/FERRY Whitehead
Mann and Norman Broadbent respectively)
who have no other connechon with

the Company; reviewed succession plans
throughout the Group, and commenced
the process, with the assistance of an
external search consultant, (Zygos) which
has no other connection with the Company,
for the appointment of a successor

to the Chief Executive, Vinaor, who 1s due
to retire from his post when an appointment
has been made {cumsntly expected to be
September 2013)

The Board’s diversity policy

In accordance with the UK Corporate

Govemnance Code (2010 edition) the

Committee 1s pleased to report that the

Board has a Boardroom Diverstty Polcy

which confirms that the Board

15 committed to

* The search for Board candidates

being conducted, and appontments

made, on ment, aganst objective

cntena and with due regard for

the benefits of diversity on the Board,

including gender

Satisfyng ttself that plans are in place

for orderty succession of appointments

to the Board and to sentcr management

to mantain an appropnate balance

of skills and expenence within the Group

and on the Board and to ensure

progressive refreshing of the Board

In addtion, within the spimt of Prnciple B 2

of the Code, the Board will endsavour

to achieve and subsequently mantamn

— Amnimum of 25% female
representahion on the Board by 2015

— Amnimum of 25% female
representation on the Group's senior
management team by 2015

Currently the Group has 25% famaie
represantation at Board level although

this will rechuce to 14% whan Dinah Nichols
retires from the Board after this year's Annual
General Meeting In a workioree of around
4,500 at 31 March 2013 around 16% were
wormien In senior/middie management
executive posttions the female representation
was around 16%

As well as ts Boardroom Diversity Palicy
the Group has a number of policies
emmbracing workplace matters,

including non-discrimination

and equa! opportunties policies

The Committee Is required by the Board

to review and monitor compliance with

the Boardroom Diversity Policy and report
on the targets, achisvement aganst those
targets and overall compliance N the Annual
Report each year

Perncn Group Plc Annual Raport 2013 £9

marsano dnos

JBIEA 1SOM UINOS

Jopuip,

SIUBLLIDACYD dnain

siuaLale]s Eerueuly

r




Governance

Corporate governance and internal control

Continued

Internal control

Wider aspects of internal control

The Board Is responsible for maintaining

the Group's systern of internal control

to safeguard sharsholders’ investment

and the Group's assets and for reviewing

its effectiveness The system i1s designed

o manage rather than ehminate the nsk

of falure to achieve business objectives

and can only provide reasonable

and not absolute assurance against matenal
misstatemnent or loss There 1s an ongoing
process for identfying, evaluatng and
managing the significant nsks faced by

the Group that has been in place throughout
2012/13 and up to the date of the approval
of this Annual Report and Accounts

The Board confimms that it continues

to apply procedures In accordance with

{he UK Corporate Governance Code

and the ‘Guidance on Internal Controf’

(The Turmnbull Guidance) which suggests
means of apphying the internal control part

of the Code As part of these procedures
the Board has a Group Risk Management
Policy which provides for the identification of
key nsks In relation to the achieverment of the
business objactives of the Group, montonng
of such nsks and annual evaluation of the
overal process, as descrnbed in more detall
helow The Policy I1s appled by all business
units within the Group n accordance

with an annual trmetable

Risk identification

A full nsk and control assessment

15 undertaken annually by the management
of each business to identify financial and
non-financial nsks which are then regularly
updated Each business compiles (as part
of regular management reports) an enbanced
and focused assessment of key nsks aganst
corporate objectives At each meeting the
Board receves from the Executive Directors
detalls of any new high-level nsks identified
and how they are to be managed, together
with detals of any changes to existing nsks
and therr management The subsidiary
boards of South West Water and Vindor
also receve at each meeting similar reports
In respect of ther own areas of responsibility
In addtion the Group Drirector of Finance

i1s responsible for monitonng the Group Risk
Register and for reporting on key nsks and
how they are managed at regular ntervals
to the Audt Committee and to the Board

All Executive Directors and sentor managers
are required to cartify on an annual basts
that they have effective controls In place to
manage nsks and to operate In compliance
with legislation and Group procedures

We also have a Whistleblowing Policy

and we thoroughly investigate any allegations
of misconduct and imegulanty and consider
the Implications for our cortrol ervronment
In the normal course of business
inwveshgations into imegulanties may

be cngoing as of the date of the approval

of the financial staternents

All of these processes serve to ensure

that a cutture of effectve control and nsk
management 1S embedded within

the organisation and that the Group 1s i

a position to react appropnately to new nsks
as they anse Detalls of key nsks affecting
the Group are set out in the business review
on pages 36to 47

Internal control framework

The Group also has a well established
internal control framework which

15 operated and which applies in relation
to the process for prepanng the Group's
consolidated accounts

Thus frameworlk compnses

¢ A clearly defined structure which

delegates an approprate level of authanty,

responsibiity and accountability, including

responsibility for intemal financial control,

to managerment of operating units

A comprehensive budgeting and reporting

function with an annual budget approved

by the Board of Directors, which also

monitors the financial reporting process,

moenthly resutts and updated forecasts

for the year against budgst

* Documented financial contral procedures
Managers of operating units are required
to confirm annually that they have
adequate financial controls in operation
and to report all matenal areas of financial
nsk Compliance with procedures
1s reviewad and tested by the Company's
internal audrt function

* Aninvestment appraisal process for
evaluating proposals for all major capital
expenditure and acquisitions, with defined
levels of approval and a system for
monitoring the progress of capital projects

s A post-investment evaluation
process for major caprtal expendrture
and acquisions to assess the success
of the project and leam any lessons
to be applied to future projects

Internal control review

An evaluation of the effectnveness of overall
interral control compliance by the Group

1s undertaken in respect of each financial year
{and subseguently up to the date

of this report) to assist the Audit Committee
In constdenng the Group internal audrt

plan far the forthcommng financial year

and also the business review for the Annual
Report The Group General Counsel

8 Company Secretary ntially cames out
the evaluation with Directors and senior
managemant for consideration by

the Audit Committee and subsequently

for final evaluation by the Board

In addition the Audit Committee regulary
reviews the operation and effectivenass

of the internal control framework and annually
reviews the scope of work, authonty

and resources of the Company’s internal
audtt function The Committaee reports

and makes recommendations to the Board
on such reviews For 2012/13 and up

to the date of the approval of the Annual
Report and Accounts, both the Audit
Committee and the Board were satisfied
with the effectiveness of the Group Risk
Management Policy and the internal control
framework and ther operation within

the Group

Further information on the internal control
review Is set out on page 66 in relaticn
to the Audit Committee

Going concem

Having considered the Group's funding
position and financial projections the
Directors have a reascnable expectation
that the Group has adeguate resources

o continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future For this reason they
continua to adopt the going concem basis
in prepanng the financial statements

Directors' responsibilities statements
The Directors are responstble for prepanng
the Annual Report, the Directors'
remunerabon report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable
law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to
prepare financial statements for each financial
year Under that law the Directors have
prepared the Group and Company financial
statements in accordance with Intemational
Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs) as
adopted by the European Union
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Under company law the Directors must

not approve the financiat statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and far
wview of the state of affarrs of the Group

and the Company and of the profit or loss

of the Group for the year

In prepanng these financial statements

the Directors are required to

* Select suitable accouniing palicies
and then apply them consistently

» Make judgements and accounting
estmates which are reasonabla
and prudent

» State whether applicable IFRSs
as adopted by the European Union
have been followed, subject to any
matenal departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements

The Directors confirm that they have
complied with the above requirements
In prepanng the financial statements

The Diractors ara responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any tme the financial position
of the Group and the Company and enable
them to ensure that the financial statements
and the Directors' remuneration report
comply with the Companies Act 2006

and, as regards the Group financial
statements, article 4 of the International
Accounting Standards (lAS) Regulation
They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Group and the Company
and hance for takung reasonable steps

for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other imegularties

Each of the Directors, whose names

and functons are listed on pages 62 and

83, confims that, to the best of his or her

knowledge

&) The financial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as adopted by the EU, gve a true
and far view of the assets, labikties,
financial positon and profit of the Group
and of the Company, and

b) The Directors' report contained
on pages 4 to 59 includes a fair review
of the development and parformance
of the business and position of the
Company and the Group, together
with a descnption of the pnncipal nisks
and uncertanties they face

The Directors are responsible for the
maintenance and ntegnty of the Company’s
website pennon-group co uk Legistation

In the United Kingdom governing the
preparaton and dissemination of financial
statemeants may differ from legislation

In other junsdictions

Corporate governance statements

The following disclosures are made

pursuant to Part 8 of Schedule 7 of the Large
and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
{Accounts & Reports) Regulations 2008

and Rule 7 2 3 R of the UK Listing Authorty's
Disclosure and Transparency Rules (OTR)

As at 31 March 2013

a} Detalls of the Company’s 1ssued share
capital, which consists of Ordinary shares
of nominal value 40 7 pence each, are set
out N note 33 to the financid statements
on pages 131 to 133 Al of the Company’s
1ssued shares are fully paid up, rank
equally in all respects and are listed
on the Official List and traded on
the London Stock Exchangs The nghts
and obligations attaching to the
Company’s shares, in addition to those
conferred on ther holders by law,
are set out In the Company’s Articles
of Association { Aricles’), copies of which
¢an be obtaned from Companies House
In the UK or by wnting to the Group
Company Secretary at the Company's
registered office

The holders of the Company’s shares
are entitled to recenve the Company’s
reports and accounts and in relation
to gereral meetings of the Company
thay have the nght to attend and speak,
exarcise vohing nghts and appoint proxies,
b) There are no restnctions on the transfer
of issued shares of the Company or on
the exercise of voting nghts attached
to them, except where the Company
has exercised its nght to suspend ther
voting nghts or to prohibit ther transfer
following the orrussion of therr holder
or any person interested in them to provide
the Company with nformation requested
by it n accordance with Part 22 of the
Companes Act 2006 or where their holder
15 precluded from exercising voting nghts
by the Financial Services Authonty's Listing
Rules or the City Code on Takeovers
and Mergers,
¢) Details of significant direct or Indirect
holdings of secunties of the Cornpany
are set out In the shareholder analysis
on page 144,

d) The Company’s rules about the
appointment and replacement
of Directors are contained i the Arbicles
and accord with usual English company
law provisions The powers of directors
are determined by UK legislation
and the Articles In force from tme to tme
Changes to the Articles must be approved
by the Company’s shareholders
by passing a special resolution,

€) The Drrectors have the power to make
purchases of the Company's own shares
1 1ssue as set out In the Directors’ report
on page 59 ‘Purchase of own Ordinary
shares' No such purchases have been
made dunng the year Tha Directors also
have the authorty to allot shares up to
an aggregate nominal value of
) £49,141,234 {such amount to be
raduced by any shares allotted or nghts
granted under {ii) below n excess
of £49,141,234) or; (i) £98,282,468
by way of nghts issue (such amount
to bereduced by any shares allotted
or nghts granted from {j}} above)
which wera approved by shareholders
at the 2012 Annual General Meeting
{AGM) In addition, sharehoiders approved
a resolution gvng the Directors a imited
authorty to allot shares for cash other
than pro rata to exsting shareholders
These resoluticns remain valid untl
the conclusion of this year's AGM
Similar resolutions will be proposed
at this year's AGM The Directors have
no present Intention to 1ssue Crdinary
shares other than pursuant to the
Company's employee share schemes
and Scnp Dvidend Alternative, and

f) There are a number of agreements
which take effect, atter or terminate
upon a change of control of the Company
following a takeover bid, such as bank
loan agreements, Eurcbond
documentation, hybnd capital secunties
documentation, private placement
debt and emiployees’ share plans
MNane of these i1s considered to be
signficant in terms of their potentral mpact
on the business of the Group as a whole

By Order of the 1]
Ken Woodier

Group General Counsel
& Company Secretary
25 June 2013

-
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Govermance

Directors’ remuneration report

The Remuneration Committee

Committee membership
Committee Chairman

Appointment date  Mesting attendance

Martin Angle December 2008 4/4
Members

Gerard Connell October 2003 4/4
Dinah Nichols June 2003 4/4
Gill Rider September 2012 1/1

The Committee’s Terms of Reference iInclude
* Advsing the Board on the framework of executive remuneration for the Group

¢ Determining the remuneration and terms of engagement of the Chairman,
the BExecutive Directors and senior management of the Group

No Director or any other attendee participates in any discussion on,
or determination of, his or her own remuneration

Dunng the year the Committee receved advice or services which maternally
assisted the Committee in the consideration of remuneration matters from Ken
Harvay, Charman of the Company, and from the following adwvisors who were
appointed directly by the Committee
¢ Ken Wooder, Group General Counsel & Company Secretary, on remuneration
and share scheme matters He also prowides legal advice and company
secretanal services to the Company
» Delatte LLP, remuneration consultants, on calculating the Company's
total shareholder return compared with two comparator groups for
the Company's Performance and Co-investment Plan and subsequent
to the year-end Deloitte provided adwice to the Committee on the form
of the Directors’ remuneration report and on remuneration trends
Delorite also prowvded tax and comporate structure and nsk management
revew advice to the Company dunng the year
* Aon Hewtt Limited, pensions and remuneration consultants, on prowding
advice on pension benefits Aon Hewrtt also prowided actuanal advice
to the Company and to the Trustees of the Group's pension schemes

Dear shareholder

| am pleased to present the remuneration
report for 2013 on behalf of the Board
We will be presenting this report for your
approval at our Annual General Meeting
on 1 August 2013

We appreciate that thers continues

to be investor concern relating to executive
director remuneration generally and that
there 1s a need for all sectors to continue

to take account of this concern In reviewing
and setting ther remuneration policies

and overall remuneration practice

We have once agan reviewed cur
remuneration levels and benefits structure
with the assistance of our remuneration
consultants to ensure that they continue

tc be aligned with creating sharehclder
value and only provide rewards to Directors
commensurate with the achievements

of the Group Our current remuneration
arrangements have been in place without
amendment for the past six years

We have been following the Department

for Busness, Innovation & Skills (BIS)

consultations and drait regulations

on reperting of executive remuneration

Whilst the regulations are not In force

and final guidance has not yet been issued

we hava decided to adopt some of the

new reguirements earlier than necessary

to further enhance our reporting of

remuneration matters Therefore this year,

based on the requirements of the new

regulations, we have divided the report

nto two distinct sections, these being

1} Remuneration Policy which sets out
the components of our reward package,
how they are designed to support our
business strategy and how they apply
to each Executve Director and also
to the Charman and the Non-executive
Directors (pages 73to 77), and

2) Implementation of the Remuneration
Policy which contains the remuneration
of the Executive Directors for the year

201213 meluding the ‘sengle remuneration
figure' table showing each element n value

terms of remuneration for each Executive
Director (pages 78 to 83) ({This section
also contains the informaton required

1o be reported under current regulations)

We believe this demonstrates our
comimitmerit to transparent reporting and
highlights our approach to remuneration
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Remuneration policy
- Executive Directors

The Group's remuneration policy
which will be appled In 2013/14,
and 15 dlso currently intended to be applied
N each subsequent year, continues to be
to prowide a remuneration package for
Executive Directors which 1s adeguate
to attract, retain and motivate good quality
executves The key guiding pnnciples
of this policy are to
* Design an overall package to be
competitive and to take account
of the markets in which the Group's
businesses operata

* Suppor the overarching business
strategy for the Group and ensure
that remuneration i1s directly inked
to the Group's strategy

* Adopt iIncentive arrangements designed
to reward performance and align
the interests of the Executive Directors
with those of shareholders

* Ranforca the Incentive element
of the package by ensunng base
salanes for Executive Directors do
not form the majonty part of the total
reward opportunity

¢ Have a remuneration package which

15 far and consistent with other companies
in the sector and which provides incentives

for outperformance

In setting executive rermuneration

the Committes not only takes account

of employment market conditions,

but also of pay and benefits differentials
across the Group The Committee
cansiders annual summary reports

of relevant workforee remuneration

and terms and conditions of employment
within each operating company from the
Executive Directors and the Group Company
Secretary and has regard to these in satting
salary and other benefits for the Executive
Directors and serior management

The Committee also ensures that

the incentive structures do not raise
environmental, social or governance {ESG)
risks by inadvertently mobvating imesponsiole
behaviour Where appropnate indmdual
performance objectives specifically relate

to achieving non-financial, iIncluding ESG,
targets (as outlned on page 74)

The balance between maxmum
performancs-related remuneration
recenvable and direct remuneration

{i e excluding pensions, car benefit

and heafth cover) 15 the same as last

year with one-third direct and two-thirds
performance-related This is expected

ta continue for the foreseeable future

The Company also has a Shareholding
Guideline which apptes to Executive
Directors and sentor management It 1s
structured to demonstrate their commtment
to the future success of the Group
Executive Directors are expected to build up
therr shareholding over a five-year penod to
a value which 1s at least equivalent to ther
basic annu:al salary In accordance with the
Shareholding Guideline

The essential elements of our remuneration
package and therr purpose continue
to be as set out below

Elements of remuneration
Type of remuneration Descnption Purpose Detals on pages
Fixed
Basic salary Arnual salary set at a competitve level Rewards appropnately for the role 74 and 78
appropnate for role and based on undertaken and asssts in retention
Indmdual skills, expenience and recrutment
and performance
Pension Final salary (defined benefil) for existing  Assists in retention and recrutment 76and 79
Directors and defined contnbution
benefits for any new appomtees or
cash alternative commensurate with
] B market level pension aangements i
_Vanable e o N . _ e
Short-term - annual Assessed aganst Group Incentve for annual performance 74 and 81
Annuat Incentive Bonus Plan - and business financial performance across the Group at indmdual
Maximum 100% of basic salary - and indmdual personal achievements  and team lavel The deferred element
up to 50% paid In cash and up to 50% relating to a range of operational also assists in retention and recrutment
In shares deferred for three years and compliarice targets
Long-term - three years Total shareholder return performance A long-term reward which ahigns 75 and 80

Performance and Co-investment
Plan (PCP) - future periormance
over three years

cntena — 50% linkad to water Directors’ performance to sharehclder
and waste comparator group value and which dnves sustainable
and 50% linked to relative FTSE 250 practices and assists in retention

with an underpin relating to operational  and recrutment

and economic performance
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report

Continued

Remuneration policy
Continued

The following 1s a detaled surmmary
of the elements of remuneration

() Basic salary and benefits

These are set cut on page 78 for each
Executive Director and are not performance
related The Committee reviews salanes
annually taking account of market data
available from independent remuneration
consultants When reviewing base salanes,
the Commmuttes takes account of the
performance of the iIndmdual Executive
Directors which the Committee assesses
with the advice of Ken Harvey, Charman

of the Comparny Cther benefits include a
maamum of four times salary Ife assurance
cover, a fully expensed car or a cash
alternative, and haalth cover

(i) Performance-related bonus
Annual performance related bonuses are
awarded in accordance with the Group's
Annual Incentive Bonus Plan (the Bonus
Plan) and are based on the achievernent
by the Exacutive Directors of overall
corporate and indmdual objectives set
by the Committee The maxamum bonus
achieveble under the Bonus Plan for
Executive Directors for 2012/13 was 100%
of basic salary To achieve the maximum
percentage bonus allocated 1n respect
of the corporate targets of earnings per

Half of any bonus awarded i1s In the form

of Ordinary shares in the Company which
must usually be held for a penod of three
yaars before release [Defeved Bonus
Shares) During this penod the Directors,

In respact of the Deferred Bonus Shares,
are entitled to receve any dvidends declared
by the Company No additional parformance
conditions applicable to the release of

the Deferred Bonus Shares, apart from
maintaining continuous servce with the
Comparny, are considered appropnate

by the Cormrmittes mn view of the stretching
performance condtions applicable

o achieve the intial award of the Deferred
Borus Shares

The Committee, In setting the performance
objectives for Exacutive Diractors, takes
account of corporate performance on
ervronmental, social and governance
(ESG) matters Objectives set embrace
appropnate ESG parameters which are
irmportant to the success of the Group

and which seek to ensura that the Group
meets a number of ts ESG targets as set
out in the Group sustanability report

on pages 48 to 57 of the business review
The Committee In setting such objectives
and in determineng its remuneration policy
overall ensures that the relevant incantives
te Directors and senior management akgns
therr interests with shareholders and raise
no ESG nsks by Inadvertently motvating

share and profit bisfore tax 1 is necessary iresponsible behaviour
for the Company to achieve a specified

level of supenor outperformance

Executive Director Performance targets

Colin Drummond

QCut-performance of

* Group earnings per share against budget
* Profit before tax and net debt budgets of Viridor
s Personal objectives relating to key business targets for Viridor

The Cormmittee also has discretion

te moderate any performance-related bonus
awards in the event of any extenuating
creumstances ansing dunng the year

The Bonus Plan is also operated in
conuncticn with the Company's Execttive
Share Option Schemea (ESOS) on the basis
that the aggregate pre-tax value of the
awards made under both the Bonus Plan
and the ESOS would be the same as they
would have been if the Bonus Plan had been
cperated alone, which was the posttion prior
to 2009/10 This 1s achieved by prowviding
for Deferred Borus Shares awarded to be
forfested by the Directors up to the same
value as that of any gain made in respect of
options exercised by the Directors pursuant
to the ESOS at the end of the three-year
restncted penod Only the HMRC approved
part of the ESOS was operated in 2009/10
which enabled options over Ordinary shares
in the Company to be granted to Directors
tothe value of £30,000 at the then prevaling
pnce Those options wers exarcised by

the Executive Directors at the end of the
three-year restncted perod in September
2012 Details of the options are set out
Inthe table n paragraph (d) on page 82

No further options were granted in 2012/13
but it 1s anticipated that they will once

again be granted in 2013/14 to the value of
£30,000 in conunction with the Banus Plan

Set out below 1s a summary of the
performance targets determined by

the Committee for each Executive Director
for 2013/14 These are similar to the targets
applied for 2012/13

Dawvid Dupont

Qut-performance of

* Group earnings per share against budget

* Profit before tax of South West Water and Vindor
s Net debt and net interest of the Group

¢ Personal objectives relating to Group financing and other Group imtiatives.

Chrnis Loughlin

Qut-performance of

» Group earnings per share against budget

* Average of the bonus earned by the other Executive Directors of South West Water
(which relate to out-performance against the operating costs, profit before tax, capital
expenditure and net debt budgets of the company, the position the company achieves in
the ‘Service Incentive Mechanism’ of water and sewerage companies established by Ofwat,
the achievermnent of a range of service standards set for the company by Ofwat and personal
objectives relating to key inthatives, projects and complhiance targets for South West Water)
s Personal objectives relating to implementing South West Water's new strategies
and projects and meeting compliance targets.
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The achievemments of the Executive Directors
aganst ther performance objectives are
assessed by the Committee following the
financial year-end when the audted results
of the Company and performance agamst
the paramesters set are known This enables
the Commtttee to apply largely objective
cntena in determining the leve! of bonus

(if any) which should be awarded, with

the benefit of advice from the Chaiman

of the Company, Ken Harvey, and also

a report from the chamman of the Audr
Committes on the outcome of the financial
perfermance of the Group

(i) Long-term incentive plan

A Performance and Co-investment Plan
(PCP) was operated by the Company
dunng the year for Executive Directors
and senior management

The purpose of the PCP is to award shares
to participants subject to the achisvement
of stretching performance conditions
measured cover three years Awards under
the PCR in the form of a condtional nght
over Ordinary shares In the Company, were
made by the Committes in July 2012

and, for Executive Directors, the award

was over shares worth 100% of basic salary
In accordance with ts discretion pursuant
to the rules of the PCP the Committee
made the vesting of tha awards also subyect
to the fulfiiment of a co-nvestment condiion
whereby Executive Directors were required
to nvest and hold shares in the Company
equal to 20% of the value of therr award
over the Restncted Penod (baing a penod

of three years from the date of the award)
The percentage requirement for senior
managemeant was suttably scaled back

The number of shares subject to each award
In the event of vesting will be ncreased by
such number of shares as could have besn
acquired by renvesting the dwdends which
would otherwise have been receved on
those shares pnor to vesting or exercise

The PCP awards made in July 2012 will vest based on the Company's total shareholder
return (TSR) performance over the Restncted Penod against two different comparator groups
as set out below This is the same performance cntena that was appled to the PCP awards
made in July 2011 and July 2010 TSR measures the value created for sharsholders through
INcreases In share pnce and the payment of dmdends and was applied by the Committes
becauss, based upon advice received from remuneration consultants, Delotte LLP

it beliaves that this i1s an appropnate measure to align the interests of the Executive

Directors with those of shareholders

Water/waste index measure

Up to 50% of an award will vest acconding to the Company’s TSR performance measured
aganst an index made up of the following six listed water and waste comparator companies
* Natonai Gnd

* Sharks Group

* Seché Environnement

¢ Suez Envronnement

» Severn Trent

s United Utiities

Thesa companies are regarded as the Company's key listed comparators

For the PCP awards mada in July 2010 and July 2011 the comparator group

was the same as set out above with the exception of National Gnd which replaced
Northumbnan Water Group following its delisting from the London Stock Exchange

in October 2011 The Committee i respect of the Juty 2010 and July 2011 awards,

at the end of the thres-year Restncted Penod in respect of each award, will have discrebon
to include this company in the calculation of the ndex up to the date of delisting (or other
earlier date at s discretion) and exclude the company from that date onwards, or adopt an
alternative approach

Level of vesting

Above the index + 15% 50%
Equal to the index 15%
Straight-line vesting in between above positions

Below the index 0%

FTSE 250 Index* measure

Up to 50% of an award will vest according to the Company's ranked TSR performance against

the constituents of the FTSE 250 index {excluding investment trusts) This 1s the FTSE Index to
which the Company belonged at the tirme of the award

Level of vesting

At or above the 75th percentile 50%
Above 50th percentile 15%
Straight-line vesting in between above posrtions

At or below the 50th percentile 0%

* Excluding invastment trusts

In addrtion to the above TSR conditions, before any award is capabile of vesting, there 1s
an 'Underpin’ condition whereby the Committee needs to be satisfied that the undertying
operational and econarnic performance of the Company 1s at a satisfactory level

This evaluation iIncludes consideration of ESG factors and safety performance, as well a5
financial performance Whilst the Committea intends currently to apply simitar performance
conditions including the ‘Undern’ to any future PCP awards, they are reviewed on an
annual basis to ensure that the conditions continue to be appropnate and sutably stretching
for future awards
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report

Continued

For the PGP awards made in July 2009

the same performance measures were

used as sat out on the previous page except
that Northumbrian Water Group was included
in the sector comparator group (instead

of National Gnd) As this company was
delisted fram the London Stock Exchange

1n October 2011 the Committes included
the company In the calculation of the Index
up to the date of deltsting and excluded

it from that date onwards

The caleulabion of TSR performance
over the three-year performance psnod
{being 1 Apnl 2009 to 1 Aprl 2012)

for these PCP awards was undertaken
by Deloitte LLP for the Committee

The table below summanses

the calculation

Comparator group Perticn of award Performance Percentile rank Final vesting level
Waste/Water index 50% 47 7% out- - 50.0%
performance
against index
FTSE 250* 50% 71 outof 178 60 5% 28 3%
Total vesting 78 3%
* Exciuding iwestment trusts

The Committee was satisfied that the ‘Underpin’ condition referred to overeaf had been
met and therefore approved the vesting of 79 3% of the July 2009 award as calculated by
Delortte with the remaning 20 7% lapsing Shares equivalent to the value of the dmdends
declared dunng the Restncted Penod were then added to the shares that vested in

accordance with the terms of the Plan

() Other share schemes

Executrve Directors are entitled to participate
in the Company’s Sharesave Scheme and
Share Incentive Plan Both are all-employse
plans to which performance condtions do
not apply

() Service contracts

In accordance with Company policy,

all Executve Directors have senvice contracts
subject to one year's notice Dawid Dupont's
service contract Is due to expire when he
reaches his normal retirement age of 60
However it 1s expected that his contract

will be extended by agreement between
hm and the Company Colin Drummond
and Chris Loughiin reached their normal
retirernent dates on 22 February 2011

and 20 August 2012 respectively, and have
continued in employment with the Company
each In the same postion as Chief
Executrves of therr respective businesses
and as Directors of the Pennon Group
Board Colin Drurnmond will ba retinng
upon the appontment of his successor
which 1s currently expected to be at the end
of September 2013 His service contract
will terminate at that time and he will then
become non-executive Charman of the
Vindor board Chris Loughhn's service
contract with the Company continues
subject to one year's notice

No provsion 1s made for temnination
payments under the serice contracts

In the event of an earty termination

of a Director’s senice contract,

the Committes’s policy 1S to ensure

that any compensation payable (whether
share-based or cash) reflects the Director's
performance and the circumstances of the
termination The dates of the contracts are

Colin Drummond 5 March 1992
Dawvid Dupont 2 January 2003
Chnis Loughiin 16 May 2006

{(v)) Provision for pensions

Coln Drummond and Chns Loughin
recaive an annual payment (payable

by monthly instalments) equivalent to 30%
of each of therr basic salanes in lieu of the
prowsion of pension benefits Dawvid Dupont
from 3 March 2012 has also been enttled
to receve a similar benefit but, with

the agresment of the Company, had

his pension accrued benefit augmented

by the sum of £94,062 met by the Company
which has been deducted from the annual
payment payable in leu of pension benefit

Previcusly Colin Drummond and Dawd
Dupont participated in the Group’s defined
henefit pension schemes Their benefits from
these schemes are set out in the table

on page 79

In determining remuneration arrangements
for Executive Directors, it is the policy of

the Committes to gve full consideration to
therr impact on the pension schemes’ funds
and costs of provding indmdual pension
arangerments
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Non-executive Directors
and the Chairman

The Non-executive Directors’ remuneration
{excdluding that of the Chairman, Ken Harvey)
consisting of fees only as set out in the
Implementation Section on page 78,

1$ determined by the Board of Directors,
including the Charman, but in the absence
of the other Non-executive Directors itis
usually reviewed each year to take account
of market changes in non-executive
directors’ fees For this and subsequent
years the policy expected to be appled

in respect of Non-executve Directors' fees
will be to set fees at a far level compared
with the market, which the Board believes
18 appropnate to attract and retain sutably
expenenced non-executive dirsctors

Director

Martin Angle
Gerard Connell
Dinah Nichols
Gill Rider

The Charman'’s remuneration 1s set by
the Remuneration Committee The policy
of the Committee to be gpplied to the
Chaman’s fee for this and in subsequent
years 1s the same as that for the Non-
executve Directors In addition {0 afee
the Chairman receivas a fully-expensed
car benefit and health cover No other
benefits or remuneration are receved

by the Charman

The Non-executive Directors {excluding

the Chairman) have contracts for sarvices
seting out thew terms and conditions

of appointment which are terminable on three
maonths’ notice and subject to the Articles

of Association of the Company They may

be extended by agreement between

the Company and the Non-executve
Directors No provision is mada for any
termination payment under these contracts

Date of contract

28 November 2008
30 September 2003
10 June 2003

22 June 2012

This graph shows the value, over the
five-year penod ending on 31 March 2013,
of £100 invested in Pennon Group on

31 March 2008 compared with the value of
£100 invested In the FTSE 250 Index

The other points plotted are the values

at intervening financial year-ends This
Index 1s considered appropriate as it s a
broad equity market index of which the
Compary has been a constituent cver most
of the penod covered The graph has been
produced in accordance with regulations
made pursuant to Sechion 421 of the
Companes Act 2006

The Charman has a contract for services
dated 1 Apnl 2005 which is subject to 12
months' notice to provide the Company

with reasonable secunty with regard to his
ongoing service No provision IS mads for any
termination payments under this contract

The contracts for services of the Charman
and the Non-executive Directors reflect
corporate governance best practice

and, together with the Executive Directors’
samvice contracts, are avalable for inspecbon
at the Company's registered office dunng
normal business hours

The dates of the Non-executve
Directors' contracts are

Expiry date of contract
30 November 2014
31 July 2014

1 August 2013

30 August 2015

Pennon Group Pl Annual Report 2013 77

MaABAC dnait)

JAI1BMN ISBAA LINOS

JOpUIA

dnoisy

AJUEUWIDADY

SIUSLUBIEIS fRIDUBUL




Governance

Directors’ remuneration report

Continued

Implementation of the remuneration policy

Emoluments of Directors
The salanes/ees of Directors in 2012/13
were increased by approximately 3%

The emolumants of Indmdual Directors
holding office dunng the penod were

Director Salary/ Performance related Other emoluments? Total 2013 Total 2012
fees bonus payable’ {£000) Yearto 31 March Year to 31 March
(£000) (£000) {£000) {£000)
Charman
Ken Harvey 248 - 24 272 263
Executive Directors
Colin Drummond 370° 37 136 543 £88
Dawvid Dupont 3ro 106 52 528 gi8
Chris Loughhin 370 118 136 624 647
Non-executive Directors
Martin Angle 57 - - 57 55
Gerard Connell 60 - - 60 58
Dinah Nichols 57 - - 57 55
Gill Rider 31 - - 31 -
Total 1,663 261 348 2,172 2,284

'In addition to the performance-related
cash bonus, Executve Directors are due
to recerve a condtional award of shares
as referred to ina note to (c) "Annual
Incentive Bonus Plan — Deferred Bonus
Shares (long-term incentve element)’
on page 81

2Other emoluments are car benefit,
health cover and cash payments
in lieu of pension provision eguivalent
to 30% of basic salary for each Executive
Oirector Dawd Dupont’s cash payment
was reduced in the year by £86,000 to take
account of the balance of the £94,062
augmentation to his pension entitferment
which he received in 2011/12 and which
was reported in last year's Annual Report

3In 2012/13 Colin Drummond decided
ta forego his salary increase in the year
and arranged for an eguvalent sum
(£11,000) to be paid into the Vindor staff
welfare fund The salary he received was
therefore £:359,000

No expense allowances chargeable to tax
or termination or compensation payments
were made dunng the year

The base Non-executive Director fee

in the year was £42,000 per annum

The Audt, Remuneratton and Sustainabilty
Committee chairs wene paid fees of £10,000,
£7,000 and £7,000 per annum respeactively
and members of these Commitiess receved
£4,000 each

78 Pannon Group Pic Annual Report 2013




Executive Directors’ pensions

Defined benefit pensions accrued

and payable on retiremeant for Executive
Directors holding office dunng 2012/13 were

Increase/
decrease in
accrued
pension
dunng
2012113
{net of
inflation)
{£000)

Director

a
Caoln Drummond 3

David Dupont -1

Increase/
decrease

In accrued

pension
dunng
201213
(£000)

Accrued Transfer Transfer Increase Increase/
pension at value of the value of the in transfer decrease
31 March accrued accrued value in transfer
2013 pensionat pension at {net of value of
(€000 31 March 31 March Directors’ accrued
2013 2012 contnbutions) pension

{£000) {£000) {2000} dunng

2012/13

(net of

inflatron and

Directors'

contnbutions)

{£000)

c d e f

130 3,621 3,379 241 90

135 4,086 34918 168 -41

Calin Drummeond and Dawd Dupont were
both pensioner members of the Penncn
Group's pension schemes durng the year
As such no further benefits were accrued
and no employes or employer pension
contnbutions were pad (cther than the
employer's deficit reduction contnbutions)

Directors’ share interests

(a) Shareholdings

The number of Ordinary shares of the
Company in which Directors held beneficial
interests (ncluding those of therr connected

The accrued pensions at 31 March 2013
{cclumn ¢) therafore show the actual
pensions In payment at 31 March 2013
The increases In accrued pensions over
the year (column b) are solely as a result
of indexation of the pensions as set out
in the Schemes' Rules

Increase

In pension
since the date
the pension
first became
payable

{£000)

The increase N transfer value over

the year{column flisas a
fall in git yields between 3

resuft of a small
1 March 2012

and 31 March 2013 and because actual
pension Increases awarded in the year
1N accordance with the Schemes’ Rules
were higher than assumed

persons) were
Director Ordinary shares Ordihary shares
(40 7p each) (40 7p sach)
at 31 March 2013 at 31 March 2012
Ken Harvey 26,209 26,209
Colin Drummond 332,841 288,163
Dawvid Dupont 316,415 262 671
Chris Loughiin 150,766 97,745
Martin Angle - -
Gerard Connell 4,088 4000
Dinah Nichols 4,549 4549
Gill Rider - -
Since 31 March 2013, 1,946 addmonal in the Company have been acquired Thare have been no other changes

COrdinary shares (40 7p each) In the Company
have been acquired by Chns Loughlin as
a result of participation in the Company's

Senp Dmdend Alternative and the

Company's Share Incentve Plan, 276
addiional Ordinary shares {40 7p each)

by Dawd Dupont as a result of dmdend
renvestmant in an ISA and 53 addional
Crdinary shares (40 7p each) in the Company
have been acqured by Gerard Connell

as a resutt of participation in the Company's
Scnp Dvdend Alternative

in beneficial Interests or the non-beneficial
interests of the Directors in the Qrdinary
shares of the Company betwesn 1 Apnl

2013 and 24 June 2013
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Govermance

Directors’ remuneration report
Continued

Implementation of the remuneration policy

Continued

(b) Performance and Co-investment
Plan {long-term incentive plan)

In addition to the above beneficial nterasts,
the following Directors have or have had

a contingent interest In the number

of Ordinary shares (40 7p each) of the
Company shown below, representing

the maximum number of shares to which
they would become entitled under the plan
should the relevant critena be met in full

or the number of shares which have vested
under the plan, as appropnate

Director Conditional Conditional Market pnce Vesting Market price Conditional Date of end
and date awards awards upon award In year* of each awards of penod for
of award held at made of each share upon held at qualifying
1 Apnl 2012 inyear share inyear vesting 31 March  condrions to
2013 be fulfilled
Colin Drummond
1/7/09 67,831 - 486 50p 60,437 758 18p - 30/6/12
27710 63,186 - 546 00p - - 63,186 1/7/13
177111 51,432 - 698 OCp - - 51,432 30/6/14
377M12 - 48,145 768 50p - - 48,145 2/7/15
Dawid Dupont
1/7/09 67,831 - 486 50p 60,437 758 18p - 30/6/12
27710 63,186 - 546 00p - - 63,186 1/7113
17771 51,432 - 698 00p - - 51,432 30/6/14
3712 - 48,145 768 50p - - 48,145 2/7/15
Chris Loughhin
1/7/09 64,748 - 486 50p 57,690 758 18p - 30/6/12
2/710 63,186 - 546 Q0p - - 63,186 1713
1/7/11 51,432 - 698 00p - - 51,432 30/6/14
3/7/12 - 48145 768 50p - - 48,145 2/T15

*79 3% of the July 2008 award shares
vested on & August 2012 as explained
in the section {ii ‘Long-term incentwve plan’
on page 75 of this report at a market price
of 758 18p per share Addtional shares
equvalent In value to such number
of shares as could have been acquired
by reinvesting the dmdends which
would atherwise have been received
on the vested shares dunng the Restncted

Penod of three

years were then added

to the total number of shares that vested
and are included within the vested figures

The balance of

the award lapsed
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(c) Annual Incentive Bonus Plan -
Deferred Bonus Shares

{long-term incentve element)

The following Directors have a contingent
Interest in the number of Ordinary shares
(40 7p ezch) of the Company shown below,

marnseno dnouny
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dnouey

representing the total number of shares

ta which they would become entitled under

the deferred bonus element of the Annual

Incentive Bonus Plan (the Bonus Plan)

at the end of the relevant qualifying penod

Director Conditional Conditional Market pnce Vesting Market pnce Condrtonal Date of end

and date awards awards of each In year of each awards of penod for

of award held at made In share upon share upon held at gualifying
1 Apnl 2012 year award vesting 31 March condition to

In year 2013 be futfilied

Colin Drummond

29/9/09 18,730 - 473 40p 14,545 614 37p - 28/9M12

277710 27,091 - 572 50p - - 27,091 26/713

27/77/11 - 23,079 725 00p - - 23,079 26/7114

277712 - 12,823 754 50p - - 12,823 26/7/15

Dawvid Dupont

29/9/09 17,880 - 473 40p 15,695 614 37p - 28/9M12

27/2110 755 - 524 50p - - 755 26/2113

27710 25,938 - 572 50p - - 25,838 26/713

27/7/11 - 22,365 725 00p - - 22,365 26/7/14

277Nz - 18,532 754 50p - - 18,532 26/7/15

Chnis Loughlin

29/9/09" 19,562 - 473 40p 17,377 614 37p - 28/9/12

27210 1,261 - 524 50p - - 1,261 26/2/13%

27/7/1Q 25133 - 572 50p - - 25,133 26/713

277711 - 22,141 725 00p - - 22,141 26/7A14

277712 - 20,650 754 50p - - 20,650 26/715

'In addition to the awards made on 29 Dunng the year the Directors recanvad A further conditional award of shares

September 2009 the Directors also dmvdends on the above shares In accordance  will be made in 2013/14 to the value
receved options pursuant to the Company's  with the condiions of the Bonus Plan of the amount of the performance-related
Executive Share Option Scheme as follows cash bonus shown in the Emaoluments

{the ESOS), detatls of which are set out

in the table of paragraph (d) on page 82
These awards were made In conjunction
with the operation of the Bonus Plan
These ESOS options were exercised

by the Directors on 29 September 2012
and shares from the Bonus Plan equivalent
In value to the gain on the ESOS

opltions were forfeted Further details

of the operation of the ESOS in relation

to the Bonus Plan are set out In paragraph
(i} 'Performance-related bonus' on page 74

of Directors table on page 78 Paragraph
{ii) ‘Performance-related bonus’ on page
74 sets out the provisions relating

to the conditional award of shares
pursuant to the Bonus Plan

Colin Brummond - £20,088
Dawvd Dupont — £21,143
Chns Loughtin - £21,838

Chns Loughlin received Ordinary shares
{40 7p each) In the Company as a result

of participation in the Company’s Scnp
Dvdend Attermative All these shares

are ncluded in the figure grven for

the additional Ordinary shares (40 7p each)
in the Company that he acquired since

31 March 2013 gven on page 79

2The qualifying condition in respect of these
awards has been met and the awards
ara In the process of being released

Pennon Group Plc Annual Report 2013 81

GOUEBLLIBAOE)

SWBLWSIRS BOUBUL




Governanca

Directors’ remuneration report
Continued

Implementation of the remuneration policy
Continued

(d) Executive Share Option Scheme

The following Directors had a contingent
interest in the number of cptions in the
Ordinary shares (40 7p each} of the
Company pursuarit to the Company's
Executive Share Optron Schema shown
below Further detaills relating to the operation
of the Scheme are set out in paragraph (i)
‘Performance-related bonus' on page 74

Director Options Granted Exercised Exercise Market Market Options Matunty
and date held at in year Inyear pnce per pnce of value of held at date
of award 1 Apnl 2012 share each each 31 March
share on share at 2013
exercising 31 March
2013
Colin Drummond
29/9/09 8,337 - 6,337* 473 40p 722 50p - - -
Dawvid Dupont
29/9/09 6,337 - 6,337" 473 40p 722 50p - - -
Chns Loughlin
29/9/09 6,337 - 6,337° 473 40p 722 50p - - -
* All three Executive Directors exercised
therr options dunng the year realising
a gan of £15,785 each

(e} Sharesave Scheme
Cetals of options to subscnbe for Ordinary
shares (40 7p each) of the Company under
the all-ermployee Sharesave Scheme were
Director Options Granted Exercised Exercise Market Market Options Exercise
and date held at In year inyear pnce per prnice of  value of held at penod/
of award 1 Apnl 2012 share each each 31 March Maturrty

shareon  shareat 2013 date

exercising 31 March
2013

Coltn Drummond
6/7/09 2,351 - 2,351° 386 00p 735 00p - - -
28/6/12 - 1,630 ~ 588 00p - 82300p 1,530 1/9/15 - 28/2/16
Dawvid Dupont
3/7/07 3,136 - 3,1382 522 00p 736 50p - - -
Chns Loughlin
3/7/07 3,136 - 3,136° 522 00p 739 50p - - -

* Colin Drummond's gain on the exercise of his opton was £8,205
? Dawd Dupont’s gain on the exercise of his ophion was £6,727
3 Chns Loughlin's gamn on the exercise of his option was £6,821

{f) Share price

The market pnice of the Ordinary shares (40 7p
each) of the Company at 31 March 2013 was
623 00p (2012 711 50p) and the range dunng
the year was 538 00p to 796 00p (2011/12
620 Q0p to 737 50p)
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Single Total Figure Table (£000)

The information below 18 not provided

for the Chairman or the other Non-sxecutive
Directors due to them net being particpants
In any of the Group’s Incentive plans

{as permitted by the latest draft of the

new remunsaration reporting regulations

{'the draft regulations')) The mformation
provided 1s based upon the Company’s
Interpretation of the draft regulations

Director \ W i hY ¥ Total 2013
({£000) {£000) {£000) (£000) (£OC0) Year to 31 March
{£000)

Executve Directors
Colin Drummond 70 5 1 TTar T T sz 1,126
David Dupont 370 27 25 106 591 1,119
Chris Loughlin 370 25 111 118 582 1,206

The headings t to v above are as follows

v

Total amount of salary and fees

All taxable benefils

All pension related benefits (cash

in heu of pension)

Maoney cr other assets receved

or recevable as a result of achisvement
of performance conditions n 2012/13
only (cash banus)

Morey or other assets received

or recenvabla in 2012/13 or shortly
thereafter relating to 2012/13

and previous reporting pencds {cash
in keu of dendand on Deferred Bonus
Shares, 2009 Deferred Bonus Shares
anrd PCP vesting, and ESOS exercise)

Basis of preparation

The Drrectors’ remuneration report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and The Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (the Regulations) and mests the relevant requirements of the FSA Listing
Rules In accordance with the Regulations, the following sectionis of the Directors' remunaration report are subject to audt emoluments of
Directors, Executive Directors' pensions, and Directors’ shara mterests (including long-term ncentyve plan and bonus plan awards and their
vesting critena and executive share options and sharesave) ior which the independent auditors' opinion thereon 15 expressed on page 85
The other sections are not subject to audit nor are the pages referred to from within the audited sections

The Diractors’ remuneration report was approved by the Board of Directors and signed on #s behalf by

Mairtin Angle
Chairman of emurferatton Committee

25 June 20

<
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Govemance

Independent auditors’ report

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pennon Group Plc

We have audited the financial statements of Pennon Group Plc for the year ended 31 March 2013
which compnse the Consolidated Income Staterment, the Consolidated statement of comprehensive
Income, the Group and Company Balance sheets, the Group and Company Statements of changes
in equrty, the Group and Company Cash flow statements and the related notes The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in therr preparation is applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the parent company
financial statements, as applied In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Respective responsibiiities of directors and audrtors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilites Statement on pages 70 to 71, the drrectors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr view Our responsibility 15 to audit and express an opinion
on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Audtors

This repont, Including the opinions, has been prepared for and anly for the Company's members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, In gvng these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or inte whose hands 1t may come save where expressly agreed
by our prior consent In wiiting

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit nvolves obtaning evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial staterments sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's and the parent company's crcumnstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estmates made by the directors, and the
overall presentation of the financial staternents

In addrtion, we read all the financial and non-financial Information In the annual report and accounts to 1dentify matenal Inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstaterments or Inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion

* The financial statements give a true and far view of the state of the Group’s and of the parent company's affars as at 31 March 2013
and of the Group’s profit and Group's and parent company’s cash flows for the year then ended

* The Group financial staterments have besn propery prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union

* The parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Europsan Union
and as appled in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

* The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation
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Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion

* The part of the Dwectors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been propery prepared In accordance with
the Companies Act 2006

= The information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
15 consistent with the financial statements, and

* The information given in the Comporate Governance Report set out on pages 80 to 61 and with respect to intermal control and nsk
management systems sat out oh pages 64 to 71 and about share capital structures 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report In respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, In our opinion

* Adequate accounting records have not baen kept by the parent cormpany, or returns adequate for cur audit have not been receved from
branches not wisited by us, or

* The parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited are not In agreement with the
accounting records and returns, or

* Certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
* We have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audtt, or
* A corporate governance statement has not been prepared by the parent company

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review
* The Drrectors’ statement, set out on page 70, In relation to going concern,
* The parts of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company’s comphance with the nina provisions
of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review, and
* Certan elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on Directors’ remuneration
T
Dawid Charles (Senor Statuboy/odion

for and on behalf of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chariered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Brstol

25 Jurne 2013
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Financial Statements

Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Bafore Exceptional
exceptional items
items (Note 6) Total
2013 2013 2013 2012
Notes fm £m £m £rn
Revenue 5 1,201 1 - 1,2011 1,233 1
Operating costs 7
Manpower costs {158.6) - (158.6} (155 4)
Raw matenals and consumables used (125.2) - (125.2) (1339
Other operating expenses (521 8) {104 9) (626 7} 5280
Depraciation, amortisation and imparment (149 2) {84 0} (233.2} (147 0)
Operating profit 5 246.3 (188.9) 574 2688
Finance Income 8 1276 154 143.0 1193
Finance costs 8 (181 5) (2.9} (184 4) (181 B)
Net finance costs 8 (53.9) 125 (41 4) (723)
Share of post-tax profit from jont ventures 20 5.8 - 58 40
Profit before tax 5 188.2 (176.4) 218 2005
Taxation (charge)/crecit 9 31 1) 36.2 5.1 {28 1)
Profit for the year 167 1 (140 2) 269 1724
Profit attnbutable to ordinary shareholders’ equity 1671 (140 2) 269 1724
Earnings per share (pence per share) i1
- Basic 74 481
- Diluted 74 478
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2013
Before Exceptional
exceptional items
items {Note 6) Total
2013 2013 2013 2012
Notes m £m £m £m
Profit for the year 1671 (140.2) 269 1724
-Othar comprehensive G:s e T -
Actuanat losses on defined benefit pension schemes 30 {15.1) - {15.1) B17
Cash flow hedges 09 29 20 (247
Share of other comprehensie profit/loss) from joint ventures 20 27 - 27 (54)
Dafarred tax credit/(charge) on iterns taken directly to or transfered 9,31 27 07 20 160
from equity
Other comprehensive {loss)/gain for the year net of tax 36 {106) 22 8.4 {65 B)
Total comprehensive income fo;ti'le year o 156.5 (138.0) 18.5 1066
Total comprehensive Income attributable to ordinary shareholders’ equity 156.5 (138.0) 18.56 1066

The notes on pages 91 to 142 form part of these financial staterments
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Balance sheets
At 31 March 2013

Group Company
2012
(Restated
2013 note 40) 2013 2012
Notes £m £m £m £m
Assats
Non-ctrrrent assets
Goodwill 15 3390 365 - -
Other ntangible assets 16 125 20 - -
Property, plant and equipment 17 3,276 3,083 6 02 a2
Other non-current assets 19 183.3 1384 502.5 3520
Deferred tax assets 31 - - 23 46
Demvative financial Instruments 23 310 219 - -
Investments in subsidiary undertakings 20 - - 1,323.3 1,1721
Irvestments in jont ventures 20 0.1 01 - -
3,845.5 35825 1,828.3 1,5289
Current assets
Inventones 2 1056 90 - -
Trade and other recevables 22 2677 2385 136.3 N7
Financial assets at far value through profit 24 12 05 - -
Demvatve financial nstruments 23 105 97 87 89
Current tax recoverable 27 - - - 26
Cash and cash deposits 25 6345 4253 388.9 1589
9244 8830 5449 262 1
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bomowngs 28 (138.6) {325 5) {357 1) (534 4)
Denvative financial Instruments 23 217 {16 6) - -
Trade and other payables 28 2r7 3 (242 5) 79 (108
Current tax habiities 27 (67 0) 603) {18.9) -
Provisions 32 (40 6) (263) - -
{545 1) 671 2) {383.7) (545 2)
Net current assets/iabiltties) 3793 118 1612 (283 1)
Non-current habilihes
Borowings 28 (2,504 6) (2,204 4) {692.7) (3569
Other non-current liablites 29 779 {f69) 8.n 87
Financial habiites at fair value through profit 24 (23.0) (167) - -
Denvative financial instruments 23 815 320 - -
Retirement benefit obligations 30 (1097 ©86) 8.7 (78
Deferred tax labiities 31 (243 1) (277 3) - -
Provisions 32 (1707 {763) - =
(3,160 5) (2.7822) {(7101) (3733
Net assats 1,064 3 8221 1,279 4 8725
Equrty
Share captal 33 1492 1482 1492 1482
Share premium account 34 70 80 70 ag
Gzpital redemption reserve 35 144.2 144 2 144.2 1442
Retained samings and other reserves 36 4691 5217 684 2 5721
Total ordinary shareholders' equity 7695 8221 984 6 8725
Pearpatual capial secunbes a7 2848 - 2048 -
Total equity 1,064 3 8221 1,2794 8725

The notes on pages 81 to 142 form part of these
The financial statements on pages 86 to 142 were

K G Harvey, Chairman, Pennon Group Plc, Regifterpd

he Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 25 June 2013 and wera signed on its behalf by
Peninsula House, Rydon Lane, Exater, Devon, England EX2 7HR Registered in England Number 2366640
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Financial Staternents.

Statements of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Group Retanad

Sharg Capitd eamings Perpetua

Share pramium redempbon and other capital
capital account reserve reserves securities Total
(Note 33) {Note 34) (Nota 35) (Note 36) {Note 37) equity
£m £m £m £m £m fm
At 1 Apni 2011 1470 92 1442 4791 - 7795
Profit for the year - - - 1724 - 1724
Cther comprehensive loss for tha year - - - 65 8) - 658
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 1066 - 1066

Transactions with equity shareholders

Davdends pad - - - 882 - 882
Adpstment for shares issued under the Scnp

Dvidend Alteratve 12 12 - 191 - 191

Adustrment in respect of share-based payments (net of tax) - - - 35 - 35
Own shares acquired by the Pennon Employae Shars Trust _ _ _ 03 _ 03
In respect of share options granted

Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - - - 19 - 19
Total transactions with equity shareholders 12 (12 - 640 - 640
At 31 March 2012 1482 80 144 2 5217 - 8221

Profit for the ysar - - - 269 - 2689
Cther comprehensive loss for the year - - - {84 - {84
Total comprehensive Income for the year - - - 185 - 185

Transactons with equity shareholders

Drvdends pad - - - 960 - (96 0)
;ﬂmﬁ:‘mﬁ 1ssued under the Scnp 10 40 _ 181 _ 181
Adpstment in respect of share-based payments (net of tax) - - - 31 - 31
Issue of perpetual capital secunties - - - - 2948 294 8
Own shares acquired by the Pennon Employee Share Trust _ _ B 09 B 09
n raspect of share options granted

Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - - - 46 - 48

N Tot_al_ trémachonsvwm ec;utyshar;ahc_)ldas I _1 0 - —EI 0 ) - ) (7:1 1 - 294 8 - 7272;7*”

At 31 March 2013 1492 70 1442 4691 2948 1,064 3

The notes on pages 91 to 142 form part of these financlal statements
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Company Retained
Share Capital samings Parpetua
Shars premium redempbon and other capital
caotal account resenve reserves securties Total
(Note 33) {Nota 34) (Note 35) MNote 36} (Note 37) aquty
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 Aprl 2011 1470 92 144 2 5258 - B262
Profit for the year (note 10) - - - 1163 - 1163
Cther comprehensive loss for the year - - - 36 - 36
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 1127 - 1127
Transactons with equrty shareholders
Dradends pad - - - (882 - 882
Adstment for shares 1ssued under the Scnp
Onadend Alternative 12 12 - 181 - 191
Adjustment in respact of share-based payments {net of tax) - - - o8 - 08
Proceeds from treasury shares re-tssued - - - 18 - 19
Total transactions with equity shareholders 12 12 - {66 4) - (66 4)
At 31 March 2012 148 2 80 1442 5721 - 8725
Profit for the year (note 10) - - - 1857 - 1857
Cther comprehansve loss for the year - - - (1) - (11)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 184 6 - 184 6
Transactons with equity shareholders
Drdends pard - - - 860 - (96 0)
gﬂzma}:tﬂ:;z:zes 1ssued under the Scnp 10 4G _ 181 _ 181
Adustment in respact of share-based payments (net of tax) - - - 08 - 08
Issue of perpetual capital secunties - - - - 2048 294 8
Procesds from treasury shares re-issued - - - 46 - 46
Total transactions with equity shareholders 10 (10 - {72 5) 294 8 2223
At 31 March 2013 149 2 70 144.2 €684 2 2048 1,278 4
The notes on pages 91 to 142 form part of these financlal statements
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Financal Statements
Cash flow statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013
) Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Notes £m £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating actwties
Cash generated/(outflow) from operations 38 3411 3247 (205.2) 1889
Interest pard a8 {75 8) (74 5) (23 4 227
Tax {pald)/repaid {18 5) (414) 267 26
Net cash generated/{outflow) from operating actmties 2468 2088 (201 9) {12
Cash flows from investing actities
Interest recerved 260 132 303 233
Dividends receved 45 85 - 1776 1175
Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings (net of cash acquired) 40 (148) (292) - -
Investments in subsidiary undertakings 20 - - {151 2) (1401) .
Loans advanced to joint ventures - (134 - - |
Loan repayments received from joint ventures 03 36 - -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (307 2) (262 2) 01) - '
Proceeds from sate of property, plant and equipment 45 46 - _
Net cash {used in)/received from Investing actiities - (3727) (283 4) ' 566 Q7
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued 33 46 19 46 19
Proceeds from ssue of perpetua capital secunties 37 2048 - 2048 - |
Purchass of Ordinary shares by the Pennan ©9 03 _ _ :
Employee Shara Trust
Deposit of restricted funds {net) {21 0) ©1) - - !
Proceeds from new borrowing 409.9 250 409 9 250
Repayment of borrowings {267.2) (710 (246 1) (35Q)
Finance ieass sale and lease back 85.0 795 - -
Finance lease pnncipal repayments {103.1) (140) - -
Dradends pad {77 9) (69 1) {77.9) 89 1)
“l\-let-cash recervec; frc-)_m_l(_us;d n) financing actmtres S ;2: 727 (:81? v 385 37 ) (77 2)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 193 3 (1227 2400 @77
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 25 202.2 4149 1575 2352
_ Eash;nd cash equivalents a; ;and of ;;e _year_— o 25 490 5 S _292-2— N _3;’.;__ 187 5 7

Tha notes on pagas 91 to 142 form pant of thesa financial statements

20 Pennon Group Pl Annual Report 2013




Notes to the financial statements

1 General information

Pannon Group Plc 1s a company registered in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006 The address of the registered office 1s gven
on page 87 Pennon Group's business 1s operated through two main subsidiares South West Water Limited holds the water and sewerage
serices appointments for Devon, Cornwall and parts of Dorset and Somerset Vindor Uimited’s business 1s recycling, renewable energy

and waste managemeant

2. Principal accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out betow These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented

{a) Basis of preparation

These financtal statements have been prepared on tha histoncal cost accounting basts {except for far value items, pnncipally acquisiions, transfers
of assats from customers and denvatives as descnbed In accounting policy notes (o), {v) and (n) respectively) and in accordance with International
Financial Repariing Standards (IFRS) and interpretations of the IFRS Interpretations Committes as adopted by the Eurapean Union, and with those
parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS A summary of the pnneipal accounting policies 1s set out below,
together with an explanation where changes have been made to previous palictas on the adoption of new accounting standards and interpretations
in the year

Tha going concern basis has been adopted 1n prepanng these financial statements as stated by the Directors on page 70

New or revised standards or interpretations which were mandatory for the first tme in the year beginning 1 Apn! 2012 did not have a matenal tmpact
on the net assets or results of the Group

For the preparation of these financial statements IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and IAS 19 (Rewised) Employes Benesfits were in 1ssue, but not yet
effective IFRS i1 15 relevant to the Group, but 1t 1s not expected to have a matenal effect on the results or net assets, as the Group currently
consalidates joint ventures on an equity basis

The Drrectors antiipate that the adoption of [AS 19 (Revised) Employee Benefits on 1 Apnl 2013 will have a matenal impact on the financial statements
of the Group In the vear to 31 March 2014 the rewsed standard 1s expected to result in a net finance cost of €4 millon and a further £1 million 1s
expected {o ba charged to opsrating profit to recognise administration costs as they are incurred Pension habilites wilt reduce by £10 milion as at

31 March 2013 as a result of the change

Other standards and interpretations in 1ssue, but not yet sffective, are not expectad to have a matenal effect on the Group's net assets or rasulis

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions which affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses dunng the reporting penod
Although these estimates are based on management's best assessment of the amounts, actual events or actions and results may ulimately diifer
from those estimates

{b) Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements include the results of Pennon Group Ple and its substchanss, joint ventures and associate undertakings

The rasults of subsidianes, joint ventures and associate undertakings are included from the date of acquisition or incorporation, and excluded

from the date of disposal The results of subsidianes are consolidated where the Group has the power to control the financial and operating policies
of a subsidiary The results of Jont veniures and associate undertakings are accounted for on an equity basis

Intra-group trading and loan balances and transactions are elminated on consolidation

The acquisition methed of accounting 1s used 1o account for the purchase of subsidianes The excess of the value transferred to the sellar in retum
for control of the acquired business, togsther with the fair value of any previously held eguity interest in that business over the Group's share of the far
value of the identifiable net assets, 18 recorded as goodwill {note 4Q)

{c) Revenue recognition
Revanue represents the fair valug of consideration receivable, excluding value added tax, trade discounts and intsr cormpany sales, in the ordinary
course of business for goods and senices prowded

Revenue s recognised once the serices or goods have been provided to the customer

Incorme from main water and waste water charges includes billed amounts for estimated usage and also an estmation of the amount of unbilled
charges at the year-end based upon a defined methodology reflecting histoncal consurmption and current tanffs

Income from elactncity generated from waste managemaent landfill gas producticn dunng the year includes an estmation of the amount to be raceved
unger Renewables Obligation Certficates

Accrued income from waste management contracts at the balance sheet date Is racognised using management’s expectation of amounts
to be subsequently billed for services rendered to the client in accordance with the terms of the contract

Incoma from racycling actmties within waste management inchudes amounts based upon market pnces for recyclate products and industry schemes
for waste elactncal and electronic equipment {'WEEE' notes) and packaging volumes ('PRNs') processed

Revenue from long-term servce concession arrangsmants Is recognised based on the far value of work parformed Whera an arrangement includes
more than one servce, such as construction and gperation of waste management faciities, revenus and profit are recognised n proportion to a far
value assessment of the total contract value split across the services provded

{d) Landfill tax
Landfill tax 1s included within both revenue and operating costs
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
Continued

2 Pnncipal accounting pohicies Continued

{e) Segmental reporting

Each of the Group’s business segments prowvides services which are subjact to nsks and returns which are different from those of the other business
segments The Group's Internal organisation and management structure and 1ts system of internal financial reporting I1s based primarly on business
segments The reportable business segrments compnse the regulated water and sewerage services undertaken by South West Water Limited

and the waste managerment business of Virdar Limited Segmental revenue and resulis include transactions between businesses Inter-segmental
transactions are eliminated on consolidation

{f) Goodwill
Goodwill ansing on consolidaton from the acquisition of subsidiary and joint venture undertalkings represents the excess of the purchase consideration
over the far value of net assets acquired, less any subseqguent imparrment charges

Goedwill 1s recognised as an asset and reviewed for imparrment at 'east annually Any imparrment is racognised immediately in the incoms statement
and 1s not subsequently reversed For the purpose of mparment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination 1s allocated to each of the cash
generating units or group of cash generating units, that i1s expected to bensfit from the synerges of the combination Each urit or group of units

to which goodwill 1s allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill ts monktored for internal reporting purposes

Goodwil Is allocated and monitored at the reportable operating segment level Further detals are contaned in accounting palicy {j)

When a subsidiary or joint venture undertaking 1s sold, the profit or loss on disposal I1s determined after including the attnbutable amount
of unamortised goodwall

{g) Other intangible assets

Other Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are capltalised at far value at the date of acquisition Following initial recognition, finite life
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basls over therr estimated useful aconomic lives, with the expense charged to the income statemant
through operating costs

(h) Property, plant and equipment

i) Infrastructure assets (baing water mains and sewers, mpounding and pumped raw water storage reservourrs, dams, pipelines and sea outfalls)
Infrastructure assets were included at far value on transition to IFRS and subsequent additions are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciaiion
and impairment charges Expenditure to increase capacity or enhance infrastructure assets 1s capitalised where it can be reliably measured

and it 1s probable that incremental future economic benefits will flow to the Group The cost of day-to-day servicing of infrastructure components

15 recognised in the income statement as it anses

Infrastructure assets are depreciated evenly over ther useful economic Iives, and are principally

Dams and tmpounding reservoirs 200 years
Water mains 40 - 100 years
Sewers 40 - 100 years

Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until commissionad

i) Landfill sites

Landfill sites are included within land and bulddings at cost less accumulated depreciation Cost includes acquistion and development expenses
The cost of a landfll site 15 depreciated 1o its residual value (which s Inked to gas production at the site post-closure} over its estimated operational
Ife taking account of the usage of void space

i) Landfill restoration
Where the obligation to restore a landfill site s an integral part of its future economic benefits, a non-current asset within property, plant and equipmant
is recognised The asset recognised Is depreciated based on the usage of void space

w} Other assets (including property, overground plant and equipment)
Other assets are included at cost less accumulated depreciation

Freehold land is not depreciated Other assets are depreciated evenly {0 therr residual vatue over ther estimated economic lives, and are prnncipally

Land and buildings - Freehold buildings 30 - 60 years

Land and bulldings ~ Leasehold buildings Over the estimated economic Iives or the
finance lease penod, whichever 1s the shorter

Operational properties 40 - 80 years

Frxed plant o 20 — 40 years

Vehicles, mobite plant and computers 3 - 10 years

Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until commussioned

The cost of assets includes directly attnbutable labour and overhead costs which are incrementat to the Group Bomowing costs directly attributable
to the construction of a qualifying asset {an asset necessanly taking a substantial penod of time 1o be prepared for its ntended use) are capitaksed
as part of the asset Assets transferred from customers are recogmised at farr value as set out In accounting policy {v)

Asset lives and residual values are reviewed annually

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by companng sale proceeds with camying amounis  These are included in the income statement
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(i} Leased assets

Assets held under finance leases are included as property, plant and equipment at the lower of ther far value at commencement or the present
value of the minimum lease payments, and are depreciated over ther astimated economic Iives or the finance lease penod, whichever 1s the shorter
The corresponding hakility 15 recorded as borowings  The interest element of the rental costs 1s charged against profits using the actuanal method
aver the penod of the lease

Rental cosis ansing under operating leases are charged aganst profits in the year they are incurred

() Impairment of non-financial assets
Assets with an indefinite useful Iife are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impaiment, or whenever events or changes
in creumstance indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable

Asseis subject to amortisation or depreciation are tested for mpairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable

An impairment lass 1s recognised for the amount by which an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount The recoverable amount

15 the higher of an asset's fair value, less costs to sell, and value in use For the purposes of assessing Impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units) Value in use represents the present value of projected future cash
flows expected 1o be denved from a cash generating unit, discounted using a pre-tax discount rate which reflects an assessment of the market cost
of capital of the cash generating unit

Imparments are charged to the income statement in the year in which they anse
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that have been impared are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date

{k) Investment in subsidiary undertakings

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are initially recorded at cost, being the far value of the consideration pard Subsequently, nvestments
are reviewed for imparment on an individual basis annually or « events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not
be fully recoverable

(T} Investment in joint ventures

Joaint ventures are entities over which the Group exercises jont control Investments In joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the far values of the identifiable net assets of the joint venture

at the date of acquisition 1s recognised as goodwill and 1s included in the camying value of the Investment in the joint venture

The carmying value of the Group's Investment s adjusted for the Group's share of post-acquisition profits or losses recognised in the income statement
and statement of comprehensve income Losses of a joint venture in excess of the Group’s nterest are not recogrised unless the Group has a legal
or constructive oblhgation to fund those losses

(m) Cash and cash deposits
Cash and cash deposits compnse cash i hand and short-term deposits held at banks Bank overdrafts are shown within current borrowings

{n) Dervatives and other financial nstruments
The Group classifies its financial mstruments in the following categones

i) Loans and recevables
All loans and borrowings are intially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs ncurred Following initial recognition interest-beanng loans
and bomowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective Interest method

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the instrumants are derecognised or impaired Premia, discounts and other costs
and fees are recognised m the ncome statement through the amortisation process

Borrowings are classified as cument llabilties unless the Group has an unconditional nght to defer settlement of the hability for at least 12 months
after the balance sheet date

The fair value of the hability component of a convertible bond 1s determined using the market interest rate for an equvalent non-converiible bond
This amount 1s recorded as a hability on an amartised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguwshed on conversion or matunty
of the bonds The remainder of the procesds are allocated to the conversion option This 1s recogrused In shareholders' equity

i} Trade recewables

Trads recewvablas do not carry any interest recevable and are recogrised initially at farr value and subsequently at amortised cost usmg the efiectve
interest method, less prowsion far mpameant A provision for imparment of trads receivables 1s established when there 1s objective evidence that
the Group will not be abla 1o collect all amounts due i accordance with the onginal terms of tha recervables

ui) Trade payables
Trads payables are not interest-beanng and are recogrised initially at farr value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the efiective
interest method

) Service concession arrangemenis

Where the provision of waste management services 1s performed through a contract with a public sector entity which conirols a significant residual
interest in asset infrastructure at the end of the contract, then consideration is treated as contract recevables, split between profit on the construction
of assets, operation of the servca and the prowision of finance which i1s recognised in notional interest wathin fnance Income
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Fnancial staterments

Notes to the financial statements
Continued

2. Pnneipal accounting policies Contnued

v) Denvative financial instruments and hedging actmties

The Group uses denvative financial Instruments, prnneipally interest rate swaps and foreign exchange forward contracts, to hedge nsks associated
with interest rate and exchange rate fluctuations Denvative instrurnents are insially recogrused at farr value on the date the denvative contract

15 entered Into and subsequantly remeasured at far value for the reported balance sheet

The Group designates certain hedging denvatives as ether
~ a hadge of a highly probabte forecast transaction or change in the cash flows of a recogrused asset or habllity (a cash flow hedge), or
— a hedge of the exposure 1o change In the far value of a recogrised asset or hability (a far value hedgs)

The gain or loss on remeasurement 15 recogrised 1o the income statement except for cash flow hedges which meet the conditions for hedge
accounting, when the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument which 1s determined to be an effective hedge is recogrised directly

In equity, and the ineffective portion N the Income statemeni The gains or losses deferred in equity In this way are subsequently recogrised

in the iIncome statement in the same period In which the hedged underlying transaction or firm commitment 1s recagnised In the Income statement

In arder to quahfy for hedge aceounting the Group Is required to document in advancs the relationship between the item being hadged

and the hedging Instrument The Group is also required to document and demonstrate an assessment of the relationship between the hedged
itsm and the hedging Instrument which shows that the hedge will be highly effective on an ongaing basis This effectiveness testing 1s reperformad
at the end of each reporting penod to ensure that the hedge remains highly effective

Where a non-denvative transaction or senes of transactions with the sarme counterparty has the aggregate effect n substance of a denvative
instrument, the transaction or senes of transactions shall be recognised as a single dervative instrument at far value with associated movements
recorded In the income statement

The full far value of a hedging denvative 1s classified as a non-current asset or iabiity when the remaining matunty of the hedged item is maore
than one year, and as a current asset or hability when the remaning matunty of the hedged 1tem 1s less than ona year

Dervative financial Instruments deemed held for trading which do not quallfy for hedge accounting are classified as a current asset or hability
with any change In {far valus recognised iImmediately in the income statement

vi) Financial instrumenits at fair value through profit

Financial instruments at farr value through profit reflect the far value movement of the hedged nsk on a hedged item which has been designated

in a far value hedging relationship The far values of thass financial Instruments are iNitially recognised on the date the hedging relationship 1s entered
inte and subsequently remeasured at each subsequent balance sheet date The gain or loss on remeasurement for the penod 18 recognised In the
Income statament

(o) Taxation including deferred tax

The tax charge for the year compnses current and deferred tax Tax 1s recognised in the incoms statement, except to the extent that 1§ relates
to wems recogrised n tha staternent of comprehsensive Income or directly In equity In this case the tax 1s also recognised n the statement

of comprahensiva Income or directly v equity

Current tax 15 calculated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Managsment peniodically evaluates tax
items subject to interpretation and establishes full provisions on ndnadual tax items where In the judgement of management the position 1s uncertan

The Group includes a number of companies, Including the parent company, which are part of a tax group for cartan aspects of the tax legislation One
of these aspects refatss to group relief wheraby current 1ax liabilites can be offset by currant tax Iosses ansing in other companies within the same tax
group Payment for group relief 1s mada equal to the tax bensfit and amounts are included within the current tax disclosuras

Deferred tax 1s provided in full on tempgrary differences betwesn the carrying amount of assets and labilitles in the financial statements

and the tax base, except 1f It anses from initral recogniticn of an asset or kability In a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss Deferred tax assets are recogrised only ta the extent that it Is probable that
future taxabla profits wilf ba avarlable aganst which the assets can be realised Deferred tax is determined using the tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date, and expscted to apply whan the defarred tax hability is settled or the deferred tax asset Is realised

(p) Provisions

Provisions are rmade whera thers i1s a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and 1 1s probable that there will be an outflow
of econormic benefits to settie this obligatian and a reliable estmate of this amount can be made Where the effect of the tima value of money 1s
matera the current amount of a provision 1s the present value of the expenditures expected io be required to settle obligations The unwinding

of the discount to present value Is Included as notional interast within finance costs

Ths Group’s policies on specific provisions are

i} Landfill restoration costs

Prowisions for the cost of restoring landfill sites are mada when the obligation anses Where the obligation recognised as a provision gives access
to future econcemic benefits, an asset 1n proparty, plant and equioment 1s recognised Prowisions are otherwise charged aganst prolits based

on tha usage of void spacs

i} Environmental control and aftercare costs

Environmental control and aftercare costs are incurred dunng the operational Iife of each landfill site and for a considerable penod thereafter Prowsion
for all such costs 1s mads over the operational Iife of the site and chargad to the income statement on the basis of the usage of vaid space at the site
Further prowisions required after the operational life of a site are recognised immediately In the iIncome statement

1i} Onerous contracts

Where tha unavoidabls costs of meeting a contract's obligations exceed the econormic benefits denved from that contract, the unavaidable costs,
less revenus anticipated under the terms of the contract, are recognised as a provision and charged to the income statement An impaimant loss
on any assets dedicated to that contract is a'so recognised as descnbed in accounting policy ()
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{q} Share capital and treasury shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity

Where the Gompany purchases the Company's equity share capital {treasury shares) the consideration paid, including any directly atinbutable costs,
1s deducted from equity until the shares are cancelled or re-issued Where such shares are subsequently re-issued any constderation received,
net of any directly attnbutable transaction costs, Is included in aquity

The Group balance sheet includes the shares held by the Pennon Employee Share Trust, relating to employse share-based payments, which have
not vasted at the balance sheet date These are shown as a deduction from shareholders’ equity until such time as they vest

(r) Dividend distributions
Dvidend distnbutions are recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the penod in which the dvidends are approved by the Company's
sharehoiders Intenm diwidends are recognised when paid, final dividends when approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting

(s} Employee benefits
i) Retirement benefit obligations
The Group operates dsfined benefit and defined contnbution pension schernes

Defined benefit pension schemes

Defined bensfit pension scheme assats are measured using bid pnce Defined benefit pension scheme liabilities are mesasured by iIndependent
actuanes who advise on tha selection of Dirscters' best estimates The projected unit credit method 15 employed and liabilities discounted

at the current rate of return on high gquality corporate bonds of equivalent term to the habilities The increase in habiities of the Group’s defined
benefit pension schemes, expected to anse from employee senvice In tha year, 1s charged agamnst aperating profit

The expected return on scheme assets and the increase dunng the year in the present value of scheme liabilties are shown in notional interest within
finance iIncome and cost

Changes in benefits granted by the employer are recognised immediately as past senvica cost In the Income statement

Actuarlal gains and losses ansing from expenence ttems and changes in actuanal assumptions are charged or credited to equity In the statement
of comprehensive income

Defined contnbution scheme
Costs of the defined contnbution pension schems are charged to the income statement in the year in which they anse

) Share-based payment
The Group operates a number of equity-setiled share-based paymant plans for employees The fair valus of the employas services required
in exchangse for the grant 1s recognised as an expense over the vesting perod of the grant

Far values are calculated using an appropnate pncing model Non market-based vesting conditions are adjusted for in assumptions as 1o the number
of shares which are expected to vest

{t} Pre-contract and development costs
Pre-contract and development costs including bid costs are expensed as incurred. except whera 1t1s probable that the contract will be awarded
or the development complated, in which case they are recognised as an asset which 1s ameortised to the income statement over the hfe of the contract

{u) Fair values
The far value of interest rate swaps 1s based on the market pnce of comparable nstruments at the balance shest date if they are publcly traded

The far values of short-term deposits, loans and overdrafts with a matunty of less than one year are assumed to approximate to their book values
In the case of non-current bank loans and other loans the far value of financial liabiites for disclosura purposes I1s estimated by discounting the future
cantractual cash flows at the current market interest rate avallable to the Group for simiar financial instruments

{v) Transfers of assets from customers

Whsre an item of property, plant and equipment that must be used to connect customers to the netwoerk is recaved from a customer, or whera cash
I1s recerved from a customer for the acquisiion or consiructon of such an item, that asset is recorded and measured on iritial recognition at its

far value The credit created by the recognition of the asset I1s recogrused in the income statement The perod over which the credit 1s recogrised
depends upon the nature of the service provided, as determined by the agresment with the customer Where the service prowided 1s solely a
connaction to the network, the credit 1s recogrised at the pont of connection If the agresment daes not specify a penod, revenue 1s recognised
over a penod no longer than the economic life of the transierred asset used to prowvide the ongoing senice

The far valua of assets on transfer from customers I1s determined using a cost valuation approach allowng for depreciation

{w) Foreign exchange
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated In a foreign currency are translated at the closing balance sheet rate The resuliing gatn or loss s recogrised in the income stalement

{x} Perpetual capital secunhes

Perpetual capital secuniies are 1ssued secunties that qualify for recognitton as equity Accordingly any penodic returns are accounted for as dvidends
and recognised directly In equity and as a hability at the time the Company becomes obligated to pay the penadic return This reflects the nature of the
penodic returns baing only made at the Company's discretion

(v} Exceptional tems
Exceptional items are those that in the Directors' view are required to be separately disclosed by virtue of therr size or incidencs to enable
a full understanding of the Group's financial performance
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
Continued

3 Financial nsk management

(a} Financial nsk factors

The Group's actvitias expose 1t to a vanety of financial nsks hiquidity nsk, market nsk (interest rate nsk), craedit nsk and foreign currency nsk
The Group's treasury function seeks to ensure that sufficient funding 1s avalable to meet foreseeable needs, mantans reasonable headroom
for contingencles and manages inflation and interast rate ngk

The principal financial nsks faced by the Group relate to iquidity, interest rate and credit counterparty risk

These nsks and treasury operations are managed by the Group Director of Finance in accordance with policies established by tha
Board Major transactions are indmvdually approved by the Baard Treasury actmties are reported 10 the Board and are subjact to review
by internal audit

Financial Instruments are used to raise finance, manage nisk, optimise the use of surplus funds and manage overall INterest rate performance
The Group does not engage In speculative actnaty

I} Liguichty nsk

The Group actively mantains a mixture of long-term and short-term commutted faciiies which ara designed to ensure the Group has sufficient
available funds for operations and planned expansions equivalent to at least one year's forecast requirements at all tmes Dstalls of undrawn
committed faciities and short-term bank facilities are provided in note 28

Refinancing nisk 1s managed under a Group policy that permits no more than 20% of Group net borrowings to mature in any financial year

The Group and South West Water have entered into covenants with lenders Whilst terms vary, these typically prowide for imits on geanng
(prmanly based on South West Water Limited's Regulatory Capital Valus and Vindor Limited’s EBITDA) and interest cover

Contraciual undiscounted cash flows, iIncluding interest payments, at the balance sheet date were

Due within Due between Due between Over
1 year 1and 2 years 2and 6 years Svyears Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Group
31 March 2013
Non-derivative financial liabthties
Borrowings excluding finance lease labiities 970 2168 4408 1,367 7 21520
Interest payments on borrowings 245 218 476 6304 7243
Finance lease labillies including Interest 566 630 2280 20453 23928
Dervative financial habilities
Denvative contracts — net payments 191 283 263 86 B0 3
31 March 2012
Non-dervative financial habilities
Borrowings excluding finance lease labilities 2848 961 2748 1371 4 2,027 1
Interest payments on borrowings 284 182 408 6423 7297
Finance leass liabities including interest 838 608 2322 2,2143 25711
Derivative financial habilities
Denvative contracts - net payrnents 159 140 157 - 456
Company
31 March 2013
Non-derivative financial habibties
Borrowings 759 1854 3475 160 2 7690
Interast payments on borrowings 153 125 1892 128 598
31 March 2012
Non-derivative financial habilities
Borowings 2532 750 1816 1000 6098
Interast payments on borrowings 182 76 95 150 503
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i} Market risk

The Group has a policy of mantaining at least 50% of interest-beanng labilities at fixed rates The Group uses a combination of fixed rate

and index-inked borrowings and fixed rate interest swaps as cash flow hedges of future vanable mterest payments to achieve this policy

At the year-end 54% (2012 56%) of Group net borrowings were at fixed rates (including 50% of South West Water's borrowings fixed for the penod
1o March 2015) and 19% (2012 18%) index-linked, after the impact of financial dervatves The notional principal amounts of the Interest rate swaps
are used 1o determine settlement under those swaps and are not therefore an exposure for the Group These Instruments are analysed in note 23

The interest rate for index-inked debt 15 based upon an RPl measure which 1s also used in determining the amount of ncome from customers
n South West Water

The Group has no sigruficant Interest-beanng assets upon which the net return fluctuates from market nsk Deposit interest recevable 1s axpected
to fluctuate In ling with Interest payable on floating rate borrowings  Cansequently the Group's Income and cash generated from oparations (note 38}
are independant of changes i market interest rates

For 2013 o interest rates on vanable net borrowings had been an average 0 5% highar/lower with all other vanables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year and equity would have decreased/increased by £2 0 million (2012 £1 3 million)

For 2013 ff RPi on index-inked borrowings had been on average 0 5% higherAower with all other vanables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
and equty would have decreased/increased by £1 4 millien (2012 £1 3 million)

Foreign currency risk occurs at transactional and translation level from borrowings and transactions in foreign currencies These nsks are managed
through cross-currency Interest rate swaps and forward contracts which provide certainty over foreign currency nisk

w} Credit nsk

Credit counterparty nsk anses from cash and cash deposits, denvative financial instruments and deposits with banks and financial institutions,
as well as axposure to customers, including outstanding receivables Further nformation on the credit nsk relating to trade receivables 1s given
In note 22

Counterparty nsk anses from the investment of surplus funds and from the use of denvative financial iInstruments The Board has agreed a
policy for managing such nsk which 1s controlled through credit imits, counterparty approvals and ngorous monitonng procadures

The Group has no other significant concentration of credit nsk The Group's surplus funds are managed by the Group's freasury function

and are usually placed in short-term fixed interest deposits or the overnight money markets Deposit counterparties must meet a credit rating
threshold set by the Beard of P1 (Moody's) or A1 (Standard and Poor's)

(b) Capital nsk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in arder to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to mantain an optmal capra! structure to minimise the cost of capital

The Group’s policy 1s to have 12 months pre-funding of projected capital expenditure At 31 March 2013 the Group had cash and faciities,
excluding restricted funds, of £1 tillon

In order to maintain or adjust the caprtal structure the Group seeks to mantain a balance of returns to shareholders through dvdends
and an appropriate capital structure of debt and equity for each business segment and the Group

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the geanng ratio This ratio 1s calculated as nat borrowings dmvded by total capital Net borrowings are
analysed in note 39 and calcutated as total borrowings less cash and cash deposits Total capital 1s calculated as 1otal shareholders' equity plus net
borrowings

The geanng ratios at the balance sheet date were

M3 2012

fm £m

Net borrowings {nots 39) 2,008 7 2,104 6

Total equity 1,084 3 8221

Total capital 3,0730 29267
Gearnng ratio 65 4% 71 9%

South West Water Limited 1s also monitored on the basis of the ratio of its net borrowings to Regulatory Capital Value Ofwat’s optimum range
for geanng s 55% - 65%

2013 2mz

£m £m

Regulatory Capital Value 29157 28287

Net borrawings 1,600.3 1,684 9
Net borrowings/Regutatory Capital Value 54 9% 56 1%
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Financal statements

Notes to the financial statements
Continued

3 Financial nsk management Continued

The Group has entered into covenants with lenders and, whilst terms vary, these typically prowide for imits on geanng and interest cover
The Group has been in compliance with Its covenants duning the year

(c} Determiation of fair values

The Group uses the following hierarchy for deterrmining the far value of financial Instruments by valuation techrigue

* quoted pnces {unadjusted) In actve markets for identcal assets or labhties (evel 1)

* Inputs other than quoted prces ncluded within level 1 that are observable for the asset or habilty, ether directly (that 1s, as prices)
or indrectly (that 1s, denved from pnces} (levet 2)

+ Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that 15, unobservable inputs) (level 3)

The Group's financial Instruments are valued principally using level 2 measures as analysed in note 23

The far value of financial instruments not traded in an active market {for example over-the-counter dernvatives) 1s determined by using valuation
techniques A vanety of mathods and assumptrons are used based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date Quoted market
pnces or dealer quotes for smilar instruments are used for long-term debt Other techniques, such as estmated discounted cash flows,

are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments The farr value of nterest rate swaps 1s calkulated as the present value
of the estimated future cash flows

The carrying values, less imparrment prowision, of trade recevables and payables are assumed to approximate to their farr values The far value
of financial lrabilites, pnnctpally emaronmental prowsions, 1s estmated by discounting the futurae contractual cash flows at the current market
Interest rate avalable to the Group for similar financial iInstruments

4 Critical accounting judgements and estimates

The Group’s pnnaipal accounting policies are set out in note 2 Management is required to exercise significant judgement and maks
use of estmates and assumptions in the application of these policies Estimates are based on factors including histoncal expenence
and expectations of future events that managsment believe to be reasanable However, given the judgemental nature of such estimates,
actual results could be differant from tha assurnptions used

Impairment of non-financial assets and gooadwill

In order to determine whather impairments are required the Group estimates the raecoverable amount of an indivdual assst or assets grouped
at the lowest level for which there are separataly identifiable cash flows (cash generating units) For the purposes of assessing impairment

of goodwil, the waste management segment 1s considered to be a single cash generating unit as it 1 an integrated business and this

15 the lowest leve!l to which goodwill 1s allocated and monitored by management

Imparment calculations are based on projections of future cash flows for the cash generaling urit and the use of a terminal value to Incorporate
expectations of growth aiter the penod covered by spacific plans The cash flows are discounted by the weighted average cost of capital
approprate to the business actvty which 1s reviewed on an annual basis

It the cash flow or discount rate assumptions were to changs because of market conditions, the level of impairment coutd be different
and could result in the impairment being incraased or reversed, in part or in full, at a future date

The principal assumptions used to assess imparment are set out In notes 15 and 17 of the financial statements

Impairment of intangible assets
The Group records all assets and labilities acquired in business acquisitions, including goodwill, at {ar value Intangible assets which have
an indefinite usshul ife, pnnaipally goodwill, are assessed at least annually for iImparment

The intial goodwill recorded and subsequent iImpairment analysis require management io make estimations of future cash flows, terminal values
and an assessment of the long-term pre-tax discount rate to be applied to those cash flows which reflects an assessment of the cost of capital
of the cash generating unit

Environmental and landfill restoration provisions

Environmental control and aftercare costs are incurred dunng the operational hie of sach landfill site and for a considerabla penod thereafter
The period of aftercare post-closure and the lavel of costs expected are uncertan and can vary significanily from site to site Key factors

are the type of wasts, the speed at which it decomposes, the volume of leachate requinng freatment and regulatory reguirements specific

to the site Tha amounts expected to be Incurred have been re-assessed, re-estimated and aligned to the revised landfill site operating Iives
established from the anticipated decline in landfill acimty The revised prowsion includes a change in the estimate of the aftercare penod to 60
years after site closure (2012 30 years) to align with updated techrucal assessment using Independent external advice, as well as incorporating
updated assumptions based on recent histong data and future cost estmates

The provisions are recognised in the financial statements at the net present value of the estimated future expenditure required to setile
the Group’s obligations A discount rate s applied to recogniss the time value of money and 1s unwound over the life of the prowision
This 15 included In the Income staternent as a financial item within finance costs

As at 31 March 2013 the Group’s envronmenta! and landfill restoration prowvistons were £184 2 million (note 32)

Where a restoration provision gives access to future economic benefits, an asset 1s recognised and depreciated in accordance with the Group's
depreciatton policy As at 31 March 2013 these assets had a net book value of £35 5 million (note17)
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Retirement benefit obhigations
The Group operates defined benefit pension schemas for which actuanal valuations are camed out as determined by the trustees at intervals of
not more than three years The last valuation of the man scheme was at 31 March 2010

The pension cost and liabilities under IAS 19 are assessed in accordance with Diractors' baest estimates using the adwvice of an indepsndent
qualified actuary and assumptions 1n the latest actuanal valuation The assumphons are based on member data supplied to the actuary

and market observations for interest rates and inflation, supplemented by discussions between the actuary and management The mortality
assumption uses a scheme-spedfic calculation based on CMI 2009 actuanal tables with an allowance for future longewty Improvement The
prncipal assumpiions used to measure schemes’ habilibies, sensitnaties to changes in those assumptions and fuiure funding obligations are set
out In note 30 of the financial staternents

Taxation

The Group current Income tax provision of £67 O milion (note 27) raflects management’s judgerment of the amount of tax payable for fiscal
years with open tax computations whers liabilities remain to be agreed with HM Revenue & Custorns Managernent periodically evaluates items
detaled in tax returns where the tax treatment 1s subject to nterpretabon The Group establtshes provisions on a full basis for indmdual tax
items where the tax position 1s assessed as uncertan

Service concession arrangements

Consideration from public sector entities for the operation of waste management service concessions Is treated as contract receivables, spiit
between profit on the construction of assets, operation of the service and provision of finance recognised as interest receivable Management's
allocation betwesn these three elements 15 assessed to reflect external market conditions according to the type of service prowded

Site development costs

The development of waste management facilities for new projects (such as Energy from Waste plants) are subject to obtaning planning
permissions Development costs ars capitalised using management’s assessment of the likelthood of a succassiul outcome for sach project To
the extent that planning permussion 1s not receved any capitalised development costs are expensed

Landfill costs

The estimation of landfill reserves 1s of particular importance in assessing landflll costs, sincs the projected cost of a landfill site 1s depreciated
over its estimated operational Iife taking into account the usage of void space and gas producbon at the site post-closure In estmating the
aperational life of a landfill site consideration 15 given to the expected ongoing decline In the landiill market Where Vindor plans to buld a
competing energy from wasts faciity at certain existing landfill sites, void which consequently is no longer expscted to be used 1s excluded from
the calculation of operational Iifé The estimates of landfil reserves are ragularly reviewed and updated during the financial year for usage and
other events (for example site extensions) Estimates are also subbject to physical review by external adwviscrs

A number of {actors impact on the depreciation of landfill reserves including ihe avallable vaid space, future capital expenditure and operating
costs The assumptions are revised as these factors change

The estimate of gas preducton at landfill sites post-closure reduces the depreciation of landfill reserves An assassment 15 undertaken
for indmdual sites of the histonc profile of gas produstion dunng landfiling actmty and the projected gsneration post-closure according to the
type of wasta contaned In the landfill and expected profile of gas production over time

Useful economic lives of property, plant and equipment

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment as at 31 March 2013 was £3,279 6 milion (note 17) and the Group's accounting nalicy

1s set out In note 2(h) In the year ended 31 March 2013 addihions totalled £410 1 million and the depreciation charge was £147 7 million
Esbimated useful economic Iives of property, plant and equiprment are based on management's judgement and expenence When management
identifies that actual useful Ives differ matenally from the estimates used to calculate depreciation, the charge 1s adjusted prospectively Due to
the significance of capital investment to the Group, vanations between actual and estmated useful Iives could Impact operating rasults both
positively and negatively Asset Iives and residual values are reviewed annually and, except for assets subject to Imparment, historically changes
to remaning estimatas of useful lives have not been matenal

Revenue recognition
The Group recognises revenue at the tme of delivery of seraces Payments recelved in advance of services delivered are recorded
as a liabilty

South West Water raises bil's and recognises revenue In accordance wath its enttlement to receive revenue in line with the limits established by
tha Penodic Review pnce-setting process For water and waste water customers with water meters, ravenue recognised s dependant upon
the volume supphied including an estirnate of the sales valus of uniis supplied between the date of the last meter reading and the year-end
Estmated usage 1s based on histonc data, pdgement and assumptions

Vindor estmates income from certain contractual revenue streams based on tonnages, cost and historic data which are dspandant on
agreement with the customer after tha delivery of the service

Provision for doubtful debts
At the balance sheet date each subsidary evaluates the collectability of trade receivables and records provisions far doubtful debts based on
expenence Including compansons of the relative age of accounts and constderation of actual wnte-off history

The actual level of debt collected may differ from the estimated levels of recovery As at 31 March 2013 the Group's current trade recevables
were £212 4 millon, aganst which £76 4 million had been provided for mpament {note 22)
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Financial slatements

Notes to the financial statements
Continued

5 Segmental information
Operating segments are reported In a manner consistent with internal reporting prowded to the Chief Operating Decision-Maker, which has been
identifiad as the Pennon Group Ple Board

The water and sewsrage business compnses the regulated water and sewerage services undertaken by South West Water Limited The waste
managemsnt business Is the recycling, renewable energy and waste management sarvces provided by Vindor Umitad Segment assets include
goodwill and other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, inventones, trade and other receivables and cash and cash deposits
Segment habihites compnse operating liabilities and excluds taxation The other segment rabilities includa the Gompany’s financing of busmness
acquisitions and Group taxaton labilites Caprtal expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment, Including additions resulting
from acquisitions through business combinations

2013 2012
£m £m
Revenue
Water and sewerage 498.6 4740
Waste managemaent 7038 7611
Other 108 98
Loss intra-segmeant trading” {121) {11 8
1,201.4 1,2331
Segment result
Operating profit before depreciation, amortisation and exceptional items (EBITDA)
Water and sewerage 375 3052
Waste managemaent 779 1103
Other 01 03
39556 4168
Operating profit before exceptional items
Water and sewerage 2152 2047
Waste managemant 308 837
Other 03 04
2463 2688
Profit hefore tax and exceptional items
Water and sewerage 1521 14156
Waste managemaent 365 576
Other 296 14
198 2 2005
"—;;c;flv(loss} before tax - o . N o
Water and sewarage 164 6 1415
Waste management (152 4) 576
Other 26 14
218 2005

* Intra-segment trading betwesen and to other segments by the water and sewerage and waste managament segments 1s under normal
commaercial terms and conditions that would also be avalable to unrelated third parties Intra-segment revenue of the other segment
15 at cost
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Water and Wasta
sewerage  management Other Eiminations Group
£m £m £m £m £m

Balance sheet
31 March 2013
Assets (excluding investmeants in joint ventures) 202286 1,4500 13479 {9507) 4,769 8
Investments in joint ventures - 0.1 - - o1
Total assets 28226 1,4501 1,347 9 (950 7) 47699
Liabilities (2,157 Q) {1,108.5) {1,390 8) 850.7 {3,705.6)
Net assets/{habllities) 7656 3416 42.8) - 1,064 3
31 March 2012 (Restatad note 40)
Assets (excluding mvestmants  jont ventures) 28382 1,214 3 2122 (783 3) 4,275 4
Investments in joint ventures - 01 - - 01
Total assets 29382 1,214 4 9122 (7893 42755
Liabilities (2,159 6) (830 8) (1,252 3) 7833 (3,453 4}
Net assets/(liabilities) 77886 3836 (340 1} - 8221

Segmant liabilites of the water and sewerage and waste managemant segments compnse operating kabiities The other segment lrabilities
include the Company's financing of business acquisitions before 1999 and Group taxation habilties

Water and Waste
sewerage  management Other Group
Notes £m £m £m £m

Other information
31 March 2013
Amortisation of other intangible assets 16 - 3.7 - 3.7
Capital expenditure (including acquisitions) 116.5 308.3 01 42489
Depregiation 1023 43.4 02 145.5
Impairment 18,17 - 840 - 84.0
Finance ncome 8 411 24.3 776 1430
Finance costs 8 917 244 68.3 184 4
31 March 2012
Amortisation of other intangible assets 16 - 14 - 14
Capital expenditure (Including acquisitions) 1308 1558 - 2866
Deprsciation 1005 452 o1 1456
Finance incoma 8 583 232 368 1183
Finance costs 8 1225 332 359 191 6
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Financal staterments

Notes to the financial statements
Continued

5 Segmental information Continued
Geographic analysis of revenue based on location of customers

2013 2012
m £m
Revenue
United Kingdom 1,142.1 1,162 4
Rest of European Union 112 133
China 397 510
Rest of World 81 64
1,2011 1,233 1
The Group’s country of domicile 1s the United Kingdom and s the country in which it generates the maonty of its revenue
The Group's non-current assets are all located in the United Kingdom
6 Excepticnal items
Exceptional items are those that in the Directors’ view are required to be separately disclosed by wirtue of ther size or incidence to ensble
a full understanding of the Group's financial performance
2013 202
Notes fm £m
Operating costs
Impairment of property, plant and equipment {a) 17 (78.2) -
Environmental and landfil restoration provisions (b) 32 (80 1) -
Onerous contracts and other [(¢) {20 6) -
(188 9) -
Net finance costs 8
Receipt on transfer and subsequent termination of lease (d) 154 -
Far value loss on associated interest rate swap transferred from equity on termination of lease (d) 29) -
125 -
Loss before tax (176 4) -
Tax credit ansing on exceptonal items (g) 9 362 -
Loss for the year {140 2) -

a) The imparment charge relates to the wnte-down of the camying values of property, plant and equipment in tandfill and recyching activities
reflacting reduced landfill volumes and recyclate prices The impairmant charge Is net of a credit ansing from the reassessment of landfill
site residual values linked to gas production at landfill sites post-closure

g

The period of aftercare post-closure and the level of costs expected are uncertain and can vary significantly fom site to site Key factors
are the type of waste, the speed at which it decomposes, the volume of leachate requinng treatment and regulatory requirements speaific
to the site The amounts expected to be incurred have been re-assessed, re-estmated and aligned to the revised landfill site operating
Iives established from the anticipated dacline in landfill actwity The revised prowvision includes a change in the estimats of the aftercare
penod to 60 years after site closure {2012 30 years) to align with updated technical assessment using iIndependent external advics,

as well as incarporating updated assumptions based on recent histoncal data and future cost estmates This exceptional charge reflects
only the incremental changs in the assessment of the provistons

o

Onerous contracts principally anse from long-term contractual obligations to purchase matenals for recycling at Input prices which lsad
to an expected loss after reflecting directly attrbutable and unavoidable costs of processing

{d) South West Water Lmited raceived a consent fee refated to the transfer and subsequent termination of a lease ansing from the sale
of a finance lease betwsen financial Institutions

() The total tax credit on exceptional items is below the current rate of corporation tax (249,) due to tax relef not being avalable
on tneligible expenditure on which no deferred tax has previously been accounted for (pnincipally land and buildings)

Enwironmental control and aftercare costs are incurred dunng the operational life of each landiill site and for a considerable period theraafter
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7 Operating costs

2013 2012
Notes £m £m
Manpower costs 13 158 6 1654
Raw matenals and consumables 1252 1338
Other operating expensas include
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equpment {18) 28
Operating lease rentals payable
- Plant and machinery 129 66
- Property 89 80
Research and development expenditure 02 o2
Trade recavables imparment 22 99 g2
Depraciation of property, plant and equipment
- Owned assets 107 8 1105
— Under finance leases 377 351
Amartisation of other intangible assets 16 a7 14
Fees payable to the Company's auditors in the year were
2013 2012
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and its associates for the audit of parent Company 124 73
and consolidated financial staterments
Fees payable o the Company’s auditors and its associates for othar services
The audit of Gompany'é subsidianes o - 597 ’R)_
Audit related assurance services 172 76
Tax advisory services 361 242
Corporats finance services 880 707
Other non-audit services 177 97
Total fees 2,311 1,605
Fees payable to the Company's auditars in respect of Pannon Group pension schemes
Audit 27 26
Expenses rembursed to the auditors in relation to the audit of the Group were £45,000 (2012 £37,000)
Carporate finance services related to corporate finance advice on a number of EfW and PPP projects
Audit related fees of £65,000 (2012 nul) were recognised directly in equity relatiing to the 1ssuance cost of the perpetual capital securties
A descnption of the work of the Audit Committee 1s set out in its report on pages 66 ana 67 which ncludes an explanation of how the auditor's
objectty and independence are safeguarded when non-audit services arg provided by the auditors’ firm
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Financal staterments

Notes to the financial statements

Continued
8. Net finance costs
2013 2012
Finance Finance Finance Finance
cost Income Total cost ncome Total
Notes fm £m £m fm £Em £m
Cost of servicing debt
Bank borrowing and averdrafts (40.0) - 400) (500) - 500
Interest element of finance lease rentals {39 8) - (39 8) 388 - 38 8)
Other finance costs (5 4) - 54) 55 - (55)
Interest recervable - 58 58 - 62 62
Interast receivable on shareholder loans to joint ventures - 93 293 - 75 75
(85 2) 151 (70 1} (94 3) 137 80 6)
Other finance income
Investment income receved - 668 668 - 673 673
g?ngczl:g (I:c:;s;?nse?; aldirzfc;'-xg;: financial Instrurnents (63 4) _ (63 4) (63 9) _ (639)
- - o (63 4) ;6_8—_ 34 o (659—)—_67 _—_3:1—-
Notional Interest
Interest recevable on service concession arrangements - 60 60 - aa 33
Retirement benefit obligatrons 30 {28.6) 323 37 @29 1) 327 36
Unwinding of discounts in Yiabilities 43) - (4 3) 43 - 43
(329 383 54 (33 4) 360 28
Ir:g: rg?:;?\ t(;n non-designated dernvative financial _ 74 74 _ o ;‘— —23_
(181 5) 1276 {53 9) (191 6) 1193 723)
Except:c;nal items - ; {29) 154 12.5 o - - _——
(184 4) 1430 414 (191 6) 1193 723

Cther finance income represents enhanced yelds from investrnant income received on short-tertn deposits held partialy offset by falr value losses on
dervative financial instruments which provided commercial hedges against these short-term structured deposits Thess transactions commenced and

maturad dunng the year

9 Taxation
T ST T Before  Exceptional T o
excephonal items
Rems {Note 6) Total
2013 2013 2013 2012

Notes £m £m £m Em
Analysis of charge in year
Current tax charge/(credit) 433 {156} 277 309
Deferred tax - other 14 {21 5) (201) 236
Deferred tax ansing on change of rate of corporation tax (13 6) 09 (12 {26 4)
Total deferred tax credit 31 {12.2) {20 6) {328) {2 8)
Tax charge/{credit) for year 1 {36 2) 5.1} 281
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Current tax s calculated at 24% (2012 26%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year

Included in defared tax is a non-recumng credit of £12 7 million (2012 £26 4 millon) ansing from a 1% reduchion (2012 2%) in the rate
of corporation tax

The tax for the year differs from the theoretical amount which would anse using the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (24%) from

2013 2012
£m £m
Profit before tax 218 2005
Profit before tax multipled by the standard rate of UK corporation tax of 24% (2012 26%) 52 521
Effscts of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 85 35
Other 46 s
Change in rats of corporation tax (27 (26 4)
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of pnor years (107 0 5}
Tax (credit)/charge for year 51) 281

Credit adjustments to the tax charge in respact of pnor years include amounts released from the pnior year current tax ability where
a reassessment of a number of tax tems indicates that a tax deduction 1s now certan

The average applicable tax rate for the year before exceptional tems was 16% (2012 149%)
In addition to the amount recogrised in the income statement, a deferred tax credit relabng to actuanal gains on defined bensfit pension schemes of
£2 0 million (2012 £10 2 milkon) have been credited directly to other comprehansive income In 2012 a deferred tax credit relating to losses on cash

flow hedges of £5 8 millon was also recognised A deferred tax charge relating to share-based payments of £0 5 milkon (20412 €0 1 million) has been
recognised directly to equity

10 Profit of the parent company

2013 2012
£m £m
Profit attnbutabls to ordinary shareholders' equity dealt wath In the accounts of the parent company 1857 1163

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 no income statement or statement of comprehansive income 15 presented
far the Company

11. Earnings per share

Basic earmings per share are calculated by dividing the sarnings attnbutable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number
of Ordinary shares outstanding dunng the year, excluding those held in the employee share trust (note 36), which are treated as cancalled

For diluted earnings per sharg, the weighted average number of Ordinary shares In 1ssue 18 adjusted 1o include all dilutive potential Ordinary
sharas Tha Group has two types of dilutive potential Ordinary shares - those share options granted to employses where the exercise pnce 1s
lass than the avarage market price of the Company's Ordinary shares dunng the year, and the cantingently issuable sharas under the Group's
Parformance and Co-Investment Plan and the deferred shares element of the Annual Incentive Bonus Plan, to the extent that the performance
crtena for vesting of the awards are expected to be met The convertible bonds 1ssued in August 2009 did net have a diutive effect

on statutory earnings per share duning the year

The weighted average number of shares and earnings used in the calculations were

L 3 o . B 2013 2012

_ —Number of s;lares (mTIIlons—) S B - - i
For basic earnings per share 363.6 3587
Effect of diutive potenttal Ordinary shares from share options 22 22
Eo?&ﬁ@j earnings p;fs;lare I ES_EL o _E;SEQ

Pernon Group Pic Annual Report 2013 105

MauBn0 dnainy

JB]BAA 1SOM LANOS

dnoin JOPUIA

SoUBLIBADY)

SILUBWAENS [BIURUIY




Financeal statemnents

Notes to the financial statements
Continued

11. Earnings per share Continued

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Earnings per share befors exceptional tems and deferred tax are presented as the Directars believe that this measure provides a more useful

companson on business trends and performance Deferrad tax reflects distortive effects of changes In corporation tax rates and the level
of long-term captial investment Earnings per share have been calculated

2013 2012
Profit Earnings per share Profit Earnings per share
after tax Basic Diluted after tax Basic Diluted
£m P P £m p P
Statutory sarnings 269 74 74 1724 481 478
Oeferred tax credit (befora exceptional items) (122) 34) 33 (28 08 (08
Excepticnal items (net of tax) 1402 386 38 2 - - -
Earnings before exceptional items and deferred tax 1549 42,6 42.3 1696 473 470
12 Dwvidends
2013 2012
£m £m
Amounts recogrised as distributions to ordinary equity holdars In the year
Intenm dividend paid for the year ended 31 March 2012 8 22p (2011 7 50p) per share 287 268
Final dvdend paid for the year ended 31 March 2012 18 30p (2011 17 15p) per share 66 3 614
960 8g2
Proposed dividends
Proposed intenm dividend for the vear endad 31 March 2013 8 76p (2012 8 22p) per shars 318 297
Praposed final dwvidend for the year ended 31 March 2013 18 70p (2012 18 30p) per share 719 663
1038 95
The proposed intenm and final dmdends have not bean included as llabidities In thass financial statemsants
The proposed intenm dividend for 2013 was pard on 4 Apnl 2013 and the proposed final dwvidend 1s subject to approval by shareholdars
at the Annual General Mesting
13 Employment costs
2013 2012
. s o Notes _Em _ Em
Wages and salarles 1343 1309
Social secunty costs 131 126
Pension costs 30 1689 166
Share-based payments 33 36 36
Total employmsnt costs 167 9 1637
GCharged
Manpower costs 1586 i55 4
Capital schemes 83 83
Total employmant costs 1679 637
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Detalls of Dwrectors’ emoluments are set out In note 14 There are no personnel, other thar Diractors, who as key management exercise

authorty and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the actmbes of the Group

2013 2012
Employees (average number)
Tha average monthly number of employees (including Executive Directors) was
Water and sewerage 1,354 1,335
Waste management 3,180 3,148
Cther 50 48
Group totals - - 4,584 4,529
The total number of employees at 31 March 2013 was 4,511 {2012 4,592)
14 Directors’ emoluments
2013 2012
- el OO0 PO
Exacutiva Directors S
Salary 1,110 1,077
Parformance-related bonus paid or payable 261 393
Share-based payments 1,147 1,094
Other emoluments, iIncluding payments in ksu of pension provision 324 383
Non-executive Directors aAT7? 431
- - 3,319 #Sia;am
The cost of share-based payments represents the amount charged to the income staterment, as descnbed in note 33
The aggregate gans on vesting of Directors’ share-based awards amounted to a total of £1,644,000 (2012 £1,002,000)
Total gains made by Drrectors on the exercise of share options wera £69,000 (2012 nil)
Total emoluments include £1,541,000 (2012 £1,570,000) payable to Directors for senices as directors of subsidiary undertakings
At 31 March 2013 thers were no Directars accruing retirement benefits under daefined benefit pension schernes (2012 nil)
Na pension contributions were payable to defined contribubion schemes but three Directors received paymients in lieu of pension provision
(2012 three)
Mora dstatled information concerning Directors” emoluments (including penstons and the highest paid Director) and share interests 1s shown
In the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 72 to 83
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Fnancial staternents

Notes to the financial statements

Continued

15. Goodwill
(Restated
note 40)
£m
Cost
At 1 Aprl 2011 3004
Recognised on acquisitton of subsidianas 261
At 31 March 2012 3265
Recogrised on acquisition of subsicdhanes (note 40) 125
At 31 March 2013 3380
Carrying amount
At 1 Aprl 2011 3004
At 31 March 2012 3265
At 31 March 2013 3390

Goodwill acquired In a business combination is allocated at acquisition to the cash generating unit (CGU) expected to banefit from that business
commnation All of the carmang amount of goodwill 1s allocated to the waste management segment and this ts the lawest level at which goodwill

1s monitcred

Impairment testing of goodwill

The Group tests goodwilt for impairment annually, or more frequently f there are any indications that imparment may have ansen

The recoveraisle amount of gocdwill Is determined based on value-in-use calculations whish, under IAS 36 ‘Imparment of Assets’, requirs
the use of base cash flow projactions that reflect reasonable and supportable assurmptions with specific restrictions on the estimatss to be
used These include mitations on reflecting cash flows io take account of future cost restructunng, or improvement or enhancemsnt of asset
performance Uncommitted projacts are excluded Discount rates are required 0 be denved independently of the Group's capital structure
and raflect management's prudent estimate of a rate that investors would require If they were 1o choose a similar investment

The base cash flow projections have been denved by prudently adjusting key assumptions undertying tha Group's detallad budgst and strategic
plan projections These cover a penod of 7 years and are prepared as part of the annual planning cycle This penod is belisved to lead

to a more realistic estimate of future cash flows than 5 years

These plans are based on detaled market-by-market forecasts of projected volumes, prices and costs for each business actmty

These forecasts reflect, on an indmdual operational site basis, numerous assumptions and estmates The key assumptions include
antcipated changes in market size and volumes, recyclate prices, ensrgy seling prices, gate fees, the level of future landiill tax, and cost
inflation Management has determined the value assigned to each assumpton based on historical expsanence, markst survays, industry
analysis and current legislation For business activties with an indefinite ife a terminal growth rate has been used

The key assumptions which management has applied to the cash flow projections include

Assumption

Basis for assumption

Discount rate

Pre-tax discount rates used range fram 8% to 11% (across the segment's

business actiwitias)

Discount rates have been determined based on an estimate

of the waste management segment’s weighted averags cost

of capital adjusted for the different nsk profiles of the segment'’s
business activties to the extent that the cash flows have nat already
been adjusted Investments in jont ventures reflect an expected
equity return only

Long term growth rate

2 5% apphed to penods bayond the penod of the detated projeciions

Based on forecasts of growth in waste management markets
and the UK aconomy

Using management's cash flow projections on the above basis, tha valus-in-use of the waste management business excesds the carmang
amount by £400 million (*headroom”} The headroom relatve to the Company’s mvestment In the waste management business (note 20) 1s
£197 milkon A reasonably possible change, with all other vanables held constant, of a 0 5% increasa in discount rates, a 0 5% reduction In the
long-term growth rate or a 5 0% reduction In overall net cash flows, as a resuft of movements in key assumptions, wauld reduce headroom by
£133 milion, £80 milkon and £70 million respactivety
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16 Other intangible assets

Customer
contracts Total
Restated (Restated
note 40) Patents nate 40)
£m £m £m
Acquired intangible assets
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2011 125 02 27
Recognised on acquisition of subsidianas 180 - 190
At 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2013 35 02 317
Accumulated amortisatron
At 1 Apnl 2011 83 - 83
Charge for year 13 C1 14
At 31 March 2012 96 01 97
Charge for year 37 - a7
lmpairment charge for year 58 - 58
At 31 March 2013 191 01 182
Carrying amaunt
At 1 April 2011 42 02 44
At 31 March 2012 219 01 220
At 31 March 2013 124 o1 125
Customer confracts are amortised aver the useful economic iife of each contract which at acquisinon ranged betwaen two and 15 years
The average remaining life I1s six years
Patents are amortised over thar estmated useful economic lives which at acquision was 13 years Tha average remaning hie 1s five years
The carrying values of other Intangible assets are reviewed annually ar when events or changes in arcumstance indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be fully recoverable
The principal assumptions used 10 assess Impalrment ars set out in note 17 of the financial statements
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements

Continued
17. Property, plant and equipment
Land and Fixed and mobrle
buildings plant, vehicles Total
{(Restated  [nfrastructure Operatonal and computers Landfill Construction (Restated
naote 40) assets proparties  (Restated note 40) restoraton In prograss note 40)
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Group
Cost
At 1 Apri 2071 441 1 1,467 9 6142 1,368 9 534 146 5 40930
Ansing on acquisthons 03 - - 14 - - 17
Additions 170 148 17 180 - 204 8 257 4
Assets acopted at far value - 467 - - - - 467
Other - - - - 16 - 16
Grants and contributions - (16) - - - - (16)
Disposals - 09 1) (11 6) - - (12 8)
Transfers/reclassifications (180) 140 52 901 - (86 9) 44
_At 31 March 2012 4404 1,541 0 6210 1,4688 550 264 4 4,390 6
Ansing on acquisitions (note 40) 02 - - 36 - - a8
Additions 75 n7 14 329 - 3566 4101
Assets adopted at far value - 33 - - - - 33
Other (note 32) - - - - 84 - 84
Grants and contnbutions - (10) - - - - (t O}
Disposals - (12) - 98 - - (10 8)
Transfers/reclassifications 108 160 108 54 3 - (92 6) -
At 31 March 2013 4689 1,5707 6330 16500 634 5284 4,804 4
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 Aprt 2011 1888 1129 1702 680 6 178 - 1,170 3
Charge for year 166 222 109 958 20 - 147 5
Disposals - ©9 01 98 - - (108
Transfers/reclassifications (+& 1) - - 151 - - -
At 31 March 2012 1903 1342 1810 7817 198 - 1.3070“_
Charge for year is52 230 i09 968 18 - 147 7
Imparment charge for year 517 - - 202 63 - 782
Disposals - (12 - (69 - - 81
At 31 March 2013 257 2 1560 1819 8918 278 - 1,524 8
Net book value
At 1 April 2011 2523 1,355 0 444Q 689 3 356 1465 28227
At 31 March 2012 2501 1,406 8 4400 €687 1 352 264 4 30836
At 31 March 2013 2.7 1,47 4411 658 2 355 528 4 3,279 6
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Of the total deprectation charge of £147 7 muhon (2012 £147 5 million), £1 4 million (2012 £1 4 millon) has been charged to capital projects,
£0 8 mullton (2012 £0 5 mulhon) has besn offset by deferred income and £145 5 million {2012 £145 & millan) has besn charged against profits

Asset ives and residual values are reviewed annually
Asset transfers/reclassifications include assets transferred from other non-currant assets of nil million (2012 £4 4 million)

During the year borrowing costs of £13 6 milion (2012 £3 @ milion) have been capitalised on qualifying assets, at an averags borrowng rate
of 4 5%

Impairment testing for property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and finite lived intangible assets are reviewed for iImpairment when any indicators of imparrment are identified
Maost of the indmdual assets do not generate independent cash flows and as a result, for the purposes of Impalment reviews, the assets

ara groupaed into cash generating units (CGUs) The CGUs of the waste management segment compnse individual sites which constitute

the smallest identifiable group of assets that generate cash inflows that are largely Independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group
of assets

Tha carrying value of these ndwdual sites 1s compared 10 the recoverable amount of the GGUSs, which 1s based predominantly on value-in-use
Value-In-use calculatrans use the same base cash flow projections used for tasting goodwill (note 15) and are denved by adjusting the Group’s
detaled budget and strategic plan which cover a psnod of 7 years and ars approved by the Board annually The key assumptions are the same
as for the impairment testing of goodwill (note 15)

For certain CGUs the recoverable amount 1s determined by reference to the far value less costs to sell of the underying assets using external
and internal valuations of property and equipment and management's estimate of disposal costs

Irmpairment charges of £78 2 millon for property, plant and equipment and £5 8 million far other intangible assets have been identfied In the
waste management segment relating to certain CGUs, pnncipally landfill (£43 3 milian} and recycing (£31 4 millon) activities, to reflect reduced
landfill volumes and recyclate pnces For the purposes of disclosing the results of the imparrment review the CGUs hava baen grouped togsther
by business acimty as each CGU within a business activity exhibits a similar nsk profile The key assumptions in the Group’s detaled budgst
and strategic plan are the same as those used for tssting goodwill {note 15) The assumptions applied to these cash flow projections are

Assumption Basis for assumption

Discount rate

Pre-tax discount rates used are 8% for landfili and 8 5% for recyciing Discount rates have been determined based on an estmate of
the waste management segment’s weighted average cost of
capial adjusted far the different nsk profiles of the segment’s
business activities to the extent that the cash flows have not
already been adjusted

Long-term growth rate

2 5% appted to penods beyond the strategic ptan pencd up to the end of  Based on forecasts of growth in wasta managemant markets and
the ife of the assets for recycling For landfill actmwties a finite kife has been tha UK economy
identified based on projected volumes

Using management cash flow projections a 0 5% Increase in the discount rate or a 0 5% decrease in the estimatad long-term growth rate,
with all other vanables neld constant, would not have a matenal mpact on the imparment charge
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Financial staternents

Notes to the financial statements

Continued

17 Property, plant and equipment Contnued

Assets held under finance leases included above were

Fixed and maobile
Land and  Infrastructure Operabonal plant, vehicles and Lanfil Construction
buldings assets properies computers restoration N Progress Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 31 March 2012 - 3570 4652 3799 - 03 1,202 4
At 31 March 2013 - 3570 46852 3838 - 03 1,2063
Accumulated depreciation
At 31 March 2012 - 313 9740 1890 - - 3173
At 31 March 2013 - 366 104 9 1803 - - 3218
Net book amaunt o
At 31 March 2012 - 3257 368 2 1808 - 03 8851
At 31 March 2013 - 320 4 3603 2035 - 03 8845
Fixad and mobils plant,
vehicles and computers
£m
Company
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2011 04
At 31 March 2012 04
Additions 01
Disposals o
At 31 March 2013 04
Accumutated depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2011 01
GCharga for year 01
At 31 March 2012 02
Charga for year 01
Disposals ©on
At 31 March 2013 02
Net book value
At 1 April 2011 03
A4 31 March 2012 02
At 31 March 2013 02

Asset Iives and residual values are reviewed annually
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18 Financial instruments by category
The accounting policies for financial Instruments have been applied to the line items

Far value Amorised cost
Denvatrves Denvatives Denvatives Trade recevables Total
used forfar usedforcash desmedheld Loansand and trade payables (Restated
valushedgng flow hedging fortrading  recevables {Restated note 40) nota 40)
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Group
31 March 2013
Financial assets
Trade recavables 22 - - - - 1360 1360
Other recevables 19,22 - - - 1810 - 1810
Berwative financial Instruments 23 310 08 a7 - - 415
Cash and cash deposits 25 - - - 634 5 - 634 5
Total 310 08 gr 8155 1360 9930
Financial habilittes
Borrowings 28 - - - (2,643 2) - {2,643 2)
Denvative financial Instruments 23 92 41 1) (29 - - 532
Trade payables 26 - - - - (86 9) ®69)
Total 92 41 1) (29 (2,643 2) (86 9) {2,783 3)
31 March 2012
Financial assets
Trade receivables 22 - - - - 1214 1214
Cther recevables 19,22 - - - 1400 - 1400
Denvative financial Instruments 23 27 66 23 - - 318
Cash and cash deposits 25 - - - 4253 - 4253
Total 27 66 23 5653 1214 7183
Financial habilities
Borrowings 28 - - - (2,529 9) - (2,529 9)
Derwative financial instruments 23 65 (42 1) - - - (48 B)
Trade payables 26 - - - - 87 2) 87 2)
Jotal 6 5) 42 1) - (2,529 9) {87 2) (2,665 7)
Company
31 March 2013
Financial assets
Amounts owed by subsidianes 19,22 - - - 6370 - 637 0
Dervative financial instruments 23 - - 97 - - 97
Cash and cash deposits 25 - - - 3989 - 3889
Total - - 97 10359 - 1,0456
Financial kabiities
Borrowings 28 - - - (1,049 8) - (1,049 8)
Trade payables 26 - - - - {0 4} O 4)
Total - - - (1,049 8) {0 4} (1,050 2}
31 March 2012
Financial assets
Amounts owed by subsidianes 18,22 - - - 4417 - 4417
Denvatwe financial instruments 23 - 66 23 - - 89
Cash and cash dsposits 25 - - - 1589 - 158 9
Total - 66 23 6006 - 608 5
Financial habihties
Borrowings 28 - - - (8912 - 8912
Trade payables 26 - - - - 01) 01)
Total - - - (891 2) {01) (891 3)
Pennon Group Pic Annual Report 2013 113

MalAIRAQ dnoit

JBIBM IS8 LINOS

dnoun Jopuip,

BOLBLLIBAQL)

SIUDWIANES [BIDUBULY




Firancial statements

Notes to the financial statements

Continued

19 Other non-current assets

Non-current recevables

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Amounts owad by subsidiary undertakings - - 5020 35089
Amounts owed by related parties (note 45} 799 690 - -
Senace concassion arrangsments 201 588 - -
Other receivables 13.3 106 05 11
1833 138 4 5025 3520
Non-current racevables were due
n Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Batwsesen 1 and 2 years 210 155 126 2 892
Over 2 years and lass than 5 years 244 159 376 3 2628
Over 5 yaars 1379 107 0 - -
1833 1384 5025 3520
The far values of non-current recavables wera
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
fm £m £m £m
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertalengs - - 509.2 3547
Amounts owed by related parties 161.6 147 7 - -
Sarvce concession arrangements 00 1 588 - -
Other recevables 13.3 106 05 11
2650 2171 6097 3558

The fair value of amounts owed by related parties is based on cash flows using a rate based on the borrowings rate of 2 5% (2012 2 5%)

The discount rate 1s equal to London Interbank Offered Rate plus an allkowance to reflect an appropnate credit margn

The effective interest rate on amounts owsed by related parties was 13 0% (2012 14 0%)

Other recavablas indude site development and pre-contract costs of £12 8 mifion (2012 £9 6 mulion)
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20 Investments

Subsidiary undertalungs

£m
Company
At 1 Apnl 2011 1,0320
Additions 1401
At 31 March 2012 11721
Additions 1512
At 31 March 2013 13233
Jont ventures

£m
Group
AL 1 Aprid 2011 15
Share of post-tax profit 40
Share of other comprehensive loss (54)
At 31 March 2012 C1
Share of post-tax profit 58
Share of other comprehensive profit 27
Omdends received (8 5)
At 31 March 2013 01

The recoverable amount of Investments 1s determined based on value-in-use calculations which are set out In note 15 of the financial statements

Details of the Group's principal subsidiary and joint venture undertakings are set out in note 41

The Group's share of the resulls, assets and labilites in its pnncipal jont ventures and associate, which are equity accounted in these financial statements, 15

Assets Labiities Income Other
comprehensive
Nor—curent Current Non—current Gurrent Revenug Profit incoma/loss)
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
2013
Lakestda Energy from
Waste Holdings Limited 738 195 861) 72 %2 58 27
Vindar Laing (Greater _ _
Manchester} Holdings Limited 1752 395 hiesg) 258 636
INEQS Runcorn (TPS) _ _
Holdings Lirmuted 950 223 m71 02 13
2012
Lakeslds Energy from
Waste Holdings Limited 782 137 (899 20 232 37 5 1)
Vindor Laing (Greater
Manchester} Holdings Limited 1713 159 (168 3) (189 468 03 03
INEOS Runcorn (TPS) _ _ _
Holdings Limited 760 B2 (84 0} 02
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Financial staternents

Notes to the financial statements

Continued
21. Inventones
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£&m £m £m £m
Raw materals and consumables 105 90 - -
22, Trade and other receivables — current
Group Company
202
(Restated
2013 note 40) 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Trade recevables 2124 1885 - -
Less prowision for impairment of receivables (76 4) (67 0) - -
Net trade receivatles 1360 1215 - -
Amcunts owed by relatad parties (nota 45) 110 122 - -
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 1350 808
Other receivables 80 130 11 07
Prepayments and accrused income 1127 918 02 02
2677 2385 136 3 917

The Directors consider that the carmyang amounts of trade and other recervables approxmats to ther far value

There 1s no concentration of credit nsk i trade recevables The Group has a large number of customers who are dispersed and there 1s no significant
loss on trade recenvables expected that has not been prowded for The Group has created I1AS 39 partfolio provisions, but cannot practicably identiy
which recevables spaciiically are the ones mpared tt 1s Group policy o consider a recavable in a portfolio to wiich an mpairment has been allocated
on a collectve basis as not being impaired for the purposes of IFRS 7 disclosures until the loss can be specirfically entified with the recenable

The ageing of trade recenvables which are past due but not specifically Impared was

2013 2012
£m £m

Group
Past due 1 - 30 days 513 373
Past due 31 — 120 days 138 130
More than 120 days 1156 97 4

The aged trade recewvaliles above are taken directly from aged sales ledger records before deduction of cradit balances and other adustments

The Group's two principal operating businesses specifically review separate categones of debt 1o identify an appropnate provision for impaiment

South West Water Limited has a duty under legislation to continus to provide domestic customers with services regardiess of payment
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The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade recervables was

2013 2012
L £m £m
At i Aprnl 7 670 582
Provision for receivables iImpairment 29 92
Recevables wntten-off dunng the year as uncollectable 95) 7h
Cumulative amounts previously excluded from debt 90 67
At 31 March 764 670
23. Dervative financial Instruments
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Derivatives used for cash flow hedging
Non-current assets 02 - - -
Current assets 06 66 - 66
Current habtities (180) (153) - -
Non-current liabilities (23 1) (26 8) - -
Derivatives used for fair value hedging
Non-currant assets 308 219 - -
Current assets 02 08 - -
Currant liabilhes 23 (13 - -
Non-current liabilities {6 9) 523 - -
Denvative deemed held for trading
Current assets 97 23 a7 23
Current liabilitiss {1.4) - - -
Nan-current abilities {1 5) - - -

The farr value of hedging denvatives I1s spht between current and non-current assets or kabilites based on the matunty of the cash flows
The insffective portion recognised in the ncome statemsant ansing from hedgng relationships was nil (2012 nil)

Interest rate swaps and fixed rate bormowings are used to manage the mex of fixed and floating rates to ensure at least 50% of Group net bomowings
are at fixed rale Al 31 March 2013 54% of Group net borrowings were at fixed rate (2012 56%)

Al 31 March 2013 the Group had nterest rate swaps 1o swap fram floating to fixed rate and hedge financial habilttes with 2 notional value of £1,1350
millon and a weighted average matunty of 4 0 years (2012 £855 O milion, with 4 0 years) The waighted average interest rate of the swaps for thar
normenal amount was 2 7% (2012 3 2%)

At 31 March 2012 the Company had cross-cumency interest rate swaps to swap from fioating to fixed rate and hedge financal labiltes, relatng
to a borrowing of 70 milion Australian dollars, with a waighted average matunty of 1 0 vears The weighted average interest rate of the swaps was 3 7%
This cross-currency interest rate swap matured dunng the year

The denvative deemed held for trading does not qualify for hadge accounting under LAS 33, but 1s designed to improve thae Group's overall interest
rate parformance This dervative anses from a comixnation of non-deimvative instiuments entered into dunng the year that when combined result
In a dervative instrument  Included i the: denvative instrument 5 a £200 milion fleating interest rate-linked koan from Peninsula MB Limited

to the Company and a fixed rate £200 million obligation due to the Gompany from Peninsula MB Limited  This denvatve has an expected Ife of 15
years The £7 4 millien (2012 £2 3 milion} far value movement in the dervative has bean recognised in net finarxee costs in the income statement
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Financial staterments

Notes to the financial statements
Continued

23 Derwvative financial mstruments Continued

Valuation hierarchy
The amounts of financial Instruments camed at fair value by valuation method were

Level 2 inputs Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m frn £m £m
Assets
Derwvatives used for cash flow hedging o8 66 - 66
Derivatives usad for far valus hedging 31.0 27 - -
Total assets Kl ) 293 - 66
Liabiities
Dervatives used for cash flow hedging M1 421 - -
Denvatives used for far value hedging g2 65 - -
Denvative deemed held for trading 29 - - -
Total labitties 532 486 - -
The amaounts above are the far value of financial nstruments using level 2 — INputs that are observable for the asset or liabilty, esther directly
(that 15, as prices) or Indirectly (that 1, denved from prces) The far values of these swaps are based on the market value of equivalant instruments
at the balance sheet date
Level 3 inputs - Group B Company o
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Assets
Denvative deemed held for trading 87 23 97 23
The amount above is the fair value of financial Instruments using level 3 — Inputs for asset or lability that are not based on observable market data (that 1s,
unobservable market data)
24, Financial instruments at fair value through profit
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Financial assets at far value through profit
Current assets 12 05 - -
Financial habiities at far value through profit
Non-current rabilities (23.0) (16 7) - -

Financial instruments at far value through profit reflect the farr value movernent of the hedged nsk on a hedged tem which has been designated

in a far value hedging relationship
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25 Cash and cash deposits
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012 -
£m Em £m £m Qr
Cash at bank and in hand 866 183 58 4 58 4 %
Short-term bank deposits 1590 67 1 1590 471 5
Cther deposits 3889 3399 1815 834 §
Total cash and cash deposits {note 39) 6345 4253 39889 1589 -
Group short-term deposits have an average matunty of one day
Group other deposits have an average matunty of 134 days L
Group ather deposits indude restneted funds of £135 9 mulion (2012 £108 4 million) to settle long-term lease labilities {note 28) and £7 7 milion (2012 £14 2 <
millon) relating 1o letters of credit §.
For the purposes of the cash flow statement cash and cash equivalents compnse -
- Group Eompé& e
2013 2012 2013 2012
fm £m £m £m
Cash and cash deposits as above 6345 4253 3989 158 9
Bank overdrafts (note 28) {0 4) (105 - - -
634 1 4148 3989 189 Q[
Less deposits with a matunty of three months or mors {rastncted funds) {143 6) (122 6) {14) (14 =]
4905 2922 397§ 157 5
26 Trade and other payables - current
o Group Caompany
2013 2012 2013 202 -
£m £m £m £m g) —
Trade payables 869 872 0.4 01 &
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 01 57 §
Amounts owed to joint venture (note 45) 02 70 - ~ 8
Other tax and social secunty M3 412 03 a3
Accruals and other payables 1188 107 1 69 47
B o 2772 7 2425 77 108
The Directors consider that the camying amount of trade and other payables approximates to therr far valus -
Included in accruals and other payables are amounts provided by the Group in refation to claims recaived which are considered by the Directars E
and the management of the Group to be the best estmate of the amounts that might be finally settled Further disclosures have not been prowided 3]
in accordance with IAS 37 paragraph 92 ™R
:
:
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Financial statemerts

Notes to the financial statements
Continued

27. Current tax habilities/{recoverable)

Group Company
2012
(Restated
2013 nate 40) 2013 2012
£m &m £m £m
Current tax abilities/(recoverable) &7 0 603 189 (2 6)
28. Borrowtngs
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Current
Bank overdrafts 04 105 - -
Short-term loans 758 2532 759 2532
European Investment Bank 21.1 211 - -
Amounts owed to subsidiary undartakungs (nate 45) - - 2812 2812
a7 4 284 8 3571 534 4
QObligations under finance leases 4.2 407 - -
Total current borrowings (note 39) 1386 3255 3571 534 4
Non-current
Bank and other loans 4100 1393 4100 1383
Private placements 1623 099 1623 998
Bond 2040 1325 1323 - -
RPI iIndex-linked bond 2473 2403 - -
Convertible bond 1204 1176 1204 1176
European Invesiment Bank 2104 23156 - -
12829 960 9 6927 3568
Obligations under finance leases 12217 1,243 5 - -
Total non-current borrowings (note 39} 2,504.6 2,204 4 6927 3568
Total borrowings 2,6432 26299 1,0408 891 2

The Company issued a £100 milion private placerent in July 2007 matunng in 2022 Interest 15 payable at a floatirg rate based on the performance of an interest

rate-inked index The interest rate payeble in the year was 3 1% (2012 3 2%)

South West Water Finance Plc issued a £200 milion BP ndex-finked bond in July 2008 matunng in 2057 with a cash coupon of 1 99%

The Caimpany issued £125 miion 4 625% convertible bonds in August 2009 The bonds mature five years from the issue date at ther nominal value of £125
mulion or can be converted into shares, at the holders” option, at the matunty date at the conversion pnce of 597 81 pence per Ordinary share The value of the

equity conversion component was determined to be £10 milon and has been recognised in shareholders’ aguity in retaned samings

South West Water Finance Plc issued a £150 milllon bond in July 2010 matunng in 2040 with & cash coupon of 5 875%
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Thea far values of non-curent borowings were

2013 2012
Book value Fair value Book value Far value
£fm fm £m £m
Group
Bank and other loans 4100 4100 1393 1393
Private placements 1623 186 5 999 923
Bond 2040 1325 1751 1323 1575
RPI index-hnked bond 247 3 166 7 2403 168856
Convartible bond 1204 14590 117 6 1617
European Investment Bank 2104 1895 2315 2058
1,2829 1,243 7 960 9 9161
QObhgations under finance leases 1,221 7 1,053 3 1,243 6 1,088 1
2,504 6 2,297 0 2,204 4 2,004 2
Company
Bank and other loans 4100 4100 1393 1393
Private placements 1623 166 5 999 923
Convertinle bond 1204 1459 1176 1617
6927 7124 3568 3933

Where market values are not avalable, far values of bomowings have been calculated by discounting expected fudure cash flows at prevaling interest rates

The matunty of non-curent borrowings was

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Between 1 and 2 years 2591 1303 1852 746
QOver 2 years and less than 5 years 5939 4329 3452 1823
Qver 5 years 1,651 6 1,641 2 1623 90 9
2,504 6 2,204 4 6927 356 8
The weighted averags matunty of non-current borrowings was 22 years (2012 23 years)
Finance lsase hiabiiiss — minmum lsase payments were
Group Campany
2013 2012 2013 2012
m £m £m fm
Within 1 year 56 6 617 - -
Over 1 year and less than 5 years 2910 2929 - -
Over 5 years 2,0453 22165 - -
23029 25711 - -
Less future finance charges (1,1300) {1,286 9) - -
Present value of finance lease habilities 1,262 9 1,284 2 - -
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Financial statements.

Notes to the financial statements
Continued

28. Borrowtngs Continued

The matunty of finance lease labilites was

Group Company
2013 202 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Within 1 year 340 310 - -
QOver 1 ysar and less than 5 years 1701 1339 - -
Over 5 yaars 1,058 8 1,118 3 - -
1,262 9 1,284 2 - -

Included above are accrued finance charges ansing on obligations under finance leases totafing £130 8 milon (2012 £135 5 milion), of which

£14 3 millon (2012 £12 6 milkon) 1s repayable within one year

Within obligations undler finance leases, Scuth West Water Umited has utilised finance lease faciihes of £180 0 milion for certan water and sewerage
business property, plant and equipment which are secured by bank letters of credit 1Issued by Unted Kingdom financial nstiiutions These letters
of credt, covenng the full penod of the finance leases, are renewable between the financial institutions and South West Water Limited at five-yearly

intervals, the next baing March 2016

The perod for repayment of these leases includes an agresment to deposit with the lessor group amounts equal to the difference between
tha onginal and revised payrments dus The accumulated deposits, £52 3 milion at 31 March 2013 (2012 £41 9 million) are being held to settle
tha lease lrabdity over the penod from the end of the onginal lease term The deposits are subject to a registered charge given as secunty to the lessor

for the balance outstanding

The penod for repayment of certan existing leases iIncludes an agreement to depost with the lessor group amounts equal to the difference between
the onginal and rewsed paymentis dus The accumulated deposits, £83 6 milton at 31 March 2013 (2012 £66 5 million) are baing held to setlle the lsase

Ilabity at the end of the lease term, subjact to nghts to relsase by negotiation with the lessor

Undrawn committed borrowing faciihes at the balance sheet date were

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m fm £m
Floating rate
Expinng wiathin 1 year 1900 247 5 250 1275
Expinng after 1 year 3250 4110 2200 1410
5150 6565 2450 26885
In addition the Group had, at 31 March 2013, undrawn uncornmitted short-term bank facities of £25 0 milon (2012 £50 O rrllion) available
to the Company or South Wast Water Limited
29 Other non-current habilihes
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 87 87
Other payables 779 769 - -
779 769 87 a7

Other payables include dsferred income resulting from the adoption at far valus of assets transferred from customers in the water and sewerage segment
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30. Retirement benefit obligations
The Group operates a nurmber of defined benefit pension schermes and also a defined contnbution section within the main scheme

Tha assets of the Group's pension schemnes are haeld in separate trusiee admnistered funds The trustees of the funds are requred to act in the best

interest of the funds’ beneficianes The appointment of schemes' trustees is determined by the schemes’ trust documentation The Group has a policy

for the main fund that one-half of all frustess, other than the Charman, are nominated by members of the schemes, including pensionars

Defined contnbubion schemes
Pension costs for defined contribution schemes were £2 8 million (2012 £2 7 millon)

Defined benefit schemes
Assumptons
The pnncipal actuanal assurmphions at 31 March were

2013 2012

Y %

Expected return on schemes' assets 43 63
Rate of increase in pensionable pay 34 35
Rate of Increase for current and futurs pensions 34 33
Rats used to discount schemes’ liabilities 43 47
Inflation 34 33

For 2013/14 |1AS 19 (Rewised) Employee Benefits wll be mplemented which requrres the expected return on schemes’ assats to be the same as the rate

used to discount habilmes

Mortality
Assumnptions regarding future mortality expenance are set based on actuanal adwvice In accordance with published statistics and axpenence
The mortality assumption uses a scheme-specific calculation based an CMI 2009 actuanal tables with an allowance for fulure longewty mprovement
The average life expectancy In years of a member having retired at age 62 on the balance sheet date 1s projected as
2013 2012
Male 250 24 9
Female 270 270
The average e expectancy n years of a future persioner retinng at age 62, 20 ysars after the balance sheet date, 1s projected as
2013 2012
Male 259 258
Female 283 282
The sensitiviies regarding the pnnapal assumptions used to measure the schermes' abilites are
Impact on
Change In schames’
assumpton liabires
Rats of increase in pensionable pay +/~-05% +/-13%
Rate of increase in current and future pensions +~05% +/-6 6%
Rate used to discount schemes’ hiabilities +/-05% +/-9 2%
Inflation +/-05% +/-8 3%
Life expectancy +/- 1 year +/—-3 6%
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Financial statements.

Notes to the financial statements

Continued

30 Retrement benefit obligations Continued

The amounts recognised in the iIncome statement were

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Current service cost {137) (i29) {05) (0 8)
Past service cost o4 (10 - -
Total included in emplayment costs (141) {139} @5) 08
Expected return on pensicn schames’ assets 323 327 22 22
Interest cost on retirement benefit obligations (28 6) {29 1) (20) 21
Total included within net finance costs 37 36 02 Q1
Total charge (104 (108} 03 07
The actual return on schemes' assets was a profit of £69 ¢ milkon (2012 £32 0 million)
The amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensiva INCome wers
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Actuanal losses recognised in the year {151) 517 {16) (39
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet were
Group Company
2013 2012 23 2012
£m £m £m £m
Farr value of schemes’ assets 580 4 5172 394 354
Present value of defined benefit obligations (680 1) 615 8} {48 1) {43 2}
Net hability recognised in the balance sheet (109 7} {98 B) 87 (78
The schemes’ assats were
2013 2012
Value Fund Value Fund
£m %o £m %
Equities 3159 54 2699 52
Bonds 1851 32 168 8 33
Drersified growth 386 T - -
Property 362 6 354 7
Other 46 1 431 8
5804 100 5172 100

Other assets at 31 March 2012 represented pancipally cash contnbuiions received from the Group towards the year-end which were invested

dunng the subseguent financial year
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The Company's share of the schames’ assets at the balance sheet date were

2013 2092

£m £m

Equities 204 178
Property 27 27
Bands 181 118
Other a2 31
394 354

The expected ratum on schemes' assets for 2012/13 was determined by considenng the long-term returns and the balance betwesn nsk and reward

on the vanous categones of investment assets held Expected retums on equity and property nvestments reflected long-term rates of return expenenced

In the respective markets Expected yields on fixed interest investments were based on gross redemption yields as at the balance sheet date

In conunction with its Investment advisors, the trustees have structured the schemes' INvestmeants with the objective of balancing nvestment returns
and levels of nsk The asset allocation for the man scheme has three pnnopal gements

* holding of bonds which is expected to be less volatile than most other asset classes and reflects the schemes' labilties
* a proportion of equities, with fund managers having freedom in making investment decisions to maxmise returms

* imvestment of a relatvely small proportion of the schermes' assets in altemative asset classes which gve the potential for diversification

{currently property and dversified growth)

The lLabilibes of the defined benefit schemes are measured by using the projected unit credit method which 1s an accnued benefits valuation method
in which the scheme liabilibes make allowancs for projected incréases n pensionable pay

Movaments in the net habilty were

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl (95 6) (85 8) (78 68
Income staterment {10 4) (10 3) {03) 07"
Statement of comprehensive ncome (16 1) 517 {16) 40
Employer contributions 14 4 49 2 10 37
At 31 March (109 7) (98 6) 87 7 8
Movements In the farr valus of schemes' asssts were
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
At 1 April 5172 454 2 35.4 307
Expecied return on schemes” assels 323 327 22 22
Actuanal gains/{losses) 367 07 23 02
Members' contnbutions 12 12 - -
Benefits pad 214 (19 4) (1.5) 4
Employer contnbutions 144 492 10 37
At 31 March 5804 517 2 394 354
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Financial staterments

Notes to the financial statements
Continued

30. Retrement benefit ohligatons Continued

Maovements in the present value of schemes' defined benefit obligations were

Group Company !
2013 202 2013 2012 '
£m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl (615.8) (540 0) 432) 375
Servce cost (14 1) (139 {05) 08
Interest cost (28 6) 29 1) 20 (21)
Actuanal losses (51 8) 510} (39) 42
Members’ contributions 2 13 - -
Benefits pad 214 194 15 14
At 31 March (690.1) {615 8§ (481) 432
The tuture cash flows ansing fram the payment of the defined berefits are expected o be settled pnmanly In the perod between 15 and 40 years
from the balance sheet date

|
The fve-year history of expenence adjustments Is '

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 !
£m £m em £m £m '
Group
Far value of schemes’ assets 5804 517 2 454 2 402 4 276 4
Present value of defined benefit obkgations {680 1) (615 8) (540 O) 5103) (342 4)
Nat liability recognised {1097 (98 6) 85 8) (107 9) 866 Q)
Expenence gans/losses) on schemas’ asssts
Amount (£Em) 367 @7 53 657 (101 6)
Percentags of schemsas' assets 6 3% 0 1% 12% 16 3% (36 7)%
Expenence gains/{losses) on defined benefit obligations
Amount (£m) 01 {0 4) 08 23 348
Percentage of defined benefit obligations - {1 9% 01% 04% 10 2%

The cumulatve actuanal losses recegnised in the Group statement af comprehansive ncome at 31 March 2013 wers £172 6 milion (2012 £157 5 milion)
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2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
£m Em Em £m £m

Company
Far value of schemes' assets 394 354 307 373 296
Present valus of defined benefit ohligations {48 1) {43 2) (37 5) (49 0) 36 9)
Net liability recognised 87 (78 (6 8) (117 {73
Experience gans/(losses) on schemes’ assets
Arnount (£m) 23 o2 (10 4) 63 (9 6)
Percentage of schemes' assets 58% D 5% (33 9% 16 9% (32 4%
Expenence (lossesl/gans on defined benefit obligations
Amount (£m) - o4 140 04 16
Percentage of defined benefit obligations - (1 04 37 3% 08% 43%

The cumulative actuanal losses recognised in the Company statement of comprehensive ncome at 31 March 2013 were £12 7 million
{2012 £11 1 miflion)

The last trennial actuanal valuation of the pnncipal defined benefit schermne was at 31 March 2010 The Gircup paid no deficit recavery contributions
to the man scheme durng the yaar (2012 £35 milion) since &l payments up to 31 March 2015 under the existing schedule of contnbbutions have
been made The Group monitors funding levels on an annual basis and expects to pay total contrbutions of around £14 milion durng the year ended
31 March 2014

31 Movements in deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s provded in full on temporary differences under the liabilty method using a tax rate of 23% (2012 249%)

Movements on deferred tax were

Group Company

2012

(Restated
2013 note 40) 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Liabiltes/(assets) at 1 Apnl 2773 292 5 [46) 42
(Credited)/charged to the Income statement (328) 28 26 05
Credited to equrty (L] (159 (0 3) ©9)

Arising on acquisiticns o1 35 - -

Liabilities/(assets) at 31 March 2431 277 3 {2 3) 486

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of all temporary differences gving nse to deferred tax assets because it s probable
that these assets will be recavered

The majonty of the Group’s deferred tax llabiity 1s expected to ba recovered over more than one year

The maonty of the Company's deferred tax asset 1s expected to be recovered over more than one year

All defarred tax assets and labites within the same unsdiction are offset

The deferred tax balance has been reduced by a credt of £10 6 milion 1o recognise the charges in the rate of corporation tax enacted on 17 July 2012
to reduce the rate from 1 Apnl 2013 from 24% to 23% This credit includes a credit of £12 7 milion recogrised in the income staterment and a debrt

of £2 1 millon recognised in the statement of comprehensive Income If the Govemment proposals contared i1 the Financial Bill 2013 1o reduce the rate

of corparation tax by a further 2% for the financial year 2014 and a further 1% for the financial year 2015 had been enacted at the balance sheet date,
the iImpact would havs been a further reducton of approxmaisly £32 million
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Financial staterments

Notes to the financial statements
Continued

31 Deferred tax Continued
The movements In deferred tax assets and labilites were

Group
Deferred tax labilties

Accelerated tax depreciation

Other Total
QOwned Leased (Restated (Restated
assets assets note 40) nate 40)
£m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2011 3056 164 204 342 4
Cradited to the income statement (117 0e) 29 {162
Ansing on acguisiions - - 37 37
At 31 March 2012 203 9 158 212 3309
(Credited)/charged to the incoma statement (37 §) - 20 (35 8)
Ansing on acquisitions 01 - - 01
At 31 March 2013 256 4 1658 232 2954
Deferred tax assets
Provisiors Retrement Other Total
{Restated benefit (Restated Restated
note 40) obligatons note 4Q) note 40)
£m £m £m £m
At 1 Apri 2011 (10 Q) 22 2) (177 49 9)
Charged to the ncome statemant 21 88 15 124
Credited to equity - (102) B7 {156 G)
Ansing on acquisitions 02 - - 02
At 31 March 2012 81 (23 6) 219 {53 6)
{Credited)/charged to the income staterment 08 04 30 28
{Credited)/charged to equity - 20 05 (15
At 31 March 2013 87 {25 2) (18 4) (52 3)
Net hability
At 31 March 2012 2773
At 31 March 2013 2431
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At 31 March 2012 (18 (28 4 6) —
Charged to the income statement 01 25 26 § [
ol
Credited to equity 03 - 03) =l
At 31 March 2013 {20) (0 3) (23)
Daferred tax credited/(charged) to equity dunng the year was
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m -
Actuanal losses on defined benefit schemes 20 102 - 08 g) B
[
Cash flow hedges - 58 03 01 ©
Deferred tax on other comprehensive loss 20 160 03 09
Share-based payments (note 36) {0 5) 0 1) - -
15 1589 03 09
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Financal statements.

Notes to the financial statements
Continued

32 Provisions

Ervironmental and

landfili restoration Total
(Restated Cther (Restated
note 40) Provisions note 40)
£m £m £m
Group
At 1 Aprl 2032 93 4 g2 1026
Charged to the ncome statement 45 59 104
Excephional charges (note €) 901 130 1031
Landfill restoration (note 17) 84 - B4
Utlised (122 (10 (132
At 31 March 2013 184 2 271 2113
The amount charged 1o the ncome statement includes £3 8 milion (2012 £3 7 million) charged to finance costs as the unwinding of discounts
N Provisions
The addition to landfill restoration prowision of £8 4 milion recognised in the year has been matched with an addition to property, plant
and squipmernt (note 17)
The andysis of provisions between current and non-current 1s
2012
(Restated
2013 note 40)
£m £m
Current 406 263
Non-current 1707 763
211.3 1026

Ervironmental and landfil restoration prowvisions are incurred dunng the operational e of each landfill site and for a considerable penod thereafter
The penod of aftercare post-closure and the level of costs expected are uncertain and can vary sgnificantly from ste to site Key factors are the type

of waste, the speed at which t decomposas, the volume of leachate requinng treatment and regulatary requrements specific to the site Environmental
and landfil restoration provisions are expected to be substantaly uthised throughout the operational Ife of a site and for landfill stes withtn 60 years of
closure (2012 30 years) The provisions have been established assuming cument waste management technology based upon estimated costs at future

prces which have been discounted to present value

Other provisions compnse pnnapally of anarous contracts and restructunng provisions Onerous contracts are provided for at the net present value

af the operating losses of the onerous contracts and are o be utiised over the remaining penod of the contract towhuch they relate The restructuring

provision relates pnncipally to severance costs and will be utlised within one year
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33 Share capital
Allotted, called-up and fully pad
Number of shares —
Treasury Ordinary w B
shares shares £m %:
Group and Company g
1]
At 1 Aprd 2011 Ordinary shares of 40 7p each 4,309,567 356,970,298 147 0 "E"
&
Shares issued under the Scnp Dvdend Alternative - 2,941,306 12 @’
Shares re-issued under the Company's Performance and Co-investment Plan (248,793) 246,793 -
For consideration: of £0 3 millon, shares re-issued to tha Pennon Employee Share Trust (44,667} 44 667 -
For consideration of £1 6 millon, shares re-issued under the Company's Sharesave Scheme (385,402} 385,402 - |
At 31 March 2012 Crdinary shares of 40 7p each 3,632,705 360,588,466 148 2 <[
=3
a
Shares issuad under the Scrip Diadend Alternative - 2,642,187 10 Q
Shares re-1ssued under the Company's Performance and Co-investrment Plan (493,217) 493,217 -
For consideration of £0 9 million, shares re-1ssued to the Pennon Employee Share Trust (113,857) 113,857 -
For cansideration of £0 4 millon, shares re-issued under the Executive Share Option Scheme (768,415) 76,415 -
For consideration of £3 3 millon, shares re-issued under the Company’s Sharesave Scheme (843,280) 843,280 -
At 31 March 2013 Ordinary shares of 40 7p each 2,105,836 364,657,522 149 2
Shares held as treasury shares may be sold or re-issued for any of the Company’s share schemes, or cancelled o
5]
Employee share schemes 5
The Group operates a number of equity-settled share plans for the benefit of employess Details of each plan are
i) Sharesave Scheme
An all-employee savwngs related plan 1s operated that enablas employess, Including Executive Directors, to invest up to a maxamum of £250 per month
for three or five years These savings can then be used to buy Ordinary shares, at a prce set at a 20% discount to the market value at the start of the
savings pencd, at the third, fifth or seventh year annversary of the option being granted Options expire six months following the exercise date and,
except for certain specific circumstances such as redundancy, lapse if the employee leaves the Group before the option exercise penod commences
Qutstanding optons to subscrice for Ordinary shares of 40 7p each under the Company’s share option schemes are
Date Penod Thousands of shares In _
granted and when raspect of which options g)
subscrption options outstanding at 31 March 5
pnce fully normally =]
paid exercisable 2013 2012 %
5 July 2005 270p 2008 - 2012 - 30 ®
4 July 2006 358p 2009 - 2013 38 39
3 July 2007 522p 2010- 2014 11 88
8 July 2008 517p 2011 - 2015 75 79
6 July 2009 386p 2012-20186 406 1,184 -
28 June 2010 431p 2013 - 2017 563 608 g!
D
29 June 2011 536p 2014-2018 502 580 a
o
29 June 2042 588p 2015-2017 746 - g
2,341 2,608 a8
%’
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33 Share capital Continued
i} Sharesave Scheme continued

The number and weighted average exercise pnce of Sharesave options are

2013 2012
Number of Weighted Number of Weaighted
Ordinary average Crdinary average
shares exercise pnce shares  exercise pnce
{thousands) per share (p) {thousands) per share {n)
At 1 Apnl 2,608 437 2,564 409
Granted 779 588 593 536
Forfaited (157) 494 (123) 438
Exercised (843) 394 (385) 405
Expired {46) 496 (41 439
At 31 March 2,341 498 2,608 437
The weighted average pnce of the Company's shares at the date of exercise of Sharesave options dunng the year was 731p (2012 656p)
The options outstanding at 31 March 2013 had a weighted average exercise price of 488p (2012 437p) and a weighted average remaning
contractual Ife of 2 1 yaars (2012 3 0 years)
The aggregate far value of Sharesave options granted dunng the year was £0 8 milllon {2012 £0 9 millon), determmined using the Black-Scholes
valuation model The significant inputs into the valuation mode! at the date of 1ssue of the options were
2013 2012
Weightaed average share price 735p 670p
Weaighted average exgrciss price 588p 536p
Expected volatiity 19 0% 27 4%
Expected life 34 years 39 years
Risk-free rate 0 4% 14%
Expeacted dividend yield 4 0% 4 3%

Expected volatlty was deterrnined by caleulating the histoncal volatility of the Group's share price over the previous two years

Ii) Performance and Co-Investrnent Plan

Executive Directors and senior management receive a condtional award of Ordinary shares in the Company and are alse required to hold a substantial
personal shareholding In the Company The eventual number of shares, If any, which vest 1s dependent upon the achievement of condtions of the plan

over the restncted penod, being not less than three years

The number and price of shares in the Performance and Co-investment Flan are

2013 2012

Number of  Weighted average Number of  Weighted average

Ordinary shares exercise pnce per Ordinary shares  exercise pnce per

(thousands) share {p) {thousands) share o)
At 1 Apnl 1,407 573 1,559 550
Granted 424 768 454 698
Vested {493) 486 (247) 637
Lapsed (16) 486 {359 586
At 31 March 1,322 669 1,407 873
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The awards outstanding at 31 March 2013 had a weaighted exercise pnce of 669p (2012 573p) and a weaghted average remaning contractual ife

of 1 2 years (2012 1 3 years)

The aggregate far value of awards granted dunng the year was £1 9 melion (2012 £2 0 milion) determnined using a Monte-Carlo simulation model

The significant inputs into the valuation model at the date of the share awards were

2013 2012
Weighted average share pnice 768p 698p
Expected volatility 19 0% 27 4%
Risk-free rate 04% 14%

BExpected volatiity was deterrined by calculating the histoncal volatilty of the Group’s share pnce over the previous two years

1) Annual Incentive Bonus Plan — Deferred Shares

Awards under the plan to Executive Directors and senior managerment mvalve the release of Ordinary shares in the Company to participants

Thera Is no performance condiion since vesting 1s condmonal upon contnuous service with the Group for apenod of three years from the award

The number and weighted average pnce of shares n the Annua Incentve Bonus Plan are

2013 2012
Number of Weighted average Number of Weghted average
Ordinary shares  exercise pnce per Crdinary shares  exercise pnce per
({thousands) share (p) {thousands) share (o)
At 1 April 427 602 459 557
Granted 120 754 175 725
Vestad (93) 473 (202) 608
Lapsed {25) 473 (5) 522
At 31 March 429 680 427 602

The awards outstanding at 31 March 2013 had a waighted average exercise pnce of 680p (2012 602p) and a weghted average remaining contractual
Iife of 1.3 years (2012 1 5 yaars) The Company's share pnce at the date of the awards ranged from 572p to 754p

The aggregate far value of awards granted dunng tha year was £0 9 mhion {2012 £1 2 millor), determined from market valus No ophion priang
methodology ts applied since dvidends paid on the shares are recevabls by the particpants in the scheme

Further detals of tha plans and options granted to Directors, included above, are shown in the Directors' remurneration report

34 Share premium account

£m
Group and Company
At 1 Apnl 2011 g2
Adjustment for shares 1ssusd under the Scnp Dividend Alternative (12
At 31 March 2012 80
Adjustment for shares 1ssued under tha Scnp Dividend Alternativa (10
At 31 March 2013 70
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Continued

35 Capital redemption reserve

The caprtal redemption reserve represents the redemption of B shares and cancallation of Defarred shares ansing from a caprta) return

to shareholders undertaken dunng 2006

£m
Group and Company
At 1 Apnl 2011 144 2
At 31 March 2012 144 2
At 31 March 2013 1442
36 Retained earmings and other reserves
Own Hedging Retaned
shares reserve earnings Total
£m £m £m £m
Group
At 1 April 2011 22 (130 494 3 4791
Profit for the year - - 1724 172 4
Other comprehansive lass for the year - (187 47 1) 65 8)
Dwvdends pad ralating to 2011 - - (88 2) (88 2)
Adjustment for shares 1ssued under the Scrip Dividend Alternative - - 191 191
Credit to equity In respect of share-based payments - - 36 36
Defarred tax in respect of share-based payments - - 1) Q1)
Charge in respect of share options vesting 07 - 07 -
Gwn shares acgurred by the Pennon Employee Share Trust in respact
of shara options granted 03 - - 03
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - - 18 19
At31 March 2012 (18 (317 555 2 5217
Profit for the year - - 269 269
Other comprehensive loss for the year - B9 (104 (14 3}
Transfer from hedging reserve to iIncome statement - 28 - 29
Transfer from hedging reserve to property, plant and equipment - 30 - 30
Dividends paid relating to 2012 - - (96 0) 96 Q)
Adjustment for shares issued under the Scnp Dividend Alternative - - 181 181
Credit to equity In respect of share-based payments - - 36 36
Deferred tax in respect of share-based payments - - 5 035)
Charge in respect of share options vesting 04 - {04 -
Own shares acquired by the Pennon Employee Share Trust in respect
of share options granted {09 - - 09
Proceeds from treasury shares re-1ssued - - 46 46
At 31 March 2013 (2.3 (29 7) 5011 469 1

The own shares reserve represents the cost of Ordinary shares in Pennon Group Ple issued to or purchased In the market and held

by the Pennon Employee Share Trust to satisfy awards under the Group's Annual Incentrve Bonus Plan

The market value of the 457,000 Ordinary shares (2012 433,000 Ordinary shares) held by the frust at 31 March 2013 was £2 8 milion {2012 £3 + milion)
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Hedging Retaned
reserve eamings Total
£m £m £m
Company
At 1 Apnl 2011 - 5258 5258
Profit for the year - 116 3 1163
Other comprehensive loss for the year 03 33 3 6)
Divdends paid rafating jo 2011 - (882 (88 2)
Adjustment for shares issued under the Scrip Dividend Alternative - 191 191
Credit to equity In respect of share-based payments - 08 0]}
Proceeds from treasury shares re-1ssuad - 19 19
At 31 March 2012 Q3) 5724 5721
Profit for the year - 1857 1857
Othar comprehensive loss for the year 03 (1 4) 11)
Dndends paid relating to 2012 - (96 0) {96 0)
Adjustment for shares issued under the Scnp Divdend Alternative - 181 181
Credit to equity In respect of share-based payments - 08 08
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - 48 46
At 31 March 2013 - 684 2 684 2
37 Perpetual capital securtties
£m

Group and Company
At 1 April 2011 -
At 31 March 2012 -
Issue of £300m 6 75% perpstual subordinated capital secunties 204 8
At 31 March 2013 - 294—8 )

On 8 March 2013 the Comparwy 1ssued £300m perpetual capital secuntes. They have no fixed redemption date but the Company may,
at ts sole discretion, redeem all, but not part, of these securties at thar pnncipal amount on 8 March 2018 or any subsequent penodic return

payment date after this

The Compariy has the option to defer penodic retums on any relevant payment date, as long as a dvdend on the Ordinary Shares has not been paid
or declared in the previous 12 months Deferred pencedic returns shall be satisfied only on redemption or payment of dvidend on Ordinary Shares,

&l of which only occur at the sole discretion of the Company

Costs drectly assocrated with the 1ssue of £5 2 milion are set off against the value of the 1ssuance
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Financial staterments

Notes to the financial statements
Continued

38. Analysis of cash flows given in the statement of cash flows
Recorciliation of profit for the year to cash gererated from operations

Cash generated from operations

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
fm £m fm £m
Continuing operations
Profit for the year 269 172 4 1857 1163
Adjustments for
Share-based payments 36 36 08 08
Profit on disposal of preperty, plant and squipment {18) 28 - -
Depreciation charge 1455 1456 01 01
Amortisation of Intangible assets 37 14 - -
Exceptional impairment of property, plant and equipment 698 - - -
Exceptional prowision charge 1115 - - -
Other non cash exceptional charge 76 - - -
Share of post-tax profit from joint ventures {5 8) 40 - -
Finance mcome {143 0) (119 3) {103 3) 587
Finance costs 184 4 1916 940 606
Omdends receivable - - {177 6) {117 5)
Taxation {credity/charge 51) 281 11 21
Changes in working capital (excluding the effect of acquisition of subsidianes}
Increase In Inventories 15 (17 - -
(Increass)/decrease in trade and other receivables 277 Q4 (1851) 250
Increase In service concession arrangements receivable {31 3) (179 - -
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 18 (13 2) (10 3) 57
Decrease n retirement benefit abligations from contrbuhions {0 3) (353) (0 6) B9
Decrease in provisions 72 (14 4) - -
Cash generated/{outflow) from operations 3411 324 7 {205 2} 189
Reconcihaton of profit for the year to cash generated from operations
Total interest paid
Group Company
2013 M2 203 2012
£m £m fm £m
Interest pad |n. operatng actwvities 758 745 234 227
Interest paxd In Investing actvities (purchase of property, plant and equipment) 136 30 - -
Total interest paid 89.4 775 23.4 227
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39 Net borrowings

Group Company
2013 20312 2013 2012
£m £m m £m
Cash and cash deposts 6345 4253 3889 1589
Borrowings - current
Bank overdrafts (0 4) (10 5) - -
Other current borrowings (97 0) (274 3) (75 9) {253 2)
Finance leass obligations {412) @07 - -
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - (281 2) (281 2)
Total current borrowings {138 6) (325 §) (357 1) (534 4)
Borrowings - non-current
Bank and other loans {1,072 5) (729 4) (692 7) {356 8)
Other non-currant borrowings (210 4) {231 5) - -
Finance lease obligations (1,221.7) (1,243 5) - -
Total non-current borrowings (2,504 6) (2,204 4) 692 7) (356 8)
Total net borrowings (2,008 7) (2,104 6) (650 9) {732 3)
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Financial staterments

Notes to the financial statements
Continued

40. Acquisitions

On 5 July 2012 the entire 1ssued share caprtal of JWT Holdings Limited (renamed Vindor Waste (Atherton) Holdings Limited) was acquired
by Vindor Waste Management Limitad for a cash consideration of £6 6 millon The acquisiion has been accounted for using the acquistion method
Prowsional goodwsll ansing of £4 8 milkon has been captalised

On 8 Octcber 2012 Vindor Waste Management Limited acqurred the entire 1ssued share capital of Pulp Fnction Limited {renamed Vindor {Enth) Limited)
and the trade and assets of SBS Paper LLP, a related business, for a cash consideration of £8 5 milion The acquisition has been accounted for using
the acquistion method Prowsional goodwill ansing of £7 7 million has been capitalised

The residual excesses over the net assets acquired in each business combinabon has been recogrised as goodwill The provisional goodwill
from each business combination is attnbuted to the profitability of the acquired business

Fairr values on acquistion JWT Pulp sBS

Holdings Fnction Paper L.LP Total

£m £m £m £m

Property, plant and equpment 24 10 04 38
Recevables 21 12 - 33
Cash and cash depasits 01 02 - 03
Payables (11) (16) - 27
Taxation — current 09 - - 05
Taxation — deferred © ") - - On
Leases (1 1) (X - (15)
Net assets acquired 18 04 04 26
Goadwill 48 38 a8 125
Total consideration 66 43 42 151
Satisfied by
Cash 66 43 42 151
Cash and cash deposits acquired o1 Q2) - 03
Net cash outflow anising on acquisition 65 41 42 148
Revenue far the pencd since acquisition to 31 March 2013 25 52 - 77
Loss before tax for the penod since acquisthon to 31 March 2013 (10 04 - (14)
Directly attributable costs included in cther operating expenseas 02 04 01 07

If all the acquistions had occurred on 1 Apnl 2012 Group revenues for the year would have been £21,207 7 milion and profit before 1ax and exceptional
iterms for the year would have been £197 4 million These amounts have been calculated after apphying the Group’s accounting policies and adjusting
the results to reflect the provisional far value adustrments

Restatements

At 31 March 2012 the accounting for the fallowing acquisiions was provisional

* JWS Chumgold Limited (renamed Vindor {Lancashire) Limited)

» Veolia's trade waste collection interests in Cornwall and North Devon

o Community Waste Holding Limited {renamed Vindor {Community Recycing MKH) Limrted)

Completion of the accounting for the acquisitions has resufted in a decrease to goodwil of £0 6 mifion, an increase to other Intangibla assets of £4 5
milllon, an increase In property, plant and equipment of £0 8 milion, an increase in trade and other receivables of £0 1 milion, an Ncrease 1N current tax
payable of £0 6 millon, an ncrease N deferred tax of £3 5 millon and an ncrease of £0 7 mifllon n provisions
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41 Pnncipal subsidiary, joint venture and associate undertakings at 31 March 2013

Country of ncarporation, registration
and pnncipal operations

Water and sewerage

South West Water Lmited’ England
South West Water Finance Pl England
Source Contact Management Limited England

Source Collections Limited England

Waste management

Vindor Limited? England
Vindor Waste Limited England
Vindor Waste Exeter Limited England
Vindor Waste Suffolk Limited England
Vindor Waste (West Sussex) Limited England
Vindor Waste Management Limited England

Vindar EnvireSecet Limited Scotland
Vindor Resource Management Limited England
Virdor Waste Kent Limited England
Vindar Oxfardshire Limited England
Vindor EAW (Runcorn) Limited England
Vindor Waste (Landfill Restoration) Limited England
Vindor Waste (Atherton) Holdings Limited England
Vindar Waste (Atherton) lLimited England
Vindor Waste (Somerset) Limited England
Vindar (Enth) Limited England
Vindor Waste (Thames) Limited England
Vindor Waste (Greater Manchester) Limited England
Vindor Parkwood Holdings Limited? British Virgin Islands
Vindor Polymer Recycling Limited England
Vindar Trident Park Limited England
Vindor (Glasgow) Limited Scotland
Vinder (Lancashire) Limited England

Other

Peninsula Insurance Limited ! 2 Guernsey

' Inchcates the shares are held diractly by Pennon Group Flg, the Company

? The company camas out Its operabions in England and 1s resident in the UK for tax purposes

¢ Captwve insurance company established with the speciiic objective of financing nsks emanating from within the Group

The subsidiary undertalangs are whdlly-owned and all shares in 1ssue are Ordinary shares Al companies above are consolidated

in the Graup financial statements
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Financal statements

Notes to the financial statements
Continued

41 Pnncipal subsidiary, joint venture and associate undertakings at 31 March 2013 Continued
Joint ventures and associate

Al joint ventures, the assooate and the subsidiary undertakings of Lakesida Energy from Waste Holdings Limited, Vindor Laing {Greater Manchester)
Holdings Limited and INEOS Runcorn {TPS) Holdings Limited are incorporated and registered in England wiich is also their country of operation

Share capttal In 1ssue Percentage held Prncipal actvty
Joint ventures
Lakeside Energy from Waste Haldings Limited 1,000,000 A Ordinary shares -
1,000,300 B Crdinary shares 100%
Lakeside Energy from VWaste Limited Waste management

Shares in Lakeside Energy from Waste Holdings Limited ars held by Vindor Waste Managerment Limited

Vindor Laing {Greater Manchester) Holdings Limited 2 Ordinary shares 50%
Vindor Laing (Greater Manchester) Limited Waste management

Shares in Vindor Laing (Greater Manchester) Holdings Limited are held by Vindor Waste Management Limited

Associates
INEQS Runcorn {TPS) Heldings Limited 1,000 A Crdinary shares 20%
186,750 B1 Crdinary shares 50%
62,250 B2 Ordinary shares -
INEOS Runcorn (TPS) Lrmited Waste management

Shares n INEQS Runcarn (TPS) Holdings Limited are held by Vindor Waste Management Limited

The Group's economic interest N INECS Runcorn (TPS) Holdings Limited 1s 37 5%, as returns from the investment are based on holdings
of B1 and B2 Crdinary shares

42 Operating lease commitments

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012
£m fm £m £m

The future aggregate minimum lease payments undsr non-cancellable operating

leasss are

Within 1 year 04 88 - -
Over 1 year and less than 5 years 28.3 261 - -
Over 5 years 77.8 755 - -
1165 1104 - -

The Group keases vanous offices, depots and workshops under non-cancellable operating lease agresments  The leases have vanous terms, escalation
clauses and renews! nghts Property leases are negotiated for an average term of 25 years and rentals are reviewed on average at five-yearly ntervals

The Group also leases plant and machinery under non-cancelable operating lease agreements
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43 Contingent iabilties

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m

Guarantees
Borrowing faciities of subsidiary undertakings - - 2071 3599
Performance bonds 116 2 117 4 1162 117 4
Other 6.9 69 69 69
1231 124 3 4202 484 2

Guarantses In respect of performance bonds are entered into in the narmal course of business No liability 15 expected to anse In respect
of the guarantees

Other contingent liabilibes relate to a possible obligation to pay further consideration in respect of a previously acquired business when
the: outcome of planning applications 1s known

In connection with the application of the audit exemphon under Section 479C of the Companias Act 2006 the Company has

guaranteed all the outstanding labilties as at 31 March 2013 of certain of its subsidianes Pernnon Power Limited, Exe Continental
and Vindor Waste 2 Limited since these companies qualfy for the axernption

44 Caprtal commitments

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £€m £m
Contracted but not provded 391.2 5458 - -

45, Related party transactions

Dunng the year Group compartes entered into the following transactions with jont ventures and associate refated parties which are not mambers
of the Group

2013 2012
fm £m

Sales of goods and services
Vindor Laing (Greater Manchester) Limitad 830 804
Purchase of goods and services
Lakeside Energy from Waste Limited 109 107
Divk;nds received -
Lakeside Energy from Waste Holdings Limited 85 -
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Financlal staternants

Notes to the financial statements
Continued

45 Related party transactions Contnued

Year-end balances

2013 2012
£m £m
Receivables due from related parties
Vindor Laing (Greatsr Manchester) Holdings Limited floan balance) 454 403
Lakeside Energy from Waste Hotdings Limited (loan balance) 97 100
INEQS Runcorn [TPS) Holdings Limited (foan balance) 250 223
801 728
Vindor Laing (Greater Manchester) Limited (trading balance) 86 76
Lakeside Energy from Waste Limited (trading balancs) 12 10
108 86
Payables due to related parties
Vindor Laing (Greater Manchester) Limited {trading balance) - 70
Lakeside Energy for Waste Limited (trading balance) 02 -

The £80 1 mifllon (2012 £72 6 million) receivable relates to loans to related parties Induded within recervables and due for repayment in nstalments
between 2013 and 2033 Interest 1s charged at an average of 13 0% (2012 14 0%)

Company
The following transactions with subsidiary undertakangs cecurred in the year

2013 2012

fm em

Sales of goods and semices (management fses) 83 84
Purchase of goods and ser:vlces {support services) 05 05
Interest recevable 252 196
Dwidends recaived 1776 1175

Sales of goods and services to subsidiary undertakings are at cost Purchases of goods and servicas from subsidiary undertalkings are under nommal
commercial terms and condrions which would also be avalable to unrelated third parties

Year-end halances

2013 2012
£m m

Receivables due from subsidiary undertakings
Loans 628 2 4398
Trading balances 88 19

Interest on £128 7 milon of the lans has been charged at a fixed rate of 4 5% and on £199 4 mifion at a fixed rate of 6 0% (2012 £204 3 melon,
4 5% and £29 6 milon, 6 0%)

Interest on the balance of the loans 1s charged at 12 month LBOR +1 5% The loans are due for repayment in instalments over the penod 2014
to 2018 Dunng the year thers were no provisions (2012 il in respect of loans to subsidianes not expected to be repad

2013 2012
£m £m

Payables due to subsidiary undertakings
Loans 2812 281 2
Trading balances 144 14 4

The loans from subsidiary undertakings are unsecured and interest-free without any terms for repayment
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Five-year financial summary

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m Em
Income statement
Revenue 1,201 1 1,233 1 1,159 2 1,068 9 9582
Operating profit before exceptional items 246 3 2688 260 9 266 3 2508
Net finance costs before exceptional tems 53 9) 72 3) (76 7) (816) 922
Share of profit in joint ventures 68 40 43 11 08
Profit before tax and exceptional items 188 2 2005 188 5 1858 1694
Nat exceptional items before tax {176 4) - - - -
Taxation credit/(charge) 51 (28 1) (16 9) (44 3) (69 6)
Profit for the year 269 172 4 1716 1415 8908
Dividends praposed 1038 960 882 796 734
Earnings per share (basic)
From continuing operathons
Earnings per share 74p 48 1p 48 dp 40 4p 258p
Ceferred tax before exceptional items (3 4)p {0 8B)p B Np 04p 111p
Exceptional items (net of tax) 38 6p - - - -
Earnings per share before exceptional tems and deferred tax 42 6p 47 3p 42 3p 40 8p 36 9p
Declared dwdends per share 28 46p 26 52p 24 65p 22 55p 21 00p
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m £m
Capital expenditure
Acquistions 148 292 251 93 34
Property, plant and equipment 4101 257 4 1890 1822 2318
Balance sheet
Non-cutrent assets 3,8455 35925 3,347 6 3,1804 3,036 3
Net current assets 3793 118 33857 162 1 405
Non-current habiiies (3,160 &) (2,782 2) (2,903 8) (2,688 6) {2,476 2)
Net assets 1,064 3 8221 7795 6629 6006
Number of employees (average for year)
Water and sewerage business 1,354 1,335 1,196 1,191 1,227
Waste management 3,180 3,148 3,012 2,853 2,154
Other businesses 50 46 44 43 41
4,584 4,529 4,252 4,087 3,422
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Shareholder information

Financial Calendar

Financial year-end 31 March
Twenty-fourth Annual General Mesting 1 August 2013
Ex-dmdend date for 2013 Final dvidend 7 August 2013*
Record date for 2013 Final dvdend 9 August 2013~
2013 Final dmdend payable 4 October 2013"
2013/14 Half yearly financial report announcement Novermber 2013
2014 Intenm dmdand payable Apnl 2014
2014 Preliminary results announcement May 2014
Twenty-fifth Annual General Meeting July 2014
2014 Final dvdend payzble October 2014

Scrip Dividend Altermative timetable*

Ordinary shares quoted ex-dvdend 7 August 2013
Record date for final dmdend 9 August 2013
Pasting of Scnp dwvdend offer 23 August 2013
Final date for recept of Forms of Becton/Mandate 16 September 2013
Posting of dvidend cheques and share certficates 3 October 2013
Final dmdend payment date 4 October 2013
First day of dealing in the new Ordinary shares 4 October 2013

*These datas are subject to obtanng sharehalder approval at the 2013 Annual General Meeting to the payment
of a final dnvdend for the year ended 31 March 2013

Shareholder Analysis at 31 March 2013

Range of shares held Number of shareholders % of total shareholders % of Ordinary shares
1-100 2,465 1066 0a2
101 - 1,000 9,586 4151 140
1,001 - 5,000 9,472 4097 554
5,001 - 50,000 1,257 544 394
50,001 - 100,000 74 032 150
100,001 - Highest 254 110 87 60

23,118 10000 100 00
Indmcduals 19,380 8383 809
Companies 209 091 243
Trust companies {pension funds etc) 12 005 Q02
Banks and nominees 3,517 1521 BI 46

23,118 100 00 100 00
Major Shareholdings

The posiion on 31 March 2013 of investors who have notified interests in the 1ssued share capital of the Comparny
pursuant to the Finanaal Services Authonty’s Disclosure and Transparency Rules was as follows

Amenpnse Finanaa Inc 968%
Pictst Asset Management SA 7 02%
AXA Invastment Managers SA 4 96%
tnvesco Lid 4 72%
Legal & General Group Plc 369%
Norges Bank 3 06%

No changes to the above interests In the 1ssued share capital of the Company were disdlosed to the Company between
31 March 2013 and 25 June 2013 (being a date not more than one month pror to the date of the Company's Notice of Annual
General Meeting) except for the following
i on 17 May 2013 Norges Bank notfied the Company that on 18 May 2013 its interests in the 1ssued share capital
of the Campany had fallen below the 3% threshold,
i} on 22 May 2013 RARE Infrastructure Limited notified the Company that as at 2 May 2013 1t held 18,325,407 Ordinary
shares in the Company representing 5 08% of the 1ssued share capital of the Company at that date
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Shareholder services

Reg:strar

All enqunes conceming shareholdings induding
rotification of change of address, loss of a share
certficate or dvdend payments should be made
to the Company’s regstrar The Company’s
regstrar, Capita Regstrars, can be contacted

as follows

Capita Regstrars

Pennon Group Share Register, The Regisiry

34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham

Kent BR3 4TU

Telephone 0871 664 9234
(calls cost 10p per muinute plus network extras)
Lines are gpen 8 30am-5 30pm Monday-Fnday

Overseas telephone +44 800 141 2051
Emal pennon@capitaregstrars com

Share deakng service

Tha talephone share dealing service offered

by Stocktrade enables sharsholders to buy

and sell shares in the Cormpany on a low-cost
basis and to make regular investrnents in tha
Company Telephone Stockirade on 0845 601
0995 and quote LOW CO107 Gommission

15 0 5% (subject to a mnimum charge of £17 50}
to £10,000, then O 2% thereafter

Share gift service

Through Sharegift, an indspendent chanty share
donation scheme, sharehclders who only have

a small number of shares with a valus that makes
it uneconomical to sell them, can donate such
shares 1o chanty Donations can be made by
completion of a smpie share transfer form

which 1s avalable from the Gompany's registrars,
Capita Registrars

Individual Savings Accounts

By holding ther shares in the Company
in an Indmdual Savings Account (ISA),
shareholders may gan tax advantages

Scnp Dividend Altemative

The Company operates a Scnp Dvidend
Alternative The Scrp Divdend Altemative providss
shareholders with an opportunity to nvest the
whole of, or part of, the cash dvdend they receve
on ther Pennon Group Plc shares to buy further
shares in the Comparty without ncurnng stamp
duty or dealing expenses Subject to oataning
shareholder appraval at the 2013 Annual General
Meeting to the payment of a final dwvidend for the
year ended 31 March 2013, fult detals of the Scnp
Dradend Alternative, ncluding how $o join, wil

be sent out to shareholders on 23 August 2013
The full tmetable for offenng the Scnp Drdend
Alternative 1s given on page 144

Onine portfolic senace

The online portfollo service provded by
Caprta Registrars gives shareholders access
to more iInformation on therr Investments
Detalls of the portiolio service are avalable
anlne at www capitashareportal com

Electronic commumcations

The Company has passed a resolution which
allows it to communicate with its shareholders
by means of its website

Shareholders currently receving & pnnted
copy of the Annual Report who now wish

to sign up to recawve all future shareholder
communications elecironically, can do so by
registering with Capita Registrars’ share portal
Go to www capitashareportal com to regrster,
select "Account Registration’ and then follow
the on-screen instruchions by Inputing your
surnarme, your Investor Code (which can be
found on your Form of Proxy} and your
posteode as well as entenng an emall
address and selecting a password

By registenng to recerva your sharsholder
communicatons electronicaly, you will also
automatically receive your Cividend Tax
Vouchers electronically

Electromic Proxy voting

Sharehalders also have the opportunity

to register the appointment of a proxy for any
general mesting of the Company once notice
of the meeting has been given and may do so
wvia www capitashareportal com Shareholders who
register an emall preference will not receve

a paper proxy form Insteed they will receve an
emal alert advising them of general meetings
of the Company, with links to the Notices

of Meetngs and annual and half yearly
financial reports

The Pennon website

Pennon’s website www pennon-group co uk
provides news and detals of the Compary's
actnties plus inks to its business websitas

The Investor Information section contains
up-to-date information for shareholders including
comprehensive share pnce information, financial
resuits, dmdend payment dates and amounts,
and BNS announcements There is also

a comprehensive share services ssction

on the website which Includes information

on buying, seling and transfamng shares,

and on the acton to be undertaken by
shareholders in the event of a change

In personal crcumstancss, for example,

a change of address

Further shareholder information may be found
at www pennon-group ca uk

Share fraud warning

Share fraud includes scams where investors

are called out of the blue and offered shares that
often turn out to be worthless or non-existent,

or are offered an inflated price for shares that they
own These calls corne from fraudsters operating
In ‘baller rooms’ that are mostly based abroad,
often they mply a conneclion to the company
concemed and they can be very persistent

and extremely persuasve Whilst high profits

are promised, those who buy or sell shares

n this way usualy lose ther money

The Financial Services Authonty (FSA) has found
most share fraud vicims are expenenced investors
who losa an average of £20,000, with around
£200 millicn fost in the UK each year

Protect yourself
If you are offered unsolcited investment adwvice,
discounted shares, a prermium pnce for shares
you own, or free company or research reports,
you should take these steps before handing over
any money
1 Get the name of the person and crganisation
cantactng you
2 Chsck the FSA Regster at www fsa gov uk/
fsaregister {0 ensure that they are authonsed
3 Use the details on the FSA Register
to contact the firm
4 Call the FSA Consumer Helpiine
on 0845 606 1234 f there are no contact
detals on the FSA Register or you are told
that the Register 1s out of date
5 Ifthe calls persist, hang up
& Remember if it sounds too good
to be true, it probably 1s!

If you use an unauthonsed firm to buy or sell
sharas gr other nvastments, you will not have
access to the Financial Ombudsman Sarvice
or Financial Services Compeansation Schemes
(FSCS) if things go wrong

Details of any share dealng facikties that
the Company endarses will be Included
n Company malings

Report a scam

If you are approached about a share scam you
should tell the FSA using the share fraud reporting
form at www fsa gov uk/scams, where you can
find out about the latest nvestrment scams

You can dso call the Consumer Helpline

on 0845 606 1234

If you have already paid money to share
fraudsters you should contact Action Fraud
on 0300 123 2040
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Registerad in England & Wales
Registered Number 2366640

To view our ondire annual report
www pennonannualreport.co uk/2013

When you have finished with
this document please recycle it




